®
(£
y
/0,

GOLDIN FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
SiRE/(KE)SRAE

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability 7 & S iEEfak sz 2 BRAA])
(Stock Code R& A 1{.5% : 530)

BEYOND THE IMPOSSIBLE, LIES A WORLD

RICH WITH POSSIBILITIES
GERCH AL A W fig

* for identification purposes only =2 {45 ANNUAL REPORT 2012/13 ’/'EF‘ *ﬁ



Corporate Information

Chairman’s Statement

Management Discussion and Analysis

Directors’ Profiles

Corporate Governance Report

Directors’ Report

Independent Auditors’ Report

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Statement of Financial Position
Notes to Financial Statements
Summary of Investment Property

Five-Year Financial Summary

CONTENTS

H &%

NREH
IRBEE
EEEFNWE DM
EEERE
EERRE
Exgws

B RBEN RS
FEREBARE
REMBRRIREK
REEREBR
FERERER
BAREAR R Rk
BATS AR M
REMFEHE
hEPHHRE

17
22
40
)
57
)
61
63
65
60
171
172



CORPORATE INFORMATION

R ERE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND
CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD

Mr. Pan Sutong

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lee Chi Chung, Harvey
Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Helvin
Professor Huang Xiaojian
Mr. Zhou Dengchao

Ms. Hou Qin

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Hui Wai Man, Shirley
Mr. Tang Yiu Wing
Ms. Gao Min

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Ms. Hui Wai Man, Shirley (Chairman of Audit Committee)
Ms. Gao Min
Mr. Tang Yiu Wing

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Tang Yiu Wing (Chairman of Remuneration Committee)
Ms. Hui Wai Man, Shirley
Ms. Gao Min

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Pan Sutong (Chairman of Nomination Committee)
Ms. Hui Wai Man, Shirley
Ms. Gao Min

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

Mr. Pan Sutong (Chairman of Corporate Governance Committee)
Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Helvin
Mr. Zhou Dengchao

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Lun Hau Mun

Goldin Financial Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2012-13

FUTESRESEIRE
EaRE

HITES

FRBEE
BEEREAE
EERUE
BEBEL
w=Ez+

BYFHITES
LR T et

MBE L L
5] 6qun

BEREES

HEHER L (FEEEETE)
[S): g
BB A

BWEES

WREEE (FHEESLE)
AFESL L
BHEZ L

REEES

BRBAE(EEZEETE)
HFEHLL
B8z

TtEERZE

BERBEE(PEE
BEEREL
&Lt

REBETE)

ARHE

IR LZ L



PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
Bank of Communications Co., Ltd Hong Kong Branch

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young
SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICES

Principal:

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
26 Rurnaby Street

Hamilton HM11

Bermuda

Hong Kong Branch:
Tricor Secretaries Limited
26th Floor, Tesbury Centre
28 Queen's Road East
Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Canon’s Court
22 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM12
Bermuda

HONG KONG PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

23/F., Two International Finance Centre
8 Finance Street, Central
Hong Kong

STOCK CODE

530.HK

WEBSITE

www.goldinfinancial.com

FEEREIT

ERLBESRITARRQA
RERTT (FE)BR QA
RBRITEMERRBBEDTT

B BLEm

%23 @ 56D 5 15
ROBFETE

HBEE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
26 Rurnaby Street

Hamilton HM11

Bermuda

BEREDE:
BEMERBEERAR
&5

B KNER28%

& EE P 0261

AfRER

Canon’s Court
22 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM12
Bermuda

ERFELEXRMH
BB

IR S BESH
BB &m0 — Hi2318

iz 12 1% 5%
530.HK
49 11t

www.goldinfinancial.com

FH2012-13 =iEEE (EE) R A A

3






 STATEMENT




CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ESV R

oot

Pan Sutong % & /&
Chairman % f&

6 Goldin Financial Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2012-13



Dear Shareholders,

| and my fellow members of the board of directors (the “Board”) of
Goldin Financial Holdings Limited (the “Company”), are once again
proud to bring you the annual report for the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group” or “Goldin Financial”) for the fiscal year ended
30 June 2013 (“FY2013").

Following a fairly eventful FY2012, the period under review was a
welcome 12 months of consolidation for our three core business
activities. With many opportunities opening up to us, it has been a
particularly vintage year for our wine operations. With more capital now
available for our wine to expand, the Board and | are confidence about
our potential. We therefore anticipate striving to create further value for
ourselves and our shareholders in the years ahead.

Factoring

FY2013 marked the fourth year Goldin Factoring (China) Development
Limited (“Goldin Factoring”) has been operational. Both reliable and
reputable, Goldin Factoring has been an excellent alternative source of
funding for medium-sized enterprises. The freeing up of cash
companies can use to expand from formerly tied-up accounts
receivables is of huge benefit to China’s expanding entrepreneurial
class.

Major developments affecting our factoring operations were the
Shanghai Municipal People’s Government’s August 2012 granting of
the company’s request for around three-fold increase in capital, to
US$399,670,000 and the entering into a domestic factoring agreement
with a PRC enterprise in December 2012. As at 30 June 2013, Goldin
Factoring had been injected the additional capital of US$200,000,000.

While the economies of the United States and Europe remain weak, we
will adopt a cautious strategy towards the monitoring of our business
risks in selecting clients of high credibility and remain responsive to the
Chinese Government’s measures affecting our business.
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Wine

The last few years have seen our business in this area make
encouraging progress following our acquisition of the renowned 40-
acre Sloan Estate vineyard in the US’s celebrated Napa Valley
winemaking hub and the popular SLOAN, SLOAN ESTATE and
ASTERISK trademarks from their former US owner.

Due to an excellent grape harvest in September 2012, our Napa Valley
wine production had increased this year. The vineyards in Napa Valley,
USA, remain high on our list of potential acquisitions. Such steps are
to ensure the supplies of top quality grapes that has thus far held our
wine production activities.

In December 2012, we took our wine activities to the next level when
we began acquisition of a 95% interest in a French corporation which
owns and operates three vineyards from the internationally renowned
oenologist Michel Rolland and his family — Chéateau Le Bon Pasteur,
Chéateau Rolland-Maillet and Chateau Bertineau Saint-Vincent covering
15 hectares in the country’s Bordeaux wine making hub.

Completed on 30 May 2013, our initial acquisitions in Bordeaux are
already beginning to formulate branding and target customers. We plan
to market our premium wines of Chateau Le Bon Pasteur internationally
while the other two brands will target middle-class customers,
especially those in the increasingly vibrant Mainland Chinese market.

Property

After our joint venture’s successful bidding of the land parcel in
Kowloon Bay in August 2011, we are now constructing our “Goldin
Financial Global Centre”, a landmark commercial building in this prime
location of Kowloon East. The finished development — one of the most
business-friendly buildings in the district — will stand an impressive
27-storeys high and boast a total gross floor areas of 79,200 sg.m.,
targeting international commercial tenants seeking A-grade office
space. With the foundation works for the office complex are nearing
completion, the main construction works will soon begin and the
building is on track to welcome its tenants in the fourth quarter of 2015.
With the Hong Kong government’s clear positioning Kowloon East as
the new core business centre (CBD2) and the “Energizing Kowloon
East” initiative remaining a priority for the government, our Goldin
Financial Global Centre are likely to bring great revenue potential and
long term success for the Group.

Goldin Financial Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2012-13
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The Way Forward

With global market turbulence now heading into its fifth year, ongoing
concerns such as the future sustainability of the Euro mean the outlook
for major markets remains anything but certain. Happily for Goldin
Financial and its stakeholders, Mainland China’s comparative economic
strength mean long-term prospects for Asia look far more positive.

The past year has seen us leverage such opportunities whenever and
wherever possible. As 2012 wine futures prices stand at a level most
industry experts regard as very reasonable, we consider it an ideal time
to invest in more premium wine futures. In moving forwards, we are
also actively seeking to extend our long-term purchase plans to include
more premium top-tier Chateau in Bordeaux, France.

Fortunate to be staffed by knowledgeable and resourceful people
empowered by excellent networks, we can take real pride in capitalizing
on a diversified and responsive modus operandi. The coming years will
see us continue to strive to maximize returns for our stakeholders by
cautiously evaluating and swiftly taking advantage of lucrative
opportunities around the world.

In closing, it is my great privilege to extend my gratitude to my fellow

Board members and all our staff for their as always tireless contribution
to the Group’s success.

Pan Sutong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 September, 2013
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Results

During the year ended 30 June 2013 (“FY2013”), Goldin Financial
recorded a revenue of approximately HK$250.5 million, represents a
63.5% rise over the HK$153.2 million for the figure recorded in FY2012.
The increase was mainly due to revenue generated from wine trading.
Profit attributable to owners of the Company was around HK$928.1
milion — an 1,071.8% increase when benchmarked against the
HK$79.2 million for FY2012. The increased figure for FY2013 is largely
the result of increase by our share of the increase in the fair value of the
Kowloon Bay investment property we are now constructing.

FY2013 has also seen the Group continue to successfully consolidate
on our two years of steady progress in the global wine business. In the
property area, our joint venture’s development of its 79,200 sqg.m. plot
of land in Kowloon Bay remained on schedule for its anticipated
opening in 2015. The eventual opening of the commercial complex
promises to be an excellent future source of revenue for Goldin
Financial and its shareholders.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year ended 30 June 2013, Goldin Financial has, as always,
continued to seek out sound potential opportunities and profit
generators.

Key developments during FY2013, included a December 2012 Rights
Issue and increase in authorized share capital from HK$550 million to
HK$1,100 million. The effect of these developments has measurably
strengthened the Group’s capital base and financial position. We now
have an even stronger base from which to launch new business
initiatives.
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While world markets continue to suffer from the effects of economic
instability and many entrepreneurs are adopting a “wait and see”
approach, more visionary companies such as Goldin Financial are still
seizing the initiative to expand. While our business in factoring area is
obviously subject to Mainland Chinese policies, our factoring operation
has received approval from Shanghai Municipal People’s Government
to increase its registered capital by US$300,000,000 with effect from
August 2012. Another development on the factoring front includes the
signing of a domestic factoring agreement with a PRC enterprise in
December 2012. This opens up the Group’s domestic factoring
business in China.

During FY2013, our factoring business generated HK$108.9 million in
revenue, a slight decrease of 3.5% over the HK$112.9 million for
FY2012. The decrease is mainly a result of the Group’s more prudent
strategies in risk management and clients selection. Profit from this
segment was approximately HK$71.6 milion, a fall of 1.4% over
FY2012’s figure of HK$72.6 million.
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China’s steadily increasing role as a global economic powerhouse has
been accompanied by an explosion in the size of its affluent middle
class. This in turn has created a huge rise in the demand for more
“sophisticated” luxury end products such as wine.

Having acquired the renowned 40-acre Sloan Estate and the well-
known “SLOAN”, “SLOAN ESTATE” and “ASTERISK” registered brand
in 2011, we continue to accelerate the development of our wine
business. Recent activities in this area include the December 2012
acquisition of a controlling 95% interest of a French corporation which
owns and operates three vineyards totaling around 15 hectares of land
in France’s famous Bordeaux wine making heartland. The three
vineyards namely — Chéateau Le Bon Pasteur, Chateau Rolland-Maillet
and Chateau Bertineau Saint-Vincent, start up our wine production
business in Bordeaux region, French. Completed in May 2013, the
acquisition broaden our portfolio of top brands. FY2013 our wine
trading activities generated total revenue roughly HK$141.6 million
(FY2012: HK$40.3 milion), and profits from wine business were
approximately HK$64.7 million (FY2012: HK$4.8 million).

The year under review is our second harvesting of vintage wine under
our own “SLOAN” and “ASTERISK” brands. As the quantity of grapes
harvested in 2012 had increased by some 40% over 2011, our senior
management remains very upbeat about the prospects for good
returns when we begin marketing the wines in 2016.
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Property is another area in which our senior management’s far-
sightedness continues to pay dividends. As long-term shareholders will
already know, July 2011 saw the Group and a joint-venture partner
successfully bided for and acquired a plot of land in a prime area of
Kowloon Bay. As the HKSAR Government’s “Energizing Kowloon East”
initiative remaining one of the Territory’s top business real estate
priorities, future prospects for the area look extremely promising.

With the building’s foundations work near to complete and a main
construction contract awarded in July 2013, the project is targeted to
complete in second half of 2015. As one of the premium-grade office
complexes in the area, the new 27-storey property is expected to
generate steady revenue and profit streams for years. FY2013 the
Group record a fair value increase of HK1,470.4 million (FY2012:
HK$372.8 million) in respect of the Kowloon Bay investment property.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

As at 30 June 2013, Goldin Financial’s working capital stood at
approximately HK$4,022.3 million, a rise of 260.5% over the
HK$1,115.8 million figure for FY2012. Cash and bank balances totalled
some HK$2,483.9 million, an 2,829.1% increase over the HK$84.8
million figure as at the end of FY2012. The significant rise in working
capital is largely due to the December 2012 Rights Issue which raised
net cash proceeds of HK$2,835.7 milion as well as setting the
outstanding loan from Goldin Global Holdings Limited (“GGH”) of
approximately HK$1,036.0 million.

By the end of FY2013, the Group had a borrowing facility from GGH of
US$300 million (equivalent to HK$2,327 million) which none had been
drawn down (respective figures as at the end of FY2012: outstanding
loan of US$125.3 million and undrawn facilities of US$174.7 million). By
30 June 2013, our gearing ratio of total borrowings divided by total
equities stood at approximately 2.8% (the same period in FY2012:
22.1%).

Goldin Financial’s key operations are located in Hong Kong, the PRC,
the US and France. Major assets and liabilities of the Group are
primarily denominated in HK$, US$ and Euro$. While we have not yet
established a formal foreign currency hedging policy, we will continue
to monitor our exposure to foreign exchange fluctuations carefully and
may introduce appropriate hedging measures should the need ever
arise.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 30 June 2013, the banking facility granted to a property
investment subsidiary, which is subject to guarantees given to the
banks by the Company for up to 60% of the utilised amount, was
utilised to a the extent of HK$163,394,000 (2012: Nil).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

By the end of the year under review, the pledge of assets are set out in
the note 17 (30 June 2012: Nil).

PROSPECTS

In planning ahead for FY2014 and beyond, the Board relishes the
challenge of having to face and overcome still more obstacles. In doing
s0, we will continue to do our utmost to capitalize on new opportunities
across all core business segments.

Our factoring business offering Hong Kong and Mainland Chinese
corporations easy access to cash they can use to expand from
approved accounts receivables enterprises, our fully-fledged factoring
business is expecting to sustain its steady performance. However, the
Group will remain prudent in selecting clients which have high credibility
in order to control business ricks.

With the growth of its increasingly discerning middle-class, China also
holds out plenty of promise for our burgeoning wine business. While
our production capacity in the Sloan vineyard is limited by our grape
supply, we are actively investigating opportunity in acquiring additional
land parcels for grape plantation. Through the opportunity of 2012
Bordeaux wine future price has been adjusted to an attractive levels
and sustained strong demand for quality wines in the light of price
increases potential also leaves us very keen to further expanding our
wine futures interests. We are also actively seeking to extend our long-
term purchase plans to more top-tier vineyards in France to secure
future supply of premium fine wines.

The now ongoing construction work on the new commercial complex
in Kowloon Bay is an excellent example of the Group’s far-sightedness
and acumen. While the outlook for the global economy still looks far
from certain, Goldin Financial plans to stay ahead of possible further
market turmoil by carefully evaluating each new investment project that
comes its way. In continuing to explore potential strategic partners for
possible co-operation, we will also continue to do everything possible
to maximize value and opportunities for our shareholders.

Goldin Financial Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2012-13
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Mr. Pan Sutong

Mr. Pan, aged 50, joined the Group in December 2008. Mr. Pan was
appointed as a non-executive Director, the Chairman of the Board, the
chairman of the Nomination Committee and Corporate Governance
Committee. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. Pan is responsible for the overall strategic planning of the Group.
He has accumulated extensive experience in trading, finance and
property development. Meanwhile, Mr. Pan is also the chairman and
chief executive officer of Goldin Properties Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 283), a company listed on the main board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. Lee Chi Chung, Harvey

Mr. Lee, aged 47, was appointed as executive director of the Company
in March 2011. Mr. Lee is the vice chairman of Goldin Real Estate
Financial Holdings Limited, the ultimate holding company of the
Company. He is responsible for overseeing corporate communications,
investor relations and fund raising activities. Mr. Lee is also an executive
director of Goldin Properties Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 283), a
company listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Lee was a managing
director of Goldman Sachs (Asia) LLC. He has over 20 years of
experience in investment banking and served as department head of
various functions including debt capital markets, fixed income derivative
structuring/marketing and China private wealth management. He holds
a bachelor's degree in Economics from University of California at
Berkeley and a master’s degree in Business Administration from the
Harvard University.
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Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Helvin

Mr. Wong, aged 39, was appointed as an executive Director in
December 2008. Mr. Wong is a member of Corporate Governance
Committee. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. Wong is the general counsel of the Company and responsible for
overseeing the Group’s legal and corporate matters. Mr. Wong
obtained a bachelor’'s degree in Laws from The Manchester
Metropolitan University in the United Kingdom and was admitted as a
solicitor in Hong Kong and in England and Wales. Mr. Wong is also an
executive director and a general counsel of Goldin Properties Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 283), a company listed on the main board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Prior to joining the Company,
Mr. Wong was a special counsel of Baker & McKenzie specializing in
real estate mergers and acquisitions, corporate joint ventures and
public corporate compliance matters.

Professor Huang Xiaojian

Professor Huang, aged 51, was appointed as a non-executive Director
in December 2008 and re-designated as an executive Director in
November 2012. He has over 23 years of experience in research and
development of electronic and digital technologies. Professor Huang
obtained a master’s degree in Telecommunications and Electronics
from Beijing University of Posts and Telecommunications and is a
senior member of an Electronic Association in China. Professor Huang
was an executive director of Goldin Properties Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 283) (resigned in November 2012), a company listed on the main
board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Prior to joining
the Company, Professor Huang was a professor of Beijing University of
Posts and Telecommunications and worked in a number of research
organization in China.
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Mr. Zhou Dengchao

Mr. Zhou, aged 39, was appointed as an executive Director in
December 2008 and is a member of Corporate Governance
Committee. He is responsible for the general operation of the Group.
Mr. Zhou graduated from Wuhan University of Technology with a major
in Accountancy. Mr. Zhou has over 10 years of experience in financial
management. Prior to joining the Company, he had worked in the
group of Goldin Properties Holdings Limited (stock code: 283).

Ms. Hou Qin

Ms. Hou, aged 35, was appointed as a non-executive Director in
December 2008 and re-designated as an executive Director in June
2009. She is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
She furthered her study in Jinan University with a major in Financial
Management following her graduation from a professional college in
Guangdong province. She holds a postgraduate diploma in Corporate
Finance and Investment Management from The University of Hong
Kong. Prior to joining the Company, Ms. Hou was responsible for
financial management for the group of Goldin Properties Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 283) from 1996 to 2008. She garnered her
extensive experience in financial management and electronics industry
in China.

Ms. Hui Wai Man, Shirley

Ms. Hui, aged 46, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director in June 2006. She is also the chairman of the audit committee
of the Company and a member of the remuneration committee and
nomination committee of the Company. Ms. Hui is a practising
accountant in Hong Kong. She has over 20 years of professional
experience in public accounting and corporate finance. She is a fellow
of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries. Ms. Hui is a non-executive director and
chairman of Eco-Tek Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8169) and an
independent non-executive director of New Media Group Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 708), she was an independent non-executive
director of Freeman Financial Corporate Limited (Stock Code: 279)
(resigned on 22 September 2010), all of which are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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Mr. Tang Yiu Wing

Mr. Tang, aged 46, was appointed an independent non-executive
Director in September 2006. He is also the Chairman of the
remuneration committee of the Company and a member of the audit
committee of the Company. Mr. Tang is a practising solicitor in Hong
Kong. He holds a bachelor’s degree in Laws, a postgraduate certificate
in Laws from The University of Hong Kong and a master’s degree in
Laws from The City University of Hong Kong. He is a member of The
Law Society of Hong Kong and is admitted as a solicitor of the
Supreme Court of England and Wales and a barrister and solicitor of
the Supreme Court of Tasmania.

Ms. Gao Min

Ms. Gao, aged 38, was appointed an independent non-executive
Director in November 2012. She is also a member of the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Ms. Gao is a partner of BDO China Shu
Lun Pan Certified Public Accountants LLP (“BDO”). She graduated from
Shanghai University of Finance and Economics with major in investment
management and holds a master’s degree in business administration
from Fudan University. Prior to joining BDO, Ms. Gao was an audit
manager of Shenzhen Dahua CPAs and chief financial officer of a
private corporation in China. Ms. Gao has over 10 years of professional
experience in public accounting. She is a member of The Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ms. Gao is proficient in
financial management, auditing and consulting for public corporations
in China.
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The board of directors (the “Board” or the “Directors”) of Goldin
Financial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) recognizes the importance of maintaining a
high standard of corporate governance to protect and enhance the
benefits of shareholders. The Board and senior management of the
Company recognize their responsibility to maintain the interest of the
shareholders and to enhance their value. The Board also believes a
deliberate policy of corporate governance can facilitate the Company’s
in rapid growth under a healthy governance structure and strengthen
the confidence of shareholders and investors.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Board periodically reviews the corporate governance practices of
the Company to ensure that the practices continue to meet the
requirements of the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the “CG Code”) set out in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). The requirements of the CG
Code have been revised and taken effect from 1 April 2012. The
Company has applied the principles of the CG Code.

For the year ended 30 June 2013, the Company has complied with the
code provisions of the CG Code except for deviation from code
provisions A.2.1 and A.4.1 of the CG Code.

The CG Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer (“CEOQ”) should be separated and should not be
performed by the same individual. The Company does not at present
have any officer with the title CEO. The daily operation and
management of the Company is monitored by the executive directors
as well as the senior management. The Board considers the present
structure is more suitable for the Company because it can promote the
efficient formulation and implementation of the Company’s strategies.
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The CG Code provision A.4.1 stipulates that, non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. None of
the existing non-executive directors of the Company are appointed for
a specific term but are subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years at the Company’s annual general meeting in
accordance with the provisions of the bye-laws of the Company. The
Board believes that such practice will offer stability at the Board level
while at the same time, independence is safeguarded by the necessary
rotation, retirement and re-election procedures which involves
shareholders’ approval. As such, the Board considers that such
provisions are sufficient to meet the underlying objectives of the relevant
provisions of the CG Code.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted its own Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors (“Own Code”), which is on terms no less
exacting than those set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. The Own Code is sent to each
director of the Company on his/her initial appointment and from time to
time when it is amended or restated. To date, no incident of non-
compliance of the Own Code by the directors has been noted by the
Company.

Upon specific enquiry by the Company Secretary of the Company, all
directors of the Company have confirmed that they have complied with
the required standards set out in Model Code throughout the year
ended 30 June 2013.

Directors and Officers Liability Insurance

Promoting good corporate governance and managing enterprise-wide
risk is a top priority of the Company. The Company is convinced that
corporate governance and Directors and Officers Liability Insurance (the
“D&O Insurance”) complement each other. The Company has arranged
appropriate D&O Insurance coverage on Directors’ and officers’
liabilities in respect of legal actions against directors and senior
management arising from corporate activities. The D&O Insurance will
be reviewed and renewed annually.
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The Board

The board currently comprises five executive directors, one non-
executive director and three independent non-executive
directors, serving the important function of guiding the
management. Independent non-executive directors constitute
one-third of the Board. The Company has fully complied with the
requirement in related to independent non-executive director
setout in Rules 3.10 of Listing Rules. The biographical details of
each Directors are set out on pages 17 to 21. The Board
comprises a balance of skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the Company’s business. The Directors of the
Company possess legal, management, finance and accounting
professional qualifications with great experience in diversified
business.

The Board members up to the date of the annual report were:

Non-executive director and Chairman of the Board
Mr. Pan Sutong

Executive directors
Mr. Lee Chi Chung, Harvey
Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Helvin
Professor Huang Xiaojian
Mr. Zhou Dengchao

Ms. Hou Qin

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Tso Hon Sai, Bosco
(resigned on 15 November 2012)
Ms. Hui Wai Man, Shirley
Mr. Tang Yiu Wing
Ms. Gao Min
(appointed on 15 November 2012)

None of the members of the Board is related to one another.

During the year, the Board at all times met the requirements of
the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive directors with at least one
independent non-executive director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise.
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All independent non-executive directors are financially
independent from the Company and any of its subsidiaries. The
Company has received written annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Accordingly,
the Company considers all independent non-executive directors
to be independent.

The Board is responsible for formulating the overall strategic
business development, reviewing and monitoring the
performance of the Group, as well as preparing and approving
financial statements. The directors, collectively and individually,
are aware of their responsibilities to shareholders, for the manner
in which the affairs of the Company are managed and operated.
In the appropriate circumstances and when necessary, directors
will consent to the seeking of independent professional advice at
the Group’s expense, ensuring that all procedures of the Board,
and all applicable rules and regulations, are followed.

All non-executive directors of the Board are not involved directly
in the daily management. All of them have expertise in particular
area that they can advise the Board. Those non-executive
directors are expected to give their independent view on the
deliberations of the Board and ensure the financial probity on the
part of the Company maintain in high standards. The independent
non-executive directors of the Board are helping to ensure the
interests of all shareholders.

For the year ended 30 June 2013, the Board:

reviewed the performance of the Group and formulated

business strategy of the Group;

ii. reviewed and approved the annual and interim results of
the Group;

ii. reviewed the internal controls of the Group;

iv. reviewed and approved the general mandates to issue and
repurchase shares of the Company;

V. reviewed and approved the price-sensitive transactions;

Vi. reviewed and approved the discloseable transactions of
the Company;
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vii.  reviewed and approved the auditors’ remuneration and
recommend the re-appointment of Ernst & Young as the
external independent auditors of the Group respectively;
and

vii.  reviewed the Shareholders Communication Policy.

To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no financial,
business and family relationship among our directors nor the
chairman and the chief executives. All of them are free to exercise
their independent judgment.

Mr. Pan Sutong is the Chairman of the Board and has assumed
the responsibility to manage the Board, ensuring all directors
receive adequate information in a timely manner and properly
briefed on issues arising at Board meetings.

The Company has no such title as the chief executive officer and
therefore the daily operation and management of the Company is
monitored by the executive directors as well as the senior
management. The Board is of the view that although there is no
chief executive officer, the balance of power and authority is
ensured by the operation of the Board, which comprises
experienced individuals and meet from time to time to discuss
issues affecting the operation of the Company.

The Directors are responsible for preparing the accounts of each
financial period, which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows for that
period. The Directors also ensure that the financial statements of
the Group are prepared in accordance with the statutory
requirements and applicable accounting policies.
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In preparing the financial statements, the directors consider that
the financial statements of the Group are prepared on a going
concern basis and appropriate accounting policies have been
consistently applied. The directors have also made judgments
and estimates that are prudent and reasonable in the preparation
of the financial statements.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company
about their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is
set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 55 to 56.

In addition to the financial statements of the Group, the Company
Secretary has provided all members of the board with monthly
updates which include the information of the Group’s
performance, position and prospects in accordance with the
code provision C.1.2 of CG Code.

The internal control system has been designed to safeguard the
assets of the Company, maintaining proper accounting records,
execution with appropriate authority and compliance of the
relevant laws and regulations.

The management has carried out periodic review of the
implementation and procedures of the internal control systems,
including areas covered accounting, business and legal
compliance. The scope of review was discussed with and agreed
by the audit committee of the Company. An internal control
report of the Company has been reported to the Board. In
addition to the periodic review, the management will conduct any
special review as required.

The Board is responsible for implementing the system of internal
controls and reviewing its effectiveness. The Board is also
responsible for reviewing and considering the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programs
and budget of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting
function annually. For the year under review, the Board
considered that the Company’s internal control system is
adequate and effective.
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The Group makes great efforts to enhance the communication
with investors. From time to time, the website of the Company
(www.goldinfinancial.com) contains updated information of the
Group and press releases are posted on the Company’s website
in a timely manner. Shareholders can also visit the Company’s
website for updated information of the Group.

The Company has established a shareholders communication
policy which is reviewed by the Board on regular basis to ensure
its effectiveness.

The Company has complied with the Listing Rules regarding the
requirements about voting by poll and keeps shareholders
informed of the procedures for voting by poll through notices of
general meetings in circulars of the Company to shareholders
from time to time.

During the year, the Company had held an annual general
meeting for the financial year ended 30 June 2012 (the “2012
AGM?”), Chairman and external auditors had attended that annual
general meeting to answer shareholders’ enquiries. The Board is
committed to providing business information of the Company to
the investors through timely publication of interim and annual
results and reports. The publications of the Company, including
financial reports, circulars and announcements, are also available
for download from the website of the Company.

During the year, the Company held five full Board meetings. The
attendance of each Director is as follows:

REBHRAOMABEIZEE ZEB - AQF
#8 uk (www.goldinfinancial.com) 1~ B & &, & 8
REBZHEMER  WHEBENRARRHE
U 1) & 57 B Fe o AR 3R I8 A] B AN R B A Uk
NIEREEZHER -

ARFEHTRREBRR THEES
TE AR T BEAR EL AR

ARAERBBRERRTECDET LD
ARANRTE - I B 8 B A R B M BN AR
NRABHZBRAEEE  BRRABR
RBRERRZEF - ARBIRE HFT X
ROBBIRE-

RAFE ARRRBE_ZT—Z_F <A
“THELEVBREERITT —ABRRAFK
g(ZE—ZFRRRBFRGD - ETEK
INEZEME EEZREBET ARG UEE
BREIEE -EEERAHABEB QB 2T
HREEzEERRE AREERES
BARRZEBKER - ARARAZHY B
EHBEHRE BRHRAHE  HARKD
Tz @I TH -

RAEE ARRBRTAREREFS
BHBEFZHEBROT

Attendance (Number of meetings)

o FE R0 &% (E28BRE)

Non-executive directors and Chairman B TEEREE

Mr. Pan Sutong EERBITE 3(5)
Executive directors BITES

Mr. Lee Chi Chung, Harvey THALE 4(5)
Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Helvin mERKLAE 5(5)
Professor Huang Xiaojian BEEEYR 5(5)
Mr. Zhou Dengchao BAEBEE 4(5)
Ms. Hou Qin BEELZ L 4(5)
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Attendance (Number of meetings)
i FE 52 8% (EBRE)
Independent non-executive directors BYFHITES
Mr. Tso Hon Sai, Bosco EEELA

(resigned on 15 November 2012) (RZB—=—F+—A+HRB®HMDI 1(2)
Ms. Hui Wai Man, Shirley RS T 5(5)
Mr. Tang Yiu Wing BBk 5(5)
Ms. Gao Min =t

(appointed on 15 November 2012) (RZZE—=ZF+—A+HBEZF) 12)

Board Committees

EEEZ8Y

The Board has also established the following committees with defined ZBEE€ 2K (VI EE€ KEREZEH

terms of reference:

— Audit Committee

— Remuneration Committee

— Nomination Committee

— Corporate Governance Committee

Each Board Committee makes decisions on matters within its terms of &&=
reference and applicable limits of authority. The terms of reference as = & {E
well as the structure and membership of each committee will be  K&pk &

reviewed from time to time.

Audit Committee

B

S%'r
Rii3
i3
11
e
= wm
Z
eI
ok
_‘_

BEREESg

The audit committee has three members, all of whom are independent i EZES B H=-NKEAK @ 219 5B
non-executive directors. Ms. Hui Wai Man, Shirley is the Chairman of j 3!5 HITES - FEHRLITAERZTES X

Audit Committee and she has appropriate professional qualifications, CWEAEAREEERIUARS T REBEIE
accounting and related financial management expertise. ﬁ BERME -
Ms. Hui Wai Man, Shirley (Chairman of Audit Committee) TR LT (FEZLTESTE)
Ms. Gao Min %@kﬁ:t
(appointed on 15 November 2012) R—ZE——F+—A+HBEZT)
Mr. Tang Yiu Wing B R & 5‘5 &
Mr. Tso Hon Sai, Bosco HEBELAE
(resigned on 15 November 2012) (RZF—=ZF+—ATEHBEET)

F352012-13 EBESE(EBE)BRAA
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The key responsibilities of the Audit Committee include:

make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditors;
approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditors; and deal with any questions arising from
resignation or dismissal of that external auditors.

review and monitor the external auditors’ independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standard.

develop and implement policy on the engagement of an
external auditors to supply non-audit services.

ERZESTERERR

REME BENERERIMNS R ME
EEREES  HES BB Z B
& RBRER AREERZINEZ
BB B (F 3078 7 1B T 5l 2 AT

=)
éc

RIBERBEERN RERIEER
iz BIMEREBENAREZER
ZAEBME -

HE & B A BB AN S AX LA 2
HIFBERIG 2 BK -

iv.  review the interim and annual financial statements before v. HEREECEXNEHFHEEF
submission to the Board. IS -

v.  discuss problems and reservations arising from the interim V. P HENRFREZEBL FEj
review and final audit, and any matters the auditors may BRIFGEZR - AR EE % B3
wish to discuss. 2R EIE -

vi. review the external auditors’ management letters and vi. SN EREM ERBRHERE
management’s response. BEEL 2 Bl E -

vii.  review the Group’s internal control system. Vi BRI ARB 2 NEBEEIE R AR

vii. — consider the major findings of internal investigations and vii, EEEZNBACERREEEZ
management’s response. [o] fE o

During the vyear, the Company held three audit committee NAREE  KAFYRBIT=Z2KAEXZEZTES

meetings. The attendance of each member is as follows: eH SKELEBRIOT :

Attendance (Number of meetings)

i FE 52 8% (BBXRE)

Committee Members ZEENE

Ms. Hui Wai Man, Shirley FEH AL 3(3)

Ms. Gao Min %@kﬁi

(appointed on 15 November 2012) (RZE—=—F+—ATHAEZE) 12
Mr. Tang Yiu Wing s 5‘& % 2(3)
Mr. Tso Hon Sai, Bosco EEBEAA

(resigned on 15 November 2012) (R=ZZ—=F+—ATHBEET 1(1)

Goldin Financial Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2012-13



For the year ended 30 June 2013, the Audit committee reviewed
the Group’s interim and annual results and the internal control
system.

The audit committee members had also met with external
auditors to discuss the general scope of their works for the
financial year ended 30 June 2013.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently consists of three independent
non-executive directors. A set of terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee is available on the Stock Exchange’s website
and the Company’s website. The Remuneration Committee shall make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration package of
individual executive directors and senior management.

Mr. Tang Yiu Wing (Chairman of Remuneration Committee)
Ms. Hui Wai Man, Shirley
Ms. Gao Min
(appointed on 15 November 2012)
Mr. Tso Hon Sai, Bosco
(resigned on 15 November 2012)

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for:

making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all remuneration of directors and
senior management and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedures for developing policy on such
remuneration.

i determining the specific remuneration packages of all
executive directors and senior management and making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive directors.

. reviewing and approving performance-based remuneration
by reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by
the Board from time to time.

RBE-Z-—=F"A=TRHILFE &
&i%@e%ﬁ$%IZ$%&EE%%
VA Ko ) BB B2 ¥ R AR

EBERZBEEXEINE HEINEZ BAD 5 5 1
EREBE_TE—Z=ZFANAZTHLUVHKF
ER—RIE&E -
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FNEESRAIB =B UIERITESTEN -
%M%EQZW%ﬁEEWﬂ%%“%%ﬁ&
AR A AL M§AEW§$A EEBT
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HWREEE (FHESESEE)
FEH LT

SE Gt
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EEBEA
(R=—ZT——F+—A+HBBED

¥FMEERTERA:

RARAEERGREEEZER

FHBREEE EARIERMA
%%kaV%J% EEHBBGR - @
ExglRbgas-

i HBIEXRATEERGAEEEZ
BARFMAS  UHMFERTEREZH
MraEEgRbER -

i. 2ZEFTCLIBRFRAZAFTAREN
B i R ERRBE Z2H
B o
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iv. reviewing and approving the compensation payable to
executive directors and senior management in connection
with any loss or termination of their office or appointment.

V. reviewing and approving compensation arrangements
relating to the dismissal or removal of Directors for
misconduct.

Vi. ensuring that no Director is involved in deciding his own
remuneration.

During the year, the Company held two remuneration committee
meetings. The attendance rate of the remuneration committee
meeting during the year was 100%. The attendance of each
member is as follows:

V. R E R B B AE (98 K A A TS
S E B 01T 8 R B AR R
B2 i -

v. BEORMEBBRESTERITR/KEM
fRERSER ZBELH-

Vi HREEYESEBIHEHAS ZFH
B o

RAFE ARRGRITMAGHEZES
SH - THEESERNAFEL R RE
100% °c X BEHFBIBRAT ¢

Attendance (Number of meetings)
i FE 72 8% (B3R E)
Committee Members FZEBRE
Mr. Tang Yiu Wing BB ek 2(2)
Ms. Hui Wai Man, Shirley FEHL L 2(2)
Ms. Gao Min =zt

(appointed on 15 November 2012) (RZFE—=ZF+—ATHBEZE) N/ATiE A
Mr. Tso Hon Sai, Bosco EEBELA

(resigned on 15 November 2012) (R=ZZE—=F+—ATHBET) 1(1)

For the year ended 30 June 2013, the Remuneration Committee
reviewed the existing remuneration policy and structure for the
executive directors and had made recommendation to the Board
on their remuneration packages.

The Directors are the members of senior management of the
Group. The details of remuneration payable to the Directors are
set out on note 11 to the financial statements.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee is established on 23 March 2012, and
currently consists of the Chairman of the Board and two independent
non-executive Directors. A set of terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee is available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the
Company’s website.
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RBEZZT-—=ZFXA=ZTHLFE %
WEZEeCRIMTETZIRITHFMBER
ERB YOREEZHFHEANESS
RHE-

EERAKECSRERERE - BHR
EEFMzFBER T BmRMEI -

REZES®

RAZEENIUN-_ZTE—-F=A=-+=8"
B mEFS IR AMUBIFRATESA
KelRBZEGZBERED T ENBXAMHE
Uh R AN B A e



The Nomination Committee is collectively responsible for the nomination
and selection of a director. Proposed new directors are selected based
on skills and experience that will enable them to make positive
contribution to the performance of the Board. The Nomination
Committee also reviews its structure, size and composition regularly to
ensure that the Board has a balance of skills and experience for
providing effective leadership to the Company.

Mr. Pan Sutong (Chairman of Nomination Committee)
Ms. Hui Wai Man, Shirley
Ms. Gao Min

(appointed on 15 November 2012)

Mr. Tso Hon Sai, Bosco

(resigned on 15 November 2012)

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for:

reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board on a regular
basis and making recommendations to the Board
regarding any proposed changes to the Board members to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy.

identifying individuals suitably qualified to become board
members, and selecting or making recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated by
shareholders or the Nomination Committee for
directorships.

assessing the independence of the independent non-
executive directors.

making recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of directors
and succession planning for directors in particular the
chairman and the chief executive.
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During the year, the Company held one nomination committee
meeting. The attendance rate of the nomination committee

RARFEE ARABRIT-RREZES
R -REZEGERRAFRELFEERE

meeting during the year was 100%. The attendance of each 100% ° KB HFEIBRAT :

member is as follows:

Attendance (Number of meetings)
i FE 52 8% (EEBRE)
Committee Members ZEERE
Mr. Pan Sutong EERIBITE 1(1)
Ms. Hui Wai Man, Shirley RS 1(1)
Ms. Gao Min ST S

(appointed on 15 November 2012) (R=ZZE—=—F+—ATHBREZF) N/ATE A
Mr. Tso Hon Sai, Bosco EEBEEA

(resigned on 15 November 2012) R=ZZE—=F+—A+HRB&ED N/AT 3

For the year ended 30 June 2013, the nomination committee
considered the appointment of an independent non-executive
director and assessed the profile of the candidate.

The nomination committee also reviewed the structure, size and

composition of the Board.

Corporate Governance Committee

The Corporate Governance Committee established on 23 March 2012,
currently consists of the Chairman of the Board and two executive
Directors. A set of terms of reference of the Corporate Governance
Committee is available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the

Company’s website.

Mr. Pan Sutong (Chairman of Corporate Governance Committee)

Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Helvin
Mr. Zhou Dengchao
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The Corporate Governance Committee is mainly responsible for:

developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and making
recommendations to the Board.

reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management.

reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements.

TCEERZBEIEREA:
BRI R A AR Z BEEIARRK

RER YREFSROES-

RO REEREERSRE
YRS EELEE -

BE 15

B RERARREE
ETHNBRNMER -

THEERE

iv.  developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct v. HE RAREREEREFEAZ
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees EESTRIRERFM@IAE) -
and directors.
v.  reviewing the Company’s compliance with the code and V. BEAQRETFTTHMNBERRED
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report. B OmMENNIEEERIE -
During the year, the Company held two corporate governance RARFEE  ARAISBITMADEERE
committee meetings. The attendance of each member is as BEggm SHEHNEBROT
follows:
Attendance (Number of meetings)
o FE 52 8% (EERE)
Committee Members ZEgRE
Mr. Pan Sutong EERLE 2(2)
Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Helvin BEEEEE 2(2)
Mr. Zhou Dengchao AEBEE 12)
For the year ended 30 June 2013, the Corporate Governance HE_Z—=ZF"A=Z1THLFE %
Committee reviewed the corporate governance report and the EREEBCLBHLEERMERSES
training records of each of the Directors. 2 E I EDEE o

FH2012-13 =iEEE (EE) R A A

35



36

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
dioe Y1k e

Independent Auditors

Emst & Young was reappointed as independent auditors of the
Company at the 2012 AGM. It is the auditors’ responsibility to form an
independent opinion, based on their audit, on those financial
statements and to report their opinion solely to the Company and for
no other purpose. They do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of the independent
auditors’ report.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
“Independent Auditors’ Report” on pages 55 to 56.

During the year under review, the professional fees paid/payable to the
Company’s independent auditors, Ernst & Young are set out as follows:

B BE

R-B-——_FRRBFAEL ZKEME
BREERAARB B AZHUAE ZBEZE
TRBBHEHERERSEVBRRERBILE
R UERAARRIRSE - KFH 508 L% B
BEZAST HEMEMBATBIEREREELR
R

AABBLIZEME T BEREMELZFRE
EEH HNFELE6E 2 [BURBARE] -

REEFE BN A QBT &A% K
SR EBMCEXEREIWT

HK$'000

F# T

Audit services BRI 3,100
Non-audit services IEEZRG 1,625
4,725

Responsibilities in respect of the Financial
Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare the financial
statements for each financial period which give a true and fair view of
the financial affairs of the Group.

Directors’ Training

According to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the
board remains informed and relevant.
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The Company has arranged and funded suitable training, placing an
appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of a listed
company director. The Company Secretarial Department of the
Company has provided relevant reading materials to the Directors to
ensure that they are apprised of the latest changes in the commercial,
legal and regulatory requirements in relation to the Company’s
businesses, and to refresh their knowledge and skills. In addition, all
Directors are encouraged to attend external forum or training course on
relevant topics. During the year, all Directors of the Company had
provided their training records to the Company Secretary. The Board
has delegated the power to Corporate Governance Committee to
review and monitor the continuous professional development of the
Directors.

Company Secretary

According to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, the Company Secretary of
the Company has taken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training for the financial year ended 30 June 2013.

Shareholders’ Rights

The annual general meetings provides a channel for communication
between the Board and the shareholders. The Group makes great
efforts to enhance the communication with shareholders. The
shareholders can visit the website of the Company (www.
goldinfinancial.com) for updated information of the Group and press
releases are posted on our website in a timely manner.

Shareholders may request the Company to convene a general meeting
according to the provision as set out in the Company’s Bye-Laws and
the Companies Act of Bermuda. A copy of the Company’s Bye-Laws
can be found on the Company’s website. The procedures for
shareholders to nominate a person for election as a director of the
Company is available on the Company’s website with title “Procedures
for Shareholders to Nominate Candidate for Election as Director”.
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In order to ensure the effective communication between the
Shareholders and the Board, the Company has established a set of
Shareholders Communication Policy (“Policy”) which is reviewed on a
regular basis to ensure its effectiveness. According to the Policy, the
information of the Group shall be communicated to Shareholders
through the interim reports, annual reports, circulars, the annual general
meetings and other general meetings as well as press releases and all
announcements posted on the Company’s website. Shareholders may
at any time make a request for the Company’s information to the extent
such information is publicly available. Any questions shall be directed to
the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong or at the
Company’s website.

The Company also adopted a set of procedures for putting forward
proposals by the shareholders at general meetings.

Shareholders who wish to put forward their proposals at general
meetings must possess the following qualifications:

(@ hold at least 5% of the total number of shares of the Company
as at the date of submitting the proposal. Collective number of
shares can be from a single person or multiple shareholders.

(b)  hold shares of the Company at the proportion as stated in clause
(a) above for the period of 12 consecutive months commencing
from the date of first acquisition until the date of proposal.

The proposals must be made in writing. Each proposal must (i) state
the objects of the proposal, (i) be signed by the proposer(s), and (i) be
posted and deposited at the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong for attention of the Company Secretary.

The Board shall review and examine each proposal proposed by the
shareholder(s) who possess(es) the qualifications stated above
(“Proposal”). The factors to be considered by the Board shall include

but not limited to the following:

(i) the scope of the shareholder’s right;
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(ii) notice period required to be given to the shareholders if the
Board considers that it is appropriate to put forward the Proposal
at a general meeting;

@iy any other factor(s) which the Board may consider fit or
appropriate to be relevant for its consideration.

If the Board is of the view that it is appropriate to put forward the
Proposal at a general meeting and there is sufficient time to give not
less than eleven (11) business days’ written notice to the shareholders
prior to the nearest general meeting (“Nearest General Meeting”), the
Board will include the Proposal in the agenda of the Nearest General
Meeting of the Company so as to give the shareholders at least ten (10)
business days’ notice to consider the Proposal in accordance with
Listing Rule 13.73.

If the Board is of the view that it is appropriate to put forward the
Proposal at a general meeting but there is not sufficient time to give not
less than eleven (11) business days’ written notice to the shareholders
prior to the Nearest General Meeting, the Board shall have the
discretion to include such Proposals in the agenda of the general
meeting immediately next to the Nearest General Meeting so as to give
the shareholders at least ten (10) business days’ notice to consider the
Proposal in accordance with Listing Rule 13.73.

If the Board is of the view that it is not appropriate to put forward the
Proposal at a general meeting, the Board will direct the Company
Secretary to advise the proposer(s) of this outcome accordingly.

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their shareholdings to
the Company’s branch share registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited. Other
shareholders’ enquiries can be directed to the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong for the attention of the Company
Secretary.

Investor Relations

The Company’s website (www.goldinfinancial.com) provides
comprehensive and accessible news and information of the Company
to the Shareholders, other stakeholders and investors. The Company
will also update the website information from time to time to inform
Shareholders and investors of the latest development of the Company.
This practice is essential for building market confidence.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
B

The board of directors (the “Board” or the “Directors”) of Goldin
Financial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) herein present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 30
June 2013.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 20 to the
financial statements.

Results and Dividend

The Group’s profit for the year ended 30 June 2013 and the state of
affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in the

financial statements on pages 57 to 170.

The Board does not recommend the payment of dividend.

Share Capital and Share Options

Details of the movements in the share capital and the share options of
the Company during the year are set out in notes 33 and 34 to the
financial statements.

Five-year Financial Summary

A summary of the results for the year and of the assets and liabilities of

the Group as at 30 June 2013 and for the last four financial periods are
set out on page 172.

Reserves

Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during the year
are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and in
note 35 to the financial statements, respectively.
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Distributable Reserves

As at 30 June 2013, the Company had no reserves available for
distribution.

Property, Plant and Equipment and
Investment Property

Movements in the property, plant and equipment and investment
property of the Group during the year are set out in notes 16 and 17 to
the financial statements, respectively.

Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report are as follows:

Mr. Pan Sutong

Mr. Lee Chi Chung, Harvey
Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Helvin
Professor Huang Xiaojian
Mr. Zhou Dengchao

Ms. Hou Qin

Ms. Hui Wai Man, Shirley

Mr. Tang Yiu Wing

Ms. Gao Min (appointed on 15 November 2012)

Mr. Tso Hon Sai, Bosco (resigned on 15 November 2012)
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In accordance with Bye-laws 99 and 102(B) of the Bye-laws, Ms. Hou
Qin, Professor Huang Xiaojian and Ms. Gao Min shall retire by rotation
and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

The directors of the Company, including the independent non-executive
directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with the
provisions of the Bye-laws of the Company.

Biographical details of the directors and the senior management of the
Group are set out on pages 17 to 21.

Change in Information of Directors

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, (i) Mr. Tso Hon Sai,
Bosco had retired as an independent non-executive director of the
Company (“INED”) and resigned as member of audit committee,
remuneration committee and nomination committee of the Company
with effect from the conclusion of annual general meeting of the
Company held on 15 November 2012; (i) Ms. Gao Min has been
appointed as an INED and a member of audit committee, remuneration
committee and nomination committee of the Company with effect from
the conclusion of annual general meeting of the Company held on 15
November 2012; and (i) Professor Huang Xiaojian has been re-
designated from a non-executive director of the Company to an
executive director of the Company with effect from 30 November 2012.

Save as disclosed above, there are no changes of directors’
biographical details required to be disclosed since the date of the
2011/12 annual report of the Company.

Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices.

Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by the

Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 22
to 39.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests EENESTHABEBZEHE
in Securities =

As at 30 June 2013, the interests or short positions of the directorsof R—-—ZE—=FXA=+H AAFEERALQ
the Company in the shares and underlying shares of the Company or F R EF B EZB(TERBAE LB E KM
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the ([ %5 R HIEEH]) EXVEL) 2 Ik D R BB I& 7%
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) as recorded in the register m#EHE T3 28N A QD Al IR IE F 5 & H & 15 1
required to be kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO or E 352K BT HFBE 2 &Mk BiE FH =T A
as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of EZ#ETESX H2ZETR|([{2%<r8]) A
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model HE@AAFIREBHAXSHAR DA ([HR
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the — Fff]) z #Ezs sk 2 -

“Model Code”) were as follows:

Number of ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each held

FIEEREEIOETZEEREE
Number of
underlying
shares held
Corporate under equity
Name of director Personal interest interest derivates Total Percentage
RERAITE
IEFFHEEBE
EERE BARERE EEER ROEE st Aot
(note i)
(B &£
Mr. Pan Sutong 188,755,000 4,716,995,634 — 4,900,750,634 70.26
EERBETE (note ii) (F&Eii)
Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Helvin — — 3,000,000 3,000,000 0.04
=EZR AL
Mr. Zhou Dengchao 1,000,000 — 3,000,000 4,000,000 0.06
BEEE
Ms. Hou Qin 1,560,000 — 3,000,000 4,560,000 0.07
BEE x4
Notes: B EE
The interests in the underlying shares represented share options granted . HARND ZEEARRARTHREESTEAE
by the Company to these directors as beneficial owners, the details of HHAAN) CERRE EFBEHN T X ERE
which are set out in the section below headed “Share Option Scheme”. &l —&n e
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ii. The 4,716,995,634 shares of the Company comprise () 4,473,545,636
shares in the Company held by Goldin Global Holdings Limited (“GGH”),
43,390,000 shares in the Company held by Clear Jade International
Limited and 200,059,998 shares in the Company held by Goldin Equities
Limited, which are wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Pan Sutong (“Mr.
Pan”), a non-executive Director and the chairman of the Board. GGH is a
wholly owned subsidiary and hence a controlled corporation of Goldin
Investment Holdings Limited (“Goldin Investment”). Goldin Investment is a
wholly owned subsidiary and hence a controlled corporation of Goldin
Real Estate Financial Holdings Limited (“Goldin Real Estate Financial”).
Goldin Real Estate Financial is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Pan.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2013, none of the directors or
chief executives of the Company had any interests or short positions in
any shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required
to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code of the
Listing Rules.

Discloseable Interests and Short Positions
of Substantial Shareholders/Other Persons
Under the SFO

As at 30 June 2013, the long positions of persons, other than Directors
or Chief executive of the Company, being 5% or more in the interest in
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under section 336 of the SFO, were as follows:

i, 4,716,995,634 8 AN A B J& 15 B 3 () B &= SR IR BRI
fRERAR([EIRERIK]) 3FH 24,473,545,636
EARARI KRG ABREBEERAAFAELZ
43,390,000 AR BB kE =R (FEHF)BRA
A]#AH 2200,059,998 % A QAR5 - ZFE A A
HHIANTESRESSEIRBEHRBAE(E
EEDEEEHB o RRARBEER
BERAR(RBRENDZEZEKBRAR - 8IF
BEZARZZES LB - s R EASRER
wEEBRARAR(RESME) Z22E&H
BRA MITAZARZZENEIE - 2 E£E
WENHELEREERHS -

BREXHBEEEN R_TE-—=F A=+
B BEARAEEFHIERTRABRRARA]

Z AL  ABBBRR(D R 8 55 oh 1 (7 35
KR GE % R EH R HE B EXVIR) i 8
RIS R DI B2 AT E 2 B R
- SR EWARA 2 EETAANE AR A
RH 5 -

w=
RHE KA FE3[6HEIFE 2 5Lz T3
AT (TBEBEARTEEIERTHEAB)RA
NAB% A L2 RID PR I & a
Percentage of
issued share

Capacity in which such capital of

Name of shareholder interest is held Number of shares the Company

HARRBE BT

RRER BEERSH R4 B E RAEEBDE

Goldin Global Holdings Limited Corporate 4,473,545,636 64.14%
BIRIBRHIERBER A F el

Save as disclosed above and those disclosed under “Directors’ and
Chief Executives’ Interests in Securities”, as at 30 June 2013, the
Company had not been notified of any parties having an interests of 5%
or more of in the shares or underlying shares of the Company or having
short position which are required to be recorded in the register required
to be kept under Section 336 of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance.
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As at 30 June 2013, the Company had not been notified of any short
positions being held by any substantial shareholder in shares or
underlying shares of the Company, which are required to be recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance.

During the year and up to the date of this report, to the best knowledge
of the directors, Mr. Pan Sutong, being the non-executive director and
the Chairman of the Board, wholly and beneficially owned the entire
issued share capital of Goldin Financial Global Square Limited which is
the owner of a 11-storey industrial building having a gross floor area of
approximately 311,700 square feet (excluding car parking spaces)
located in Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong.

Save as the disclosed above, none of the directors and their respective
associates were considered to have any interests in the businesses
which compete or were likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the businesses of the Group.

During the year, the Group had transactions with related companies in
which a Director has controlling interests, details of which are set out in
note 42 to the financial statements and the sections headed “Connected
Transaction” and “Continuing Connected Transactions”.

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has an unexpired service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
employing company within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

The Board are authorised to fix the Directors’ remuneration at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Board with
reference to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the
results of the Group.
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Pursuant to an agreement dated 31 October 2011 between Smart
Edge Limited (“Smart Edge”), a 60% indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company and Goldin Properties (Construction
Management) Limited (“GPCM”), a company indirectly wholly-owned by
Goldin Properties Holdings Limited (“GPHL”), GPCM provides project
management services for the construction and development of the
Group’s investment property located in Hong Kong. Mr. Pan (personally
and through his wholly-owned companies) is beneficially interested in
approximately 64.81% of the issued share capital of GPHL as at 30
June 2013. The agreement may be terminated by either party, subject
to not less than two months, written notice. During the year, the
Company paid a fee of HK$2,340,000 under this agreement.

On 31 May 2012, Mr. Pan acquired the entire equity interest in Goal
Eagle Limited (“GEL”). Following the acquisition, Smart Edge Limited (a
joint venture company holding a piece of land parcel known as New
Kowloon Inland Lot No. 6314, located at Kowloon Bay with a total site
area approximately 6,600 square meters) is owned as to 60% by the
Company through Cheng Mei Holdings Limited (“CMHL”), a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, and as to 40% by Mr. Pan through
GEL, and the terms of the shareholders’ agreement dated 25 August
2011 (“Shareholders’ Agreement”) entered into between CMHL and
GEL would remain unchanged and continue to bind on each of CMHL
and GEL including option granted to GEL by CMHL to require CMHL to
sell to it or its associates certain number of shares in Smart Edge
Limited held by CMHL or (as the case may be) its associates in order to
increase GEL’s shareholding in Smart Edge Limited to an aggregate
percentage of not more than 50% in accordance with a specified
formula contained in the Shareholders’ Agreement.

Save as disclosed above and under the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” below, at no time during the year was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any other arrangements to enable the
Directors or chief executive or any of their spouse or children under 18
years of age to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in or debentures of the Company, its subsidiaries or any other body
corporate.
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On 28 January 2004, the shareholders of the Company approved the
adoption of the share option scheme (the “Scheme”). The purpose of
the Scheme is to provide incentives or rewards to participants
thereunder for their contribution to the Group and/or enable the Group
to recruit and retain high-calibre employees and attract human
resources that are valuable to the Group and any entity in which the
Group holds an equity interest (“Invested Entity”). Eligible participants of
the Scheme include mainly the directors, employees, suppliers of
goods or services, customers, shareholders, business partners and
professional advisers of the Company or any Invested Entity.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all share options to be granted under the Scheme is 332,090,952
shares of the Company (representing approximately 4.76% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this annual
report).

The maximum number of shares issuable under the share options to
each eligible participant in the Scheme within any 12-month period, is
limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting. The exercise period of the
share options granted is determinable by the directors, save that the
period commences on the date of which the offer is made and ends on
a date which is not later than 10 years from the date of the offer of the
share options subject to any provisions of the Scheme determining the
rights of the grantees. The offer of a grant of share option may be
accepted within 28 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a
nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the directors,
but may not be less than the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing
price of the Company’s shares on the date of the offer of the share
options; (i) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s
shares for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of the
offer and (jii) the nominal value of a share of the Company.

The Scheme became effective on 29 January 2004 and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from
that date.
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Details of movements in the options under the Scheme during the year 2% st 2B FHERENFERNAZESH LR EIRE
and options outstanding as at the beginning and end of the year are set R K ITFE 2 BEREEBEHY WO T :
out below:

Number of shares subject to options

BREFMSROROBE
Cancelled/
Granted lapsed Exercised As at
Name or category of Exercise Asat  during the during during 30 June
participant Date of grant price Exercise period 1 July 2012 year the year the year 2013
® »
ZE-ZF REXEFE REEE REFEE —ZT-=F%
SEABERER RHBH TEE TEH tA—H BRI BHH AN 2fTff AA=t+H
HK$ (Note)
BT i3]
Director
EE

Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Helvin ~ 22-07-2009 0.6540 22-01-2010 to 21-07-2019 1,000,000 - - — 1,000,000
BEZRAAE 22-07-2009 0.6540 22-01-2011 to 21-07-2019 1,000,000 — — — 1,000,000
22-07-2009 0.6540 22-01-2012 to 21-07-2019 1,000,000 — — — 1,000,000
Mr. Zhou Dengchao 22-07-2009 0.6540 22-01-2010 to 21-07-2019 1,000,000 — — — 1,000,000
EEBEE 22-07-2009 0.6540 22-01-2011 to 21-07-2019 1,000,000 — — — 1,000,000
22-07-2009 0.6540 22-01-2012 to 21-07-2019 1,000,000 — — — 1,000,000
Ms. Hou Qin 22-07-2009 0.6540 22-01-2010 to 21-07-2019 1,000,000 — — — 1,000,000
EEr+ 22-07-2009 0.6540 22-01-2011 to 21-07-2019 1,000,000 — — — 1,000,000
22-07-2009 0.6540 22-01-2012 to 21-07-2019 1,000,000 — — — 1,000,000
Employees and othersin  22-07-2009 0.6540 22-07-2009 to 21-07-2019 3,000,000 — — — 3,000,000
aggregate (including 22-07-2009 0.6540 22-01-2010 to 21-07-2019 1,000,000 — — — 1,000,000
a director of certain 22-07-2009 0.6540 22-01-2011 to 21-07-2019 1,000,000 — — — 1,000,000
subsidiaries) 22-07-2009 0.6540 22-01-2012 to 21-07-2019 1,000,000 — — — 1,000,000
EBERHEAM(GH) (BF  23-07-2009 0.6520 23-01-2010 to 22-07-2019 7,100,000 — — 60,000 7,040,000
ETHELARES) 23-07-2009 0.6520 23-01-2011 to 22-07-2019 7,560,000 — — 60,000 7,500,000
23-07-2009 0.6520 23-01-2012 to 22-07-2019 10,080,000 — — 80,000 10,000,000
39,740,000 - - 200,000 39,540,000

Note: The weighted average closing price of the Company’s shares traded on Mzt : B BREETEEAMREBIMEETNAR
the Stock Exchange immediately before the date on which the options ARMH BT KT ER1.29E T -
were exercised was HK$1.29.
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On 26 November 2012, Smart Edge as the borrower and Bank of
Communications Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Branch (“BOCC”) as the lender
had entered into a 4-year loan facility agreement (the “Loan
Agreement”) of up to an aggregate amount of HK$3,000 million, which
includes a term imposing specific performance obligation on the
controlling shareholder of the Company.

Pursuant to the Loan Agreement, Smart Edge agrees that Mr. Pan (who
is the chairman of the board of directors and controlling shareholder of
the Company) shall beneficially own at all times (i) not less than 40% of
the issued share capital in Smart Edge; (i) not less than 50% of the
issued share capital in the Company; and (iii) not less than 50% of the
issued share capital in Goldin Properties Holdings Limited (“GPHL”), a
company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange, and procure
that GPHL'’s shares at all times be listed on the Stock Exchange.

It will be an event of default if the specific performance obligation is
breached; and in such case, the bank shall declare all outstanding
amounts together with interest accrued and all other sums payable by
Smart Edge to be immediately due and/or declare the facility
terminated.

For the year ended 30 June 2013, the aggregate amount of revenue
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers represented
approximately 85% of the Group’s revenue for the year. The aggregate
amount of revenue for the year attributable to the Group’s largest
customer for the year was 33%. Purchases from the Group’s five
largest suppliers accounted for 82% of the Group’s total purchases for
the year and purchase from the largest supplier included therein
amounted to 53%.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder, which to the
knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital, has interests in these customers and suppliers during the
year.

W=—ZZF—=—%+— A=+ 7X A Smart Edge
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Connected Transaction

On 27 September 2012 the Company entered into an underwriting
agreement and as amended and supplemented by the supplemental
underwriting agreement dated 18 October 2012 (collectively,
“Underwriting Agreements”) with Goldin Equities Limited (the
“Underwriter”), a company wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Pan, in
respect of a rights issue of the Company amounted to approximately
HK$3,909 million. Pursuant to the Underwriting Agreements, the
Underwriter has conditionally agreed to, on a fully underwritten basis,
subscribe or procure subscribers to subscribe for all of the underwritten
shares not taken up by the qualifying shareholders and shall pay or
procure the payment to the Company the amount due in respect
thereof. The underwriting commission paid to the Underwriter pursuant
to the Underwriting Agreements was approximately HK$35.3 million.
The Underwriting Agreements between the Company and the
Underwriter (including the payment of underwriting commission)
constituted a connected transaction for the Company under the Listing
Rules. The Company has complied with the disclosure requirement in
accordance with Listing Rules. The transaction was completed on 7
December 2012 and the details of the Underwriting Agreements were
disclosed in a circular dated 20 October 2012.

Continuing Connected Transactions

On 18 May 2012, the Company and GPHL entered into a framework
agreement (the “Framework Agreement”) which sets out the principal
framework upon which the Group will sell and GPHL and its
subsidiaries (the “GPHL Group”) will purchase the wine products
(including all bottles of wines, alcoholic liquors, spirits and/or other
liquors fit and intended for consumption as beverage to be transacted
between the Group and the GPHL Group under the Framework
Agreement) (the “Wine Products”) for a term commencing from 18 May
2012 and ending on 31 March 2015.

The annual caps for the financial year ended 30 June 2013 and the two

financial years ending 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2015 are HK$11
million, HK$11 million and HK$8.25 million respectively.
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During the year, the GPHL Group purchased and the Group sold the
Wine Products at the amount of approximately HK$7,873,000. Details
are set out in note 42 to the financial statements.

As Mr. Pan (personally and through his wholly-owned companies) was
beneficially interested in approximately 70.26% and 64.21% of each of
the issued share capital of the Company and GPHL respectively as at
18 May 2012, the Group is an associate of a connected person of
GPHL and the GPHL Group is also an associate of a connected person
of the Company. As such, the Company and GPHL are connected
persons of each other under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the
respective sales and purchases of the Wine Products by the Group and
the GPHL Group constituted continuing connected transactions for the
Company under the Listing Rules. Details of which were disclosed in
the Company’s announcement dated 18 May 2012.

On 13 December 2012, = iR{RE (P H)ZEE AR A7) (Goldin Factoring
(China) Development Limited) (“GFC”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into the domestic factoring agreement with ¥ B £x
BB R(RINER2A7F (Matsunichi Digital Development (Shenzhen)
Company Limited) (“Matsunichi Digital”) in respect of the provision of
non-recourse factoring services by GFC for a fixed term commencing
from 7 May 2013 to 30 June 2015 (the “Domestic Factoring
Agreement”). Under the Domestic Factoring Agreement, GFC will
acquire from Matsunichi Digital and Matsunichi Digital will assign to
GFC certain account receivables of Matsunichi Digital subject to GFC
satisfying with the relevant due diligence assessment (“Qualified
Account Receivables”). Details of the Domestic Factoring Agreement
were disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 23 January 2013.

The annual caps for the period from 7 May 2013 to 30 June 2013 and
the two financial years ending 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2015, being
the maximum aggregate annual value of Qualified Accounts Receivable
can be acquired by GFC, are RMB5 billion, RMB12 billion and RMB12
billion, respectively.
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During the year, Qualified Account Receivables acquired from
Matsunichi Digital by GFC under the non-recourse factoring services
amounted to approximately RMB265,209,000. Details of the handling
fee income and interest income from provision of the non-recourse
factoring services were disclosed in note 42 to the financial statements.

Matsunichi Digital is beneficially owned by Mr. Pan. In addition, Mr.
Zhou Dengchao is a common director of Matsunichi Digital and the
Company and is therefore a connected person of the Company. The
transactions contemplated under the Domestic Factoring Agreement
constituted continuing connected transactions for the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Directors have reviewed and confirmed that the connected
transaction and continuing connected transactions mentioned above
are based on normal commercial terms which are made on an arm’s
length basis. The Directors are also of the view that the connected
transactions and the continuing connected transactions are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders
as a whole.

The Company’s auditors were engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagement 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transaction under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. In accordance
with rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the auditors have issued their
unqualified letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect of
the continuing connected transaction disclosed above by the Company
and a copy of the auditors’ letter has been provided by the Company
to the Stock Exchange. The Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) have reviewed the continuing connected
transactions and the report of the auditors, and have confirmed that the
transactions had been entered into by the Company in the ordinary
course of its business, on normal commercial terms, on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to, or from independent
third parties, and in accordance with the terms of the agreement
governing such transactions that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Goldin Financial Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2012-13

FR BREEBTFEBEELZERERSE R
MBEBERBEZAERERERKEENAARE
265,209,000t - EARERHEERERER
BFEBRARMBMAZHFBRYBHRE
B sE 42 B 55 o

MBEERBELEEERES - WIN AEBEE
RRABERARA ZARAESE YRAILAR
RAIZEEALT - RELTRAUE4AE - BR
REBZETHRBETZIRIBRARBZFE
ERXS

EECENYRR LB ERZREERE
REDBRBRAFRAUATLZ —MREERK - &
ENAREBEXGNBEBEIZNBERATA
2 BNAAARRBRER ZERAE -

AABZEMEZERBESREZTREERNSE
30005% [FiZ N EHBEMBER U Z ZEE
Bl WREhESSHAMASHEAZEHHRHA
FTHORIEARBALTRAUMAFERER S
RAZBEN ] RAEBENBSEREIZED
B3R - IR BB TR BI S 14A.381% - AN Q& &AM
ER Ll AR EBEZRERERSIELEE
BERRERENERZERBERL AT mMARA
ERBIAMERZZHEMRIG AR - EE (B
BBEUIINTER)CUHBERER S RZEA
RERETEZ VEREBERZHAAARA
BEBBETRE - RUEGKRI L ERET
AEBZBRRATERREETBILE=FXHB
VEZHREZGF BNIRBREZERS
ZATFEEBEAREARRIREREEBNEZ 2 W&

fERFRET AL



Group’s Borrowings

Details of the Group’s borrowings are set out in notes 29 and 30 to the
financial statements, respectively.

Purchase, sale or redemption of the
company'’s listed securities

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Company currently comprises Messrs. Hui
Wai Man, Shirley, Gao Min and Tang Yiu Wing who are independent
non-executive directors of the Company and their principal duties
include the review and supervision of the Company’s financial reporting
process, internal control procedures and relationship with the
Company'’s external independent auditors.

The audited financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2013 have
been reviewed by the audit committee.

Human Resources

As at 30 June 2013, the Group employed a total of 75 employees (as
at 30 June 2012: 56). Total staff costs were approximately HK$30.6
million (2012: approximately HK$24.6 million). The remuneration policy
and package of the Group’s employees are structured in accordance
to market terms and statutory requirements where appropriate. In
addition, the Group also provides other staff benefits such as medical
insurance, mandatory provident fund and share options to motivate
and reward employees at all levels in order to achieve the Group’s
business performance targets.
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Sufficiency of public float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

Independent auditors

The financial statements have been audited by Emnst & Young who
retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Pan Sutong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 September 2013
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Y8 S A Bl R

EY =i«

Building a better
working world

To the shareholders of Goldin Financial Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Goldin
Financial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) set out on pages 57 to 170, which comprise the
consolidated and company statements of financial position as at 30
June 2013, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”)
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the HKICPA. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control.
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 30
June 2013, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

22/F CITIC TOWER
1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

17 September 2013
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

A A AR

Yearended 30 June 2013 HE T —=FNA=1+HILFE

2013
—E-—=F
Notes HK$°000
B & FER
Revenue - 6 250,468
Cost of sales SHE KA (70,905)
Gross profit E A 179,563
Net losses on financial assets at fair REZERAFEERE
value through profit or loss ZeRMEEBBFE 7 =
Other income and gains H AW A W= 21,103
Other losses HibEsa 8 (6,595)
Change in fair value of an investment REWMEZ A TFEEZD
property 17 1,470,398
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHFAX (5,025)
Administrative expenses TERAXZ (114,219)
Finance costs WEER 10 (26)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX R B¢ A 8 A 9 1,545,199
Income tax expense FRis i X 13 (20,616)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEHEF 1,524,583
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS Htt2EEE
ltems that may be reclassified to HizHEngEER»BE
profit or loss in subsequent periods: BEmik2EB
Exchange differences on translation of BEBINETSFTE &
foreign operations BN ERR
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FEEXEHRALEHE

FOR THE YEAR

1,524,221

2012
—E——4F
HK$’000
F&T
153,176

(37,902)

115,274

(77,060)
42,116
(98,490)
372,782
(859)

(86,810)
(1,824)

265,129

(12,436)

252,693

(2,024)

250,669
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Fo T N R

Yearended 30 June 2013 HE T —=FNA=+HILFE

Notes
Mo aE
Profit for the year attributable to: ITATEGEEERF :
Owners of the Company ViN/NETE? ¥ =N
Non-controlling interests FEIE R =
Total comprehensive income AT AT
attributable to: SHERALE :
Owners of the Company FiN/NETEZ R =N
Non-controlling interests e AR =
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE &R R #H AL
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY BRERN 15
Basic E= N
— For profit for the year — FEm A
Diluted e
— For profit for the year — F & % T

Goldin Financial Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2012-13

2013
—E—=5F
HK$’000
FEx

928,053
596,530

1,524,583

927,691
596,530

1,524,221

HK17.48 cents
Al

HK17.43 cents
AL

—E——4F
HK$’000
FH&T

79,221

173,472

252,693

77,197
173,472

250,669

(Restated)
(&71)

HK2.44 cents
Al

HK2.43 cents
Al



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION
Ar G AR DL R

30June2013 —E—=F/"A=+H

Notes
B &

NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment VI MR RERE 16
Investment property "EWE 17
Intangible assets mEE 18
Vines BEN 19
Convertible bond — loan portion ABkESE - BERBY 21
Loan receivable FEWE K 22
Total non-current assets EMBEEME
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 23
Prepayments, deposits and ERNHRE ek

other receivables H b & U BR 3K 24
Trade receivables FEUE 5 BR 3K 25
Convertible bond — loan portion AR ES - BERBH 21
Convertible bond — conversion AMRES — LR

option derivative PTEITR 21
Loan receivable FEURE 3K 22
Cash and cash equivalents RekREEE 26
Total current assets NBEELE
CURRENT LIABILITIES B A&
Trade payables BRESER 27
Accruals, other payables FEEtEE EtENKER

and receipts in advance T8 W IE 28
Tax payable JE S B IE
Due to the immediate FER BB ER A FHRIEA

holding company 29

Total current liabilities

M B E A

NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE
TOTAL ASSETS LESS EEHBERRBAE
CURRENT LIABILITIES

2013
—E—=fF
HK$’000
FER

401,780
5,700,000
101,439
10,388

6,213,607

260,535
164,102
1,290,865
89,420
531

21,850
2,483,872

4,311,175

194,587

76,939
17,365

288,891

4,022,284

10,235,891

FH2012-18 =R E (EE) R A A

2012
—E——4F
HK$’000
F&T

300,729
3,900,000
84,418
8,703
83,342
21,850

4,399,042

76,251

15,633
1,173,877

7,126

84,754

1,357,641

174,374

28,242
11,127

28,091

241,834

1,115,807

5,614,849

59



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
f B B IR Dl

30June2013 —E—=FA=+H

2013 2012
—E—=%F —E—_fF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B & FHER FAT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE

Interest-bearing bank borrowings FRRITEE 30 272,949 —

Loan from the immediate HEZER A REMR
holding company ZE®X 29 972,334
Derivative financial instrument TEERBTA 31 11,500
Deferred tax liabilities RERIAEE 32 369

Total non-current liabilities ERBAGEERE 306,908 984,203
Net assets BEEFE 9,928,983 4,530,646

EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners of AARHEE AEGER
the Company

Issued capital BEITRA 33 697,499 332,133

Reserves EXE 35(a) 7,070,380 2,636,160
7,767,879 2,968,293

Non-controlling interests FEPE AR HE 2 36 2,161,104 1,562,353

Total equity 48 fE S 9,928,983 4,530,646

Director Director
£5 g%
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

»/T = %ﬁﬁ&@]ﬁ

Year ended 30 June 2013 HE - &

—=FXA=1THIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company
WNGIE 2N
Retained
Share Exchange Share profits/ Non-
Issued  premium Other translation option  (accumulated controlling Total
capital  account reserve  reserve  resenve losses) Total interests equity
B¥T B At SERE  ERE RIEN/ FIER
BA  REER  #E A #E (RE#R) o S
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
Mz FHx FAT FEr  THxT  FEx THxr TET TAT TExn
At 1 July 2011 RZZ——E+H—H 332,121 2,837,876 - 2,098 9,239 (256,797) 2,924,537 — 2,924,537
Profit for the year FREF - - - - - 79221 79221 173,472 252,693
Other comprehensive FREAM
income for the year: 2EHBA:
Exchange differenceson ~ #ME BN ¥
translation of foreign MEEZ
operations ERES = = - (2024 - - (2,024 - (204
Total comprehensive EFR2EBRA/
income/(loss) for the year ~ (E518) 1% - - - (2,029 - 79221 77,197 173472 250,669
Equity-settled share option LA fEz 458
arrangements L ERELZH 34 - - - - 882 - 882 - 882
Issue of shares upon IFERERETRR
exercise of share options, (¥R I x0)
net of expenses 33 12 95 — — (30) — 7 — 7
Transfer of share option R R M
reserve upon the forfeiture 35, /2 i % 8 ¢
or expiry of share options & i 1 i /& - - - - (259) 259 - - -
Issue of a derivative financial 217474
instrument $BIA 31 = — (34,400 = = —  (34400) —  (34,400)
Loan from a non-controling & B — & B B A &)
shareholder of FERBREZER
a subsidiary 36 = = = = = = — 1,388,881 1,388,881
At 30 June 2012 R-Z—_F
~NAZTA 332,133 2,837,971* (34,400)* 74* 9,832* (177,317)* 2,968,293 1,562,353 4,530,646

F3£2012-13

2R (EER)BERAR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
A B RS S B

Yearended 30 June 2013 HE T —=FNA=+HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

EATHEBAELM
Retained
Share Exchange  Share profits/ Non-
Issued premium  Other translation  option (accumulated controlling Total
capital account reserve reserve  reserve losses) Total interests equity
5% it B Htt HEBRE BRE RIEN/ FER

BE  HER  HE e HE (RHER) @t EE ARG
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Mz FTEx THx FHER TER TEx TRn THz TEz THE=R

At 1July 2012 RZE-—%+A—H 332,133 2,837,971  (34,400) 9,832 (177,317) 2,968,293 1,562,353 4,530,646
Profit for the year FRRF 928,053 928,053 596,530 1,524,583
Other comprehensive FREM

income for the year: 2EHA:

Exchange differences REBINER
on translation of foreign MEEZ
operations EREH

Total comprehensive FREABA/

income/(loss) for the year ~ (&518) 8% - - 928,053 927,691 596,530 1,524,221
Rights issues HEfx 365,346 3,543,859 — 3,909,205 — 3,909,205
Share issue expenses B EI3 (37,524) - (37,524) - (37,524)
Issue of shares upon afFEERERETRR

exercise of share options, ~ (FIBR I x0)

net of expenses =
Acquisition of a subsidiary B — KB A 7 2,305
Acquisition of additional WE—HHBA

interest in a subsidiary BIMER (84)

At 30 June 2013 RZE—=F

~A=TH 697,499 6,344,465* (34,316) (288)*  9,783* 750,736* 7,767,879 2,161,104 9,928,983

e These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of  * WERBRERBRGAMBMRABRP ZEEFH
HK$7,070,380,000 (2012: HK$2,636,160,000) in the consolidated 7,070,380,000/8 7T (= Z — —F : 2,636,160,000
statement of financial position. HIT) o

62 Goldin Financial Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2012-13



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

nﬁ = ﬁ%{ﬂb

Yearended 30 June 2013 HE - T —=

=FRA=ZTHILFE

Notes
Mot
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REEEEK 2
ACTIVITIES BERE
Profit before tax Fr B4 B0 % 7
Adjustments for: HTIFBEELFE
Interest income F B A
Fair value gain on PTEEMIAEZ A TE
a derivative financial instrument U %5 6
Dividend income from listed ETRAEEZKE
equity investments WA 7
Net loss on realisation of equity RIBZEREAFE
financial assets at fair value EECEZCREE
through profit or loss 2 BB BT 7
Fair value loss on a conversion HMHBETETR
option derivative NFEEE 8
Loss on realisation of an available- AHEHEREEIR
for-sale investment &g 8
Depreciation e 9
Amortisation of intangible assets m A EEH 9
Equity-settled share option N EE 2 B
expenses X 9
Finance costs &R 10
Change in fair value of an WEMEZ NFEEZEF
investment property 17
Write-back of other payables & 0] 5 fib & 5 5RIE 9
Change in fair value of vines BEf s AT EZED 19
Increase in investment property A& I
Increase in inventories FE 8
Increase in trade receivables & W 5 BR B AN
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, TERIE e hEAM

deposits and other receivables
Increase in trade payables

JE W R IE (45 hn), R
J& & 55 R SRIE A

Increase/(decrease) in accruals, other FEET R IE - Hth E

payables and receipts in advance I K B GRIE
#nCR )

Dividend received from listed ETRAKEFTF
equity investments @Sy

Cash used in operations REER

Income tax paid E ﬁ Ffr 15 5%

Net cash flows used in operating RIEEER 2
activities fﬁ EMEFR

2013
—E-=f
HK$’000
FER

1,545,199
(16,465)

(800)

(1,470,398)
(1,630)
(1,956)

75,479
(246,470)
(131,784)
(112,933)

(145,714)
18,882

(539,800)
(14,378)

F3{2012-13 =R (

2012
—ET——fF
HK$’000
FA&T

265,129
(14,478)
(22,900)

(3,746)

75,983

113

98,377
13,750
911

882
1,824

(372,782)

(46)

43,017
(22,400)
(68,365)

(674,911)
31,385
99,569

(3,014)

3,746
(690,973)

(6,127)

(697,100)

EE)ERAA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

fia Bl it gk

Yearended 30 June 2013 HE T —=FNA=+HILFE

Notes

B &

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

Purchase of items of plant and
equipment

Acquisition of an investment
property

Acquisition of intangible assets

Addition of vines

Interest received

Acquisition of a subsidiary

REREFHZRE
nE
BEMELREEE

BAREMZE

BABTVEE
NEREY

B W F 8

Wi — R E A A

Net cash flows used AREEES2HEE
in investing activities MEFR

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING REMETEH 2RE
ACTIVITIES RE

Proceeds from other borrowing HiafgBERMSHIA

Repayment of other borrowing EEEMEE

Loan from the immediate HEZERARREZ
holding company Bx®

Repayment of loan from the
immediate holding company
Loan from a non-controlling

EEMERERAFEHR
ZER
D=l =Nl

shareholder of a subsidiary FEERBRR 2B R
Interest and other finance 2ERFE REM
charges paid MEEM
Proceeds from bank borrowings SRITEEMBEBRE
Proceeds from issue of shares BITRB TS RUE
Share issue expenses R E&EITZ
Net cash flows from REBMEETE 2
financing activities HenE$8
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN ReRkBELEE
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ®in/ L) 28
Cash and cash equivalents FReRkBE2EE
at beginning of year
Effect of foreign exchange EERFEFE
rate changes, net
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FERBEELR
AT END OF YEAR REERE
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF BeRESEE
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EEFEDMN
Cash and cash equivalents RekBE2EE
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2013
—E—=F
HK$’000
THET

(1,158)

(4,491)
9,520
(149,823)

(145,952)

(4,389)
269,000
2,873,379
(37,524)

3,100,466

2,400,336

84,754

(1,218)

2,483,872

2,483,872

2012
—ET——fF
HK$'000
FA&T

(2,906)
(3,432,201)
(77,900)

(4,094)
9,273

(3,507,828)

139,940
(415)

994,944

(46,638)
1,372,881

(1,824)

78
(1)

2,458,965

(1,645,963)

1,731,156

(439)

84,754

84,754



STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
CURC IV &S

30June2013 —E—=F/"A=+H

2013 2012
—E—-=F —ET——F
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
Mo st FExT FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERBEE
Plant and equipment YN 16 = 1
Investments in subsidiaries W ERaEE 20 5,540,802 3,771,270
Total non-current assets RBEELE 5,540,802 3,771,271
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments and other receivables T8 4 R I8 K H g U AR K 24 4,944 5,798
Cash and cash equivalents BHekReEE 26 889,611 16,885
Total current assets MEBEEME 894,555 22,683
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE
Accruals and other payables FEET B & R H b FE S /I8 28 12,889
Due to the immediate holding company FENBEEZERATIRE 29 28,091
Total current liabilities mEAEEE 13,114 40,980
NET CURRENT ASSETS/ (LIABILITIES) #REBEE (A& FE 881,441 (18,297)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EERERRDAES
LIABILITIES 6,422,243 3,752,974
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY FkRBEE
Loan from the immediate holding HEZEER A REMH
company ZE® 29 972,334
Net assets BEFE 6,422,243 2,780,640
EQUITY =
Issued capital BT 33 697,499 332,133
Reserves HE 35(b) 5,724,744 2,448,507
Total equity BRE 6,422,243 2,780,640
Director Director
= =
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 e A i

30June2013 —E—=F/"A=+H

2.1

Corporate Information

Goldin Financial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The principal place of
business of the Company is located at 23/F, Two International
Finance Centre, 8 Finance Street, Central, Hong Kong.

The Company is a subsidiary of Goldin Global Holdings Limited
which is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. In the opinion
of the directors, the Company’s ultimate holding company is
Goldin Real Estate Financial Holdings Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries during the year consisted of
the provision of factoring service, financial investments, winery
and wine trading and property development and investment.

Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which
include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for an investment property, derivative financial
instruments and vines, which have been measured at fair value.
These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
(“HK$”) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2013. The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such
control ceases. All intra-group balances, transactions, unrealised
gains and losses resulting from intra-group transactions and
dividends are eliminated on consolidation in full.
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2.1 Basis of Preparation (continued)

Basis of Consolidation (continued)

Total comprehensive income within a subsidiary is attributed to
the non-controlling interest even if it results in a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (i) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i) the
fair value of any investment retained and (jii) any resulting surplus
or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate.

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and

Disclosures

(@) Adoption of Revised HKFRS

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRS for

the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

HKAS 1 Amendments Amendments to HKAS 1
Presentation of Financial
Statements — Presentation
of ltems of Other
Comprehensive Income

The HKAS 1 Amendments change the grouping of items
presented in Other Comprehensive Income. ltems that
could be reclassified (or recycled) to profit or loss at a
future point in time (for example, net gain on hedge of a net
investment, exchange differences on transaction of foreign
operations, net movement on cash flow hedges and net
loss or gain on available-for-sale financial assets) would be
presented separately from items which will never be
reclassified (for example, actuarial gains and losses on
defined benefit plans and revaluation of land and buildings).
The Group’s presentation of other comprehensive income
in the audited financial statements has been modified
accordingly.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 785 A Ff i

30June2013 —E—=FA=+H

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (continued)

(b) Voluntary Change — Change in Inventory

Costing Method

In previous years, cost of inventories of the Group was
determined using the first-in first-out method. During the
year ended 30 June 2013, the Group decided to adopt the
specific identification method for inventory costing. The
directors of the Company consider that the change of
accounting policy can provide reliable and more relevant
financial information.

The change in accounting policy has no material impact to
the consolidated financial statements of the Group in prior
years. Accordingly, no retrospective adjustment has been
made to the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for prior years.
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2.3 Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong 2.3 2 &

Financial Reporting Standards

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these

financial statements.

HKFRS 1 Amendments

HKFRS 7 Amendments

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7
Amendments

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12 Amendments

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (2011)
Amendments

HKAS 19 (2011)
HKAS 27 (2011)
HKAS 28 (2011)
HKAS 32 Amendments

HKAS 36 Amendments

HKAS 39 Amendments

HK(FRIC)-Int 20

HK(FRIC)-Int 21

Annual Improvements
2009-2011 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 1
First-time Adoption of
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards — Government
Loans’

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures —
Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities’

Financial Instruments®

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 7 — Mandatory Effective
Date of HKFRS 9 and
Transition Disclosure®

Consolidated Financial Statements’
Joint Arrangements’

Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities’
Fair Value Measurement’

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12:
Transition Guidance'

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 (2011)
— Investment Entities®

Employee Benefits’
Separate Financial Statements’

Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures’
Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation
— Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities®
Amendments to HKAS 36
Impairment of assets —
Recoverable Amount Disclosures
for Non-Financial Assets?
Amendments to HKAS 39
Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement —
Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting®
Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine’

Levies®

Amendments to a number of
HKFRSs issued in June 2012’
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 785 A Ff i

30June2013 —E—=FA=+H

2.3 Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (continued)

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application
but is not yet in a position to state whether these new and
revised HKFRSs would have significant impact on its results of
operations and financial position.

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies
the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s profit
or loss to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The
Company’s investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
any impairment losses.
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Joint Ventures

A joint venture is an entity set up by contractual arrangement,
whereby the Group and other parties undertake an economic
activity. The joint venture operates as a separate entity in which
the Group and the other parties have an interest.

The joint venture agreement between the venturers stipulates the
capital contributions of the joint venture parties, the duration of
the joint venture and the basis on which the assets are to be
realised upon its dissolution. The profits or losses from the joint
venture’s operations and any distributions of surplus assets are
shared by the venturers, either in proportion to their respective
capital contributions, or in accordance with the terms of the joint
venture agreement.

A joint venture is treated as a subsidiary, if the Group has
unilateral control, directly or indirectly, over the joint venture.

Business Combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date
fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed
by the Group to the former owners of the acquire and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition
date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts by the acquiree.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 785 A Ff i

30June2013 —E—=F/"A=+H

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Business Combinations (Continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial
instrument and within the scope of HKAS 39 is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value either recognised in profit or loss
or as a change to other comprehensive income. If the contingent
consideration is not within the scope of HKAS 39, it is measured
in accordance with the appropriate HKFRS. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured and
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
vines, financial assets, goodwill and investment property), the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs to sell, and is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises in these expense categories
consistent with the function of impaired asset.
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets (Continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

Related Parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person:
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(

) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary
of the other entity);
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Related Parties (continued)

(b)  (Continued)

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); and

(vi) a person identified in (g)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

Property, Plant and Equipment and
Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than crockery, utensils and
linens, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Property, Plant and Equipment and
Depreciation (continued)

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be
replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over the following estimated useful life. The
principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Freehold land Not depreciated

Buildings 2.5% to 10%
Plant, machinery and equipment 20% to 33%
Winery equipment 14% to 33%
Furniture and fixtures 20% to 25%
Computer equipment 33%
Motor vehicles 20%

Leasehold improvements Over the remaining lease terms
or five years, whichever is

shorter

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.

FESTHRUE @

WX EERREBERITE @

ME BENRBEEBRAREFERELEZ
(Pl hERE)BERELERAXH
BMRBEP M- B RERGE KB
BEERABNEERAETRTELS 7
FEE - WEEECHEBRKREIME %
BRFR MAEEERIAZBOR/ER
EERFRZERNEE  WIRFENE -

FEDREBEME BIRRBEIATH
PRI AEHABESESE A ERE
ERHREE - RUARBZE2FRMT

KA ZERELH TFINE

gF 2.5%ZE10%

- B RRE 20%E33%

B o B 14% %= 33%

RIWREE 20% E25%

BIMEE 33%

YT 20%

THEWEEE BT HAK5E
AR & A%

W—IRYME BELREERBZ2EBEBD
FEARABFESR  MZEB ZKAER
BReBEEEERBNIANK MEHD
AEB T ERRIE - RIEREE - 7 BFH
RFETZBELESAMRFEEZER
ETRE RAEMER) -

ME BELRERBEEETNEERME
ReBRMHHEHERERFTEEARH
EFEHRRRGHE M R LR - 1
BERIMEREFERBEETERZEE
HEXRAZWAXBREAEHEE ZH
ERMERRFEARMECER -

FH2012-18 =R E (EE) R A A

75



76

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 785 A Ff i

30June2013 —E—=F/"A=+H

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Investment Property

Investment property is interests in land and buildings (including
the leasehold interest under an operating lease for a property
which would otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property) held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, rather than for use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in
the ordinary course of business. Such property is measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment property is stated at fair value, which
reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting period.
Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment property are included in profit or loss in the year in
which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in profit or loss in the year of
the retirement or disposal.

Property under development/construction for future use as
investment property has been accounted for in the same way as
completed investment property. Specifically, construction costs
incurred for investment property under development/construction
are capitalised as part of the carrying amounts of the investment
property under development/construction. Investment property
under development/construction is measured at fair value at the
end of the reporting period. Any difference between the fair
values of the investment property under development/
construction and its carrying amounts is recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise.

Intangible Assets (Other Than Goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with
finite lives are subsequently amortised over the economic useful
life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication
that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Intangible Assets (Other Than Goodwill)
(Continued)

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash-generating
unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortised. The useful
life of an intangible asset with an indefinite useful life is reviewed
annually to determine whether the indefinite useful life
assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the change in
the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for
on a prospective basis.

Winery Permit
Winery permit is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses.

Trademarks
Trademarks acquired are stated at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.

Customer List

Purchased customer list is stated at cost less any impairment
losses and is amortised on the straight-line basis over its
estimated useful life of 10 years.

Operating Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating
leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the
Group under operating leases are included in non-current assets,
and rentals receivable under the operating leases are credited to
profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under the
operating leases are charged to profit or loss on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

Vines

Vines are biological assets and are measured at initial recognition
and at each financial year end date at their fair values less cost to
sell. The fair values of vines are determined with reference to the
market determined prices in the neighbouring regions. Gains or
losses arising from changes in the fair values of vines less costs
to sell are recognised in profit or loss in the year in which they
arise.
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Investments and Other Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, and available-for-sale financial investment, as
appropriate. The Group determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus
transaction costs, except in the case of financial assets recorded
at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

The Group’s financial assets include cash and cash equivalents,
loans and trade receivables, deposits, other receivables,
unquoted financial instruments and derivative financial
instruments.

Subsequent Measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss. These net fair value
changes do not include any dividends or interest earned on these
financial assets, which are recognised in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Investments and Other Financial Assets
(Continued)

Subsequent Measurement (Continued)

Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (Continued)
Financial assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value
through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria under HKAS 39 are satisfied.

The Group evaluates its financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (held for trading) to assess whether the intent to sell
them in the near term is still appropriate. When, in rare
circumstances, the Group is unable to trade these financial
assets due to inactive markets and management’s intent to sell
them in the foreseeable future significantly changes, the Group
may elect to reclassify them. The reclassification from financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss to loans and receivables,
available-for-sale financial assets or held-to-maturity investments
depends on the nature of the assets. This evaluation does not
affect any financial assets designated at fair value through profit
or loss using the fair value option at designation, as these
instruments cannot be reclassified after initial recognition.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as
separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the
host contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading or
designated at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is
a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies
the cash flows that would otherwise be required.

Loans and Receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation
is included in profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is
recognised in profit or loss in finance costs for loans and in other
expenses for receivables.
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Investments and Other Financial Assets
(Continued)

Subsequent Measurement (Continued)

Available-For-Sale Financial Investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative financial
assets in listed equity investments. Equity investments classified
as available for sale are those which are neither classified as held
for trading nor designated at fair value through profit or loss. Debt
securities in this category are those which are intended to be
held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold in
response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in the
market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments are
subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or
losses recognised as other comprehensive income in the
available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve until the
investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss, or until the investment is
determined to be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is
reclassified from the available-for-sale investment revaluation
reserve to profit or loss. Interest and dividends earned whilst
holding the available-for-sale financial investments are reported
as interest income and dividend income, respectively and are
recognised in profit or loss as other income in accordance with
the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell its
available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still
appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable to
trade these financial assets due to inactive markets and
management’s intent to do so significantly changes in the
foreseeable future, the Group may elect to reclassify these
financial assets. Reclassification to loans and receivables is
permitted when the financial assets meet the definition of loans
and receivables and the Group has the intent and ability to hold
these assets for the foreseeable future or to maturity.
Reclassification to the held-to-maturity category is permitted only
when the Group has the ability and intent to hold until the
maturity date of the financial asset.
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Investments and Other Financial Assets
(Continued)

Subsequent Measurement (Continued)

Available-For-Sale Financial Investments (Continued)

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale
category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any previous
gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised in equity is
amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of the
investment using the effective interest rate. Any difference
between the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is also
amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the effective
interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to be
impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to
profit or loss.

Derecognition of Financial Assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset
or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised
when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset, or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a)
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Derecognition of Financial Assets (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is
recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in
the asset. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on basis that reflects the rights and obligations that
the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of
financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an
incurred “loss event”) and that loss event has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in
the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Impairment of Financial Assets (Continued)

Financial Assets Carried at Amortised Cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses individually whether objective evidence of impairment
exists for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant.
If the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or
continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred). The present value of estimated future
cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition). If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount
rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective
interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the loss is recognised in profit or loss.
Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying
amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount
the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any
associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realised or
has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting
the allowance amount. If a future write-off is later recovered, the
recovery is credited to profit or loss.
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Impairment of Financial Assets (Continued)

Available-For-Sale Financial Investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses
at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is
impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and
amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognised in profit or loss is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale,
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of an investment below its cost. The
determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires
judgement. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of
the investment and “prolonged” against the period in which the
fair value has been below its original cost. Where there is
evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in profit or loss — is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in profit or loss.
Impairment losses on equity instruments classified as available
for sale are not reversed through profit or loss. Increases in their
fair value after impairment are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.

Financial Liabilities

Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as
loans and borrowings and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, as appropriate. The Group determines the
classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Financial Liabilities (continued)

Initial Recognition and Measurement (Continued)

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
case of the loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables, accruals
and other payables, interest-bearing bank borrowings, loan from,
and amount due to, the immediate holding company and
derivative financial instrument.

Subsequent Measurement

Financial Liabilities at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit
or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term. This category
includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the
Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by HKAS 39. Separated embedded
derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on
liabilities held for trading are recognised in profit or loss. The net
fair value gain or loss recognised in profit or loss does not include
any interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value
through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.

Loans and Borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
method amortisation process.
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Financial Liabilities (continued)

Subsequent Measurement (Continued)

Loans and Borrowings (Continued)

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Derecognition of Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there is
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active
markets is determined by reference to quoted market prices or
dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions and ask price
for short positions), without any deduction for transaction costs.
For financial instruments where there is no active market, the fair
value is determined using appropriate valuation techniques. Such
techniques include using recent arm’s length market transactions;
reference to the current market value of another instrument which
is substantially the same; a discounted cash flow analysis; or
option pricing model.

Goldin Financial Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2012-13

S REBEEw

ﬁﬁﬂﬁ{g (%)

HETE (@)

E%}i’&%?(ﬁ)

BHKA 2 E B A RAE A KB I 808
& @%EEE’&EB%WJ$—ﬁBn Z BB
K-BREMNETBHEAABER UK E
A -

TEMEEAILER

TREEREEEEER
%ﬂiﬁgﬁlv

~ BUH ¢ E i B

NEEERAGBRE —BHR—EEAR
HEMERBALD TRZBEMBA - =X
BAERBZGFREANBER  MBEERE
HEFTERR SR IEERRAAERER
HeaE mMERREEZEZENEERA

HEEmM T A

EEERBRAEZENAERREEREAR
BEFREELE  JFERAKEREER
BEABEZBEAT REERERAR
HEEE O FRE2REMBRRRA -

EMIAZRTE

EERMSEECEMIAZATELS
RBRE T ERESBREEE (HAR
BEAEB REREE) BEMBEAXRS
KA -MEMTAZTSLTER A
ﬁHM%ZHEE%Hi“$ﬁ'E%ﬁ
BEREH 2z BR5: 2EHMAKA
ﬁHHIﬂZﬁ mﬁ'%ﬁﬁimin
i REEEBERR -



Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Inventories

Inventories represent barreled wines and bottled wines and are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined on specific identification basis, and in the case of
work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials,
direct labour and an appropriate portion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any
further costs expected to be incurred to disposal.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including
term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not
restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting
period of the future expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value
amount arising from the passage of time is included in finance
costs in profit or loss.
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Income Tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised,
either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and
practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and joint venture, when the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Income Tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised, to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

. when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and joint venture, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

B BERBE@wW

IR AT )

EERBEENMBERHERMEEZR
AREABBEE R MM RE) AR IA R B
B R - i 7] BE B RERR B s A AT it 4K 3
ERARERUEER - ABARBERERK
BRANEAERAEUHAE  ASRAR
EMIREE - HETHERRI

e MEEBBAEEWHE AWRIEE
BEWNRGZEEXBEMEELEZ
ERBREREEZE BRRXZER
SR B i m A sk E R R A ks
B R

e HMRAMEBARERAEELEZKRENR
ACERRESUEZEMS - EEH
HEEENA R KA B 5 B & i
ZH BARRVEMAREHEA
RERZAENER -

BB IBEEREER S RE AR
YHIRETBE TR TR N H 25
EBOBBREERBAEER L - R
W0 B 4 e ER B i I IA (K 8 2 AR sk BB
BEEREEHBEE MEREREHR
BRI ARTER BT IR E B 1T

=7
o ©

EXERBEERABERBHERNER
EENFEEBEDRRIHE - BERRE
HRE £ ERER B E(RBUX) &t

B o
ZAr

WA EEYHANMHREERANHHIAR
B MELHRBEEBRR —ERKE QA KL
Fl— BB AEEN IR E E KRN
BREM -

aj

FH2012-18 SREBM(EB)BERAR

89



90

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 785 A Ff i

30June2013 —E—=F/"A=+H

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@ handling fee income from factoring service, when the
relevant services have been rendered;

(b)  revenues from the sale of goods or en primeur, when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over the
goods sold;

(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of
the financial instrument or a shorter period, where
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset;

(d)  realised fair value gains or losses on future contracts and
securities trading on a trade date basis, and unrealised fair
value gains or losses on change in fair value at the end of
the reporting period; and

(e)  dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.

Share-Based Payments Transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with eligible participants is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which they
are granted. The fair value is determined by an external valuer
using a binomial model.
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Share-Based Payments Transactions (Continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which
the performance and/or service conditions are fulfiled. The
cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at
the end of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the
extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to profit or loss for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative expense recognised
as at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is conditional
upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are treated as
vesting irrespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or
service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition,
an expense is recognised for any modification that increases the
total fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This
includes any award where non-vesting conditions within the
control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award,
and is designated as a replacement award on the date that it is
granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Other Employee Benefits

Retirement Benefits Schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary which operates in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government (the “Mainland
Scheme”). The subsidiary is required to contribute a percentage
of the basic salaries of its employees to the Mainland Scheme to
fund their retirement benefits obligations of all existing and future
retired employees of the subsidiary. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the Mainland Scheme is to pay the
ongoing required contributions under the Mainland Scheme
mentioned above. Contributions under the Mainland Scheme are
charged to profit or loss as incurred as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of central pension scheme.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Foreign Currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or translation
of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item
(i.e., translation differences on the items whose fair value gain or
loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit
or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of overseas subsidiaries are currencies
other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the reporting
period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
into the presentation currency of the Company at the exchange
rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their profit
or loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in the other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
translation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Foreign Currencies (Continued)

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and
any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities
of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash
flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
which arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

Significant Accounting Judgements
and Estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Goldin Financial Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2012-13
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Significant Accounting Judgements
and Estimates (continued)

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, which have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements:

Income Tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and
Mainland China. The Group carefully evaluates tax implications of
its transactions in accordance with prevailing tax regulations and
makes tax provision accordingly. However, judgement is required
in determining the Group’s provision for income taxes as there
are many transactions and calculations of which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
on the income tax and deferred tax provision in the periods in
which such determination is made. The carrying amount of
income tax payable carried as a liability in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 30 June 2013 was
HK$17,365,000 (2012: HK$11,127,000).

Deferred tax assets relating to tax losses are not recognised as
management considered these losses were arisen in subsidiaries
that have been loss-making for some time and it is not
considered probable that taxable profits will be available against
which the tax losses can be utilised. Where the expectations are
different from the original estimates, such differences will impact
the recognition of deferred tax assets and deferred tax in the
periods in which such estimates have been changed. The
carrying amount of deferred tax liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 30 June 2013 was
HK$23,259,000 (2012: HK$369,000). Details of deferred tax are
set out in note 32 to the financial statements.

4.
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Significant Accounting Judgements
and Estimates (continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the events
previously causing the impairment no longer exists, the Group
has to exercise judgement in the area of asset impairment,
particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred that
may affect the asset value or such event affecting the asset value
has not been in existence; (2) whether the carrying value of an
asset can be supported by the net present value of future cash
flows which are estimated based upon the continued use of the
asset or derecognition; and (3) the appropriate key assumptions
to be applied in preparing cash flow projections including
whether these cash flow projections are discounted using an
appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected by
management to determine the level of impairment, including the
discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the net present value used in
the impairment test.

Estimation Uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year, are described below.

Impairment of Trade Receivables

The policy for provision for impairment of trade receivables of the
Group is based on the evaluation of collectibility and ageing
analysis of accounts and on management’s estimation. A
considerable amount of estimation is required in assessing the
ultimate realisation of these receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each debtor. If
the financial conditions of debtors were to deteriorate, resulting in
an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional
allowances may be required. The carrying amounts of trade
receivables in the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 30 June 2013 were HK$1,290,865,000 (2012:
HK$1,173,877,000), further details of which are set out in note
25 to the financial statements.
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Significant Accounting Judgements
and Estimates (continued)

Estimation Uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

Determining whether non-financial assets are impaired requires
an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to
which the non-financial assets are allocated. Estimating the value
in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the cash-generating units and also to
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. Any change in the business
environment may lead to the change of expected future cash
flows. The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment,
and intangible assets as at 30 June 2013 were HK$401,780,000
(2012: HK$300,729,000) and HK$101,439,000 (2012:
HK$84,418,000), respectively. Further details are set out in note
16 and note 18, respectively.

Fair Value of Investment Property

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active
market for properties in the same location and condition and
subject to similar lease and other contracts. In the absence of
such information, the Group considers information from a variety
of sources, including (i) by reference to independent valuations; (ii)
current prices in an active market for properties of a different
nature, condition and location (or subject to difference leases or
other contracts), adjusted to reflect those differences; (jii) recent
prices of similar properties in less active markets, with
adjustments to reflect any changes in economic conditions since
the dates of transactions that occurred at those prices; (iv)
discounted cash flow projections, based on reliable estimates of
future cash flows, derived from the terms of any existing lease
and other contracts, and (where possible) from external evidence
such as current market rates for similar properties in the same
location and condition, and using discount rates that reflect
current market assessments of the uncertainty in the amount and
timing of cash flows.

The principal assumptions for the Group’s estimation of the fair
value include those related to current market rents for similar
properties in the same location and condition, appropriate
discount rates, expected future market rents and future
maintenance costs.

4.

B XS5 HE R &5 @

Bt 2 T ER X @)

EemEERE
ETHCHEERTRE  BYIIELHME
EESE 2B SEEEMEREEDMG
e ARt ERER  ASEBEHREES
B EHARARREREELEE - A
BREERBCIREXUFEZSEReRER
B KERRBZ2EMESH YA L ERTEH
ARREREEH RN_T—=ZFA=
TH ¥ BRELRIBECEDERER
B EKR®EED B A401,780,0007 T (= =
— — 4F : 300,729,000/ 7T ) & 101,439,000
BT (—Z— — 4 : 84,418,000/ 7T) - B
HE—ZHFBD RN 16 R E18 -

SEMEQIFE

AFEZRERZAMBRME KK Z
MEERNERMBZER  WZEUR
HREMENRR - ERRZEER 2 F
AT AEEEEETRAKREZER &
E()2EB/GEE )VEE - AR ki 2
FR(EAZTRBLOREAMELBRR) 2
EERNERMIBZERS - WNAFAEI
REEEEZR: (VEUMERRTERT
B BES(KSELAE  URBEBE
B 52 B A REEAR N 2 (F {82 & 3 E
BZEE) VRBREHEAKRESREZA
SMFTmBEAZMRRSRE  FAEM
WMAEMLHEEME L 2GR R (A Ee) Hh
ERF(M 2 RAKRERZEUMEZ
ERMSES) YHRARMERTSHIER
SRESHERBHEZTHE TG 2R

AN
k4 C A

AEBEGEFARAFEMRABZIEZERRERE
ERARSH AR ZBUNEZERT
LHEe BRMAEX BEHRKRTSES
KB RGEERA -

FH2012-18 =R E (EE) R A A

97



98

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 785 A Ff i

30June2013 —E—=F/"A=+H

Significant Accounting Judgements
and Estimates (continued)

Estimation Uncertainty (continued)

Fair Value of the Financial Derivatives

The Group’s financial derivatives are measured at fair values,
which are determined by the directors using the Monte Carlo
Simulation pricing model or binomial option pricing model. The
significant inputs into the models were the share price at the year
end date, risk-free interest rate, exercise price, expected volatility
of the underlying shares and term to maturity. When the actual
results of the inputs differ from management’s estimates, it will
have an impact on the fair value gains, or losses and the fair
values of the financial derivatives.

As at 30 June 2013, the fair value of the financial derivative of the
convertible bond was HK$531,000 (2012: HK$7,126,000). The
fair value of the derivative financial instrument was
HK$10,700,000 (2012: HK$11,500,000).

Operating Segment Information

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their services and products, and has four
reportable operating segments as follows:

(@ the factoring segment engages in provision of factoring
services;

(b)  the financial investment segment engages in securities and
derivatives investment and trading and investment in
financial instruments;

(c) the winery and wine trading segment engages in the
investments and trading of wines and operation of
vineyards; and

(d) the property segment engages in property development
and investment.
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Operating Segment Information (continued)

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/(loss),
which is a measure of adjusted profit/(loss) before tax. The
adjusted profit/(loss) before tax is measured consistently with the
Group’s profit/(loss) before tax except that interest income on
bank balances and loan receivable, corporate sundry income,
finance costs, as well as corporate administrative expenses are
excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude loan receivable, cash and cash
equivalents, and other unallocated head office and corporate
assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and
other unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as these
liabilities are managed on a group basis.

There are no intersegment sales and transfers among the
segments.
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5. Operating Segment Information (continued) 5. % & 9 & ¥} )
Year ended 30 June 2013 BZ-_Z—=%fx<A=Z1+HL
FE
Financial Winery and
Factoring investment wine trading Property Consolidated
Bmk
RE SERE BRES L/ =a
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET THT THxT FET FET
Segment revenue: DEBE
Sales to HETINARP
external customers 108,894 141,574 250,468
Segment results: DEELE 64,709 1,469,671 1,609,801
Reconciliations HER
Unallocated Koz
other income E A A
Corporate TETHERAX
administrative
expenses (68,076)
Finance costs MEER (26)
Profit before tax B A5 Al g A 1,545,199
Segment assets DEEE 1,258,929 89,964 953,414 5,701,200 8,003,507
Reconciliation Egi3
Corporate and rERKRDE
unallocated assets BE 2,521,275
Total assets BEEE 10,524,782
Segment liabilities PEEE 193,062 21,023 326,080 540,165
Reconciliation #HER
Corporate and rERADER
unallocated liabilities BE
Total liabilities LRCE S 595,799

100  Goldin Financial Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2012-13



5. Operating Segment Information (Continued) 5. & &E 7 Z & £ )
Year ended 30 June 2013 (Continued) BE-_ZFE—=—"H#XA=Z1+HL
FE @
Financial Winery and
Factoring investment wine trading Property Consolidated
Bk
RE LERE BmES LY 3 wE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THER FET FHET TER FTER
Other segment HioPEE :
information:
Depreciation e 10,600
Unallocated Ko e
Amortisation of BT B B

intangible assets

Additions to property, INBEWE - S
plant and equipment B 119,162 119,163
Unallocated DB 92

119,255

Additions to NEEBWEE
intangible assets

Increase in fair value KREYEZ

of an investment NFEEE N

property 1,470,398 1,470,398
Additions to vines NE B B

F£iR2012-13 =REm(EBARL27 101
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5. Operating Segment Information (continued) 5.

EEDHER @

= &
Year ended 30 June 2012 BE-Z——-—XA=Z1+A81
FE
Financial Winery and
Factoring  investment  wine trading Property  Consolidated
B &
IR SR E Nil= ) % BRE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
THT FHT FET FHT FHT
Segment revenue: DERE X .
Sales to HETINAER
external customers 112,869 — 40,307 — 153,176
Segment results: DEEE 72,594 (165,482) 4,828 395,250 307,190
Reconciliations R
Unallocated Kk
other income H bl A 5,714
Corporate PETHRRAX
administrative
expenses (45,951)
Finance costs BiEER (1,824)
Profit before tax FR B4 B % 7 265,129
Segment assets DEEE 1,183,949 90,481 455,890 3,900,005 5,630,325
Reconciliation #HER
Corporate and TERRD R
unallocated assets BE 126,358
Total assets BEEBE 5,756,683
Segment liabilities PTHEE 181,739 — 1,225 1,014,808 1,197,772
Reconciliation #HER
Corporate and rERKDER
unallocated liabilities =K 28,265
Total liabilities BEEHE 1,226,037
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5. Operating Segment Information (continued) 5. % & 5 2 & £ @)
Year ended 30 June 2012 (Continued) BE-Z—Z-—Hf#XA=+H1L
FE
Financial Winery and
Factoring  investment  wine trading Property  Consolidated
) B o &
RE @I E B E 5 IES o)
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T F&T FHET T T
Other segment BE#opER !
information:
Depreciation e 2,211 — 10,355 — 12,566
Unallocated KH e 5,087
17,653
Amortisation of A EEH
intangible assets — — 911 — 911
Additions to property, NE % ESRi
plant and B
equipment 1,735 — 576 — 2,311
Unallocated Ko 595
2,906
Equity-settled share UiEsstEE 2
option expenses AR AE S — - - - -
Unallocated Ko 882
882
Additions to REEWEE
intangible assets — — 77,900 — 77,900
Addition to REREWE
an investment
property — = = 3,432,201 3,432,201
Increase in fair value "KEWEZ
of an investment NFEEIE
property = = = 372,782 372,782
Additions to vines RNER BB — — 4,094 - 4,094
F352012-13 HBEEE(EB)BRAA
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5. Operating Segment Information (Continues) 5. & &E 7 & £ )

Geographical Information i EE R
(@ Revenue from External Customers (@ REIREBEF2EXRE
2013 2012
—_E—=F —ET——fF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHx FAT
Hong Kong BB 12,286 5,650
Mainland China B A 4 216,845 145,443
United States =% 15,025 2,083
France V& 6,312 =
250,468 153,176
The revenue information above is based on the locations of LM EERERDUABEFPEM A
the customers. HAE o
() Non-Current Assets b) ERBEE
2013 2012
—E—=F —E—=F
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FH T FAT

Hong Kong BE 5,702,949 3,907,928
Mainland China R R A 3 6,303 8,737
United States = 366,629 377,185

France N 137,726 —

.!!!!! 4,293,850
The non-current asset information above is based on the FHERDEEERINEEME
locations of the assets and excludes convertible bond and WAEEBTRETRRESFLE
loan receivable. WE K -
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Operating Segment Information (continued) 5.

Information About Major Customers

Revenue from major customers, each of whom amounted to
10% or more of the Group’s revenue, is set out as follows:

EE S IBER @
FEFEFZ2EHR

EAEEEERFIORI AL EREIESR

PRz EEBHINMT :

2013
—E—=fF
HK$’000
FEx

Winery and wine trading business segment
Customer A
Customer B
Customer C

Factoring segment
Customer D
Customer E

B B mE 5 FEB 5D E
BEA
XFB
BFC

RIBHE
=FD
®PE

FH2012-18 =R E (EE) R A A

2012
—E——4F
HK$’000
FH&T

86,520
26,349
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6. Revenue, Other Income and Gains 6. EXHE HMUWARKS
Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the BEEE O NAANEB 7 EERTE BEME
aggregate of the value of services rendered and the net invoiced s cEEBERNMBKRERTNZED
value of goods sold, after allowances for returns and discounts. EmBREEEFE-

An analysis of revenue, and other income and gains is as follows: g E M A RKESFTWOT -
Group
rE
2013 2012
—E-=F —_F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Revenue BER
Handling fee income and interest income RERERB2FEBRAKR
from factoring services F B U A 108,894 112,869
Sales of wine Nk RS 141,574 40,307
250,468 158,176
Other income Hlg A
Bank interest income RITH B WA 319
Interest income on a loan receivable W E R 2 F B WA 1,754
Interest income on a convertible bond AR E F 2 FLE WA 12,405
Others Hfh 4,738
19,216
Other gains H W 2%
Fair value gain on a derivative financial TESMTAZ AFERZ
instrument 800 22,900

-Il!! 42,116
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7. Net Losses on Financial AssetsatFair 7. REZERAFEEE >

Value Through Profit or Loss TREEEETHE
Group
R E
2013 2012
—E—-=F —ET——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FE T FHT
Net fair value losses on derivative TESBITAZATE
financial instruments B8 F 5 @4,772)
Net loss on realisation of equity FHNBREZAEE
financial assets at fair value through REZEZEHEEZ
profit or loss B R F 58 (75,983)
Dividend income from listed equity FHBEAKRE 2
investments A% B A 3,746
Brokerage commission Ll (51)
(77,060)
8. Other Losses 8. HihEE
Group
rEE
2013 2012
—E-=5F —E——4F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FE T F&T
Fair value loss on a conversion HMEETET A
option derivative NEEERE (6,595) (113)
Loss on realisation of an available-for-sale At EEIREEIR 2 EB
investment (98,377)
(6,595) (98,490)

F£R2012-13 =REm(EBRAR27 107
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9. Profit before Tax

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

(crediting):

9. BR®iADE A

510 B IREERE ¢

2013
—ZB—=£F
HK$’000
FE T

Cost of inventories sold
Cost of services provided

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Less: Amount included in inventory overheads

EEFERA
B 52 AR 5 A AR
B ERARERX 2SR

56,392
14,513
18,155
(4,155)

Amortisation of intangible assets

Employee benefit expenses (including
directors’ remuneration (note 11)):
Wages and salaries
Equity-settled share option expenses
Retirement benefits scheme contributions*

BVAEHE

BEERMNAX (BERESHE
(BF7E11))
TERFHZ
N EE 2 BREX H
B RAR IR &I 4K

Minimum lease payments under operating
leases in respect of buildings

BFEEHOBE T 2xERE
30,500

Auditors’ remuneration % B Bl B 3,100
Write-back of other payables & [0] B {th & < 3k I8 (1,630)
Foreign exchange differences, net bE 3 = %8 OF 58) (7,243)
2 At 30 June 2013, the Group had no forfeited contributions * NR-ZE—=FA=1+H ' KEBFLEA

available to reduce its contributions to the retirement benefits

scheme in future years (2012: Nil).
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BEEF (B ——F &) -

AEE R AE R MR GEA)T

2012

—ET——4F

HK$000
THET
20,221
17,681

17,653
(3,903)

13,750

911

23,349

882
373

24,604

30,272
2,750

(12,611)

HHMRBRFERARBHNASHEFTZE



10. Finance Costs

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

10.

B%EH
BBBAAMMT

Group
2013
—E—=fF
HK$’000
TR

Interest on: A
Secured bank borrowings wholly repayable
within five years
Other borrowing wholly repayable within
five years
Loan from the immediate holding company

8

BAREFAEHE
BEERRITEE

BREFANZHE
HihgE

MERERARREZER

B

B2

Less: Amount capitalised in an investment oA

=1

property under construction (note 17)

ERRENRBETEAR

2B (ME17)

(43,415)

FH2012-18 =R E (EE) R A A

2012
—ET——fF
HK$’000
FAT

1,824
70,154

71,978

(70,154)

1,824
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11. Directors’ Remuneration M. EEME
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the ¢ Pq EE Ve BREETABAERSMAE
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on Nal([BZFr]) &5 EmAB( EHmE
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock EIJJ) EEBRNEHIE 161K ELT

Exchange”) and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, is as follows:

Group
RE
2013 2012
2= ===
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx FB T
Fees we 640
Other emoluments of executive directors: HITEE 2 HMENE -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REYHE 5,000
Equity-settled share option expenses D/{ EmAE 2 ERES S 204
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RN FET B R 18
5,222
5,862
(a) Independent Non-executive Directors (@ BYFHTES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors FRNENBIFNTEEZZHEE AN
during the year were as follows: T ¢
2013 2012
—E—=5F 24
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET F&T
Mr. Tso Hon Sai, Bosco* EEEL L 200
Ms. Hui Wai Man, Shirley PR Z T 240
Mr. Tang Yiu Wing BB e A& 200
Ms. Gao Min** 53 G =
640

*

*

RZZE—Z—F+—A+hBEE
RZZE—=F+—A+THAEZE

Resigned with effect from 15 November 2012

*
%

ke

Appointed with effect from 15 November 2012

There were no other emoluments payable to the RBEZT—=F~A=Z+HLF
independent non-executive directors during the year ended E - WEE 1?1‘ 5% VIERITEETZEM
30 June 2013 (2012: Nil). Hit & (T ——4F : &) -
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11. Directors’ Remuneration (Continued) 1. EE5ME @

(b) Executive Directors and Non-executive (b) MITEERIHITES
Directors
Salaries, Equity- Retirement
allowances settled share benefits
and benefits option scheme Total
Fees in kind expenses contributions remuneration
e 2M UERAHEZ RIKER
e REYANE BREXWD =T &1 fit B S
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FET FHET
Year ended BE-ZZ—=F
30 June 2013 /\ﬁ] +HIEFE

Executive directors:  #7TZ % :

Mr. Wong Hau Yan, &2 & % 4
Helvin

Ms. Hou Qin BELZ L

Mr. Zhou Dengchao  J& % #8 5t 4

Mr. Lee Chi Chung, Z B & %4
Harvey

Mr. Huang Xiaojian® & 22 & 4 A= *

Non-executive FEHNTESE -
director:

Mr. Pan Sutong & R ST

Year ended HE-_T——F
30 June 2012 /\H JrElJtiF

Executive directors: #1772 % -
Mr. Wong Hau Yan, &2 B %4

Helvin — — 68 — 68
Ms. Hou Qin EEL+ — 1,300 68 = 1,368
Mr. Zhou Dengchao  J& & 8 % 4 — 1,300 68 12 1,380
Mr. Lee Chi Chung, ZEH & %%

Harvey — 2,400 — 6 2,406

— 5,000 204 18 5,222
Non-executive FFEHNTESE -

directors:

Mr. Pan Sutong % B ST A = = = - -

Mr. Huang Xiaojian* =2 @4 4 * — _ _ _ _

— 5,000 204 18 5,222
# Re-designated as an executive director with effect from 30 # RZE—ZF+—A=+THAFEAHNT
November 2012 %
There was no arrangement under which a director waived REBEEZZ—=FA=Z1THLEFE I
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year ended BEMNESHNEXRERECAHNE 2E
30 June 2013 (2012: Nil). (T —ZF 8-

FH2012-18 =R E (EE) R A A
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12. Five Highest Paid Employees 12. AV B HEE
The five highest paid employees during the year ended 30 June HE_ T =ZF~AZtHILFERNK
2013 included two (2012: three) directors, details of whose SHEED MU(ZE——F:=U)A
remuneration are set out in note 11 above. Details of the B KE2MEFBE N EXXHE1] -
remuneration of the remaining three (2012: two) non-director, ERN - HEH=N(ZE——F : W) H5
highest paid employees for the year are as follows: HIEEFEEZHSHFBUOT :
Group
A EE
2013 2012
—_E—-=5F ===
HK$°000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EAEREWHE 2,604
Equity-settled share option expenses =GR 2 BRES T 90
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIREFIET B4R 4
2,698
The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose FeREN NS BE 2 EaHIEEESEE A
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: R
Number of employees
BEAH
2013 2012
—B—=fF —ET——4F
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 % 7T % 1,500,000 % 7T 2
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13. Income Tax Expense

13.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2012: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong during the year ended 30 June 2013. Taxes on
profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of
tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

FRrEBRAX

RBEZZT—=FA=THLFERSE
EEAZ BT ERR G D IEH £16.5%
(ZZ— Z—F:165%) 5t & B F 15 B #&
e i AT ERBEF 2 A %
REBEEMERERERE 2 RITH XA

i

2013 2012
—E—=F —_F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTExT T T
Group: AER:
Current — Hong Kong NER— BB
Charge for the year FERAX 7,800 680
Overprovision in prior years BT FEERERE (12) —
Current — Elsewhere NHE — E At 5
Charge for the year FERX 14,394 11,601
Underprovision/(overprovision) in BEEERETIR/
prior years (FBRE R E) (1,566) 155
Tax charge for the year FEMERX 12,436

A reconciliation of the tax applicable to profit before tax at the
statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the Company and its
subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax

rate is as follows:

RN R AR R R EL B R R P mDAHE
B 2R EMR KRB 2 KRB A S F 1% B R
MEFEZHATHOBHBELERET :

2013 2012

=B = —E—_4F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FTHER FA T

Profit before tax & F5% BiT S5 A 1,545,199 265,129
Tax at the statutory tax rates BIREERE 2 THIB 254,958 43,746
Higher tax rate for other jurisdictions B Rl AR ZER SR E 4,690 5,725
Income not subject to tax BARBRKA (249,961) (80,888)
Expenses not deductible for tax TR MF A 7,950 42,704
Tax losses for the year not recognised AEREREBIEEE 3,564 5,899
Reversal of taxable temporary differences FE R TR ET R I = EiE (O 671 653
Tax losses utilised from previous periods FRBTHMZHBEEE (1,772) (984)
Underprovision/(overprovision) in prior years @ EEEE T B GBEEE) (1,578) 155
Others Hith 2,094 (4,574)
Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate BEASBERMEZHEBRX 12,436

FH2012-18 =R E (EE) R A A
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14. Profit Attributable to Owners of the

15

Company

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company
for the year ended 30 June 2013 includes a loss of
HK$41,468,000 (2012: HK$71,810,000) which has been dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company (note 35(b)).

Earnings Per Share Attributable to
Owners of the Company

The calculation of basic earnings per share amounts is based on
the profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 5,308,806,000
in issue during the year ended 30 June 2013 (2012:
3,247,576,000), as adjusted to reflect the rights issue during the
year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share amounts is based
on the profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company.
The weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the
calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue during the
year, which were used in the basic earnings per share calculation,
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed to
have been issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise or
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary
shares.
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14.

15.

RREEE AEMLRR

HE_Z—=F~"A=THLEFEE"
KAl EAELHEEEBEEREEIRE
41,468,00078 7T (=& — = & : 71,810,000
BIL) ERA AR BHRE NEE (E
35(0)) ©

%ﬂﬁ%ﬁk@ﬁ%&%

BREABINSCEBIRERNARES
ANEEFEERENURBEE T —=

ANAZTHLEFEB BT L ERKME
S 15 #15,308,806,000/% ( — & — — 4 :
3,247,576,000%) 5+ & « WAL A E A RBLF
P HETT B LA ©

SRESRBNSBIRBEARAESE AR
HEEEMNAE HERMRAZEBK
MEFHEDFANECHETEBREAE (B
AEESREARMNMERERR)  MEE
BREF BB BRRENAEBEHTE
BREEASTERELRSEBRBIZTN
BT



15. Earnings Per Share Attributable to 5. 52T HEEAELGEBRE

Owners of the Company (continued) F )
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are FREAREBEN ZETETHER
based on:
2013 2012
—E—-=F —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FB T
Earnings EZF
Profit attributable to owners of the Company, Rt EGREREF 2
used in the basic earnings per share RN EHER ARG 5= F
calculation 928,053 79,221
Number of shares
BB
2013 2012
—E—=5F —E——4F
(Restated)
(g=7)
Shares B% 12
Weighted average number of ordinary shares R EGRERERN 2 F/E
in issue during the year used in the basic BT T @RI T
earnings per share calculation 5,308,806,000 3,247,576,000

Effect of dilution — weighted average number i & 57 28 — & 38 A% hn#E F 15 81 -
of ordinary shares: Share options e A 15,716,000 8,953,000

5,324,522,000 3,256,529,000

F£iR2012-13 =RE/MEB)ARAT 115



116

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 A B

30June2013 —E—=FA=1H

16. Property, Plant and Equipment

16. M1% - B R E

Group xE
Plant,
machinery,
equipment and
winery  Furniture and Computer Motor Leasehold
Freehold land Buildings equipment fixtures  equipment vehicles  improvements Total
BE #E
KAKE RERER BENE
i g3 RE HAREE EMRE RE %6 @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THT TR THT THR THT TR THT
Cost: KA :
At July 2011 RZB——FtA-H 67,241 206,063 3514 27,004 484 1,874 18,142 324,312
Addtions wE = = 535 558 63 294 1,456 2,906
Exchange realignment ERAE (298) (904) (15) 1) 0] () (20) (1,334)
At 30 June 2012 RZZ-Z47~A=1A 66,943 205,149 4,034 27,471 546 2,163 19,578 325,884
Additions NE - - 850 58 106 144 - 1,158
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 87) W —FIME A A (Mz37) 103501 12,032 2,564 - - - - 118,007
Exchange realignment B % % (1) (34) (1) &) - - (1) (50)
At 30 June 2013 RZZ-=%/~A=1H 170,433 217,147 7447 27,526 652 2,307 19,577 445,089
Accumulated depreciation REMERAE
and impairment:
At 1July 2011 RZE-—%+A—-H = — - 2,038 150 383 4,965 7,536
Provided during the year FERE - 7,082 657 4,664 124 381 4,745 17,653
Exchange realignment ERAE - (19) @ (10) - @ () (34)
At 30 June 2012 RZZ-——F~A=1+H - 7,067 655 6,692 274 762 9,705 25,155
Provided during the year FERE - 7,066 912 4,709 105 397 4,966 18,155
Exchange realignment EXAE - (1) - - - - - )
At 30 June 2013 RZZE-=FxA=1H - 14,132 1,567 11,401 379 1,159 14,671 43,309
Net book value: BREHE -
At 30 June 2013 RZZE-=FxA=1H 170,433 203,015 5,880 16,125 273 1,148 4,906 401,780
At 30 June 2012 R-Z-—%5:A=tA 66,943 198,082 3,379 20,779 272 1,401 9,873 300,729
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16. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)  16. #J % - H£22 & 3218 (@)

Company Vi /NI
Computer
equipment
BRE
HK$’000
T T
Cost: N
At 1 July 2011, 30 June 2012, 1 July 2012 and R-_ZE——F+tHA—H8"
30 June 2013 —E——_HXA=+tH -—FT——F
+tA—RAK=ZZE—=F-A=+H 42
Accumulated depreciation: 2 E
At 1 July 2011 R-—_ZE——FtA—H 31
Provided during the year FEEE 10
At 30 June 2012 and 1 July 2012 R-ZZE——FXA=+HK
—ZT——F+HA—H 41
Provided during the year FEEE 1
At 30 June 2013 RZE—=FA=+H 42
Net book value: BREFE :
At 30 June 2013 R-ZE—=F,"A=1+H =
At 30 June 2012 R-ZE—=—&~A=1+8 1

FH2012-18 =R E (EE) R A A
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17. Investment Property

17. REYW %

Group

E

HK$'000

FAT

Carrying amount at 1 July 2011 RZE——F LA -AZKAE =
Addition during the year FRRNE 3,432,201
Construction costs incurred FrEE RPN AR 24,863
Finance cost capitalised (note 10) BBz EA (HFE10) 70,154
Change in fair value NEEEH 372,782

Carrying amount at 30 June 2012 and 1 July 2012

Construction costs incurred
Finance cost capitalised (note 10)
Change in fair value

RZEBE——"FXA=+tHK

—E— 4+ A—RAZEEE 3,900,000
FRE A+ 2 BEKA 286,187
BEERNML % E B (H3E10) 43,415

DT ) 1,470,398

Carrying amount at 30 June 2013

The Group’s property interest held under operating lease to earn

AEENGEHEREURDNEE 2 E
B AR FEEAFE  TOBERAK

rentals purpose is measured using the fair value model and is
classified and accounted for as an investment property. The
Group’s investment property is situated in Hong Kong, held
under medium-term lease and is under construction.

At 30 June 2013 and 2012, the Group’s investment property
under construction stated at fair value was revalued by Savills
Valuation and Professional Services Limited, an independent firm
of professionally qualified valuers, on an open market, existing
use basis.

At 30 June 2013, the Group’s investment property with a
carrying value of HK$5,700,000,000 (2012: nil) was pledged to
secure banking facilities granted to the Group.
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SIEREME - AKBEREPHENTE
ZEREMEDMRERBBMERRS

R-_E—=FEK_FT——FA=+1"
REBIZAFEINRZEEZREMEHS
VEERBEEGEME-—ANFHEHEE
LEXERARARKENMAREERA
FmHER -

R-B—=EXA=1B AEEBER
{8 45,700,000,000/8 L (= F — —4F : &)
ZEEMETNEGR UARTAEEZ
RITE KR HEIER -



18. Intangible Assets 18. BILEE

Winery permit  Trademarks Customer list Total
B o #F A R [EE: BEFEE @t
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FAT FAT
Cost: B ZNME
At 1 July 2011 RZT——F
+H—H 7,792 = = 7,792
Additions nNE = 68,773 9,127 77,900
Exchange realignment bE 7, A B (35) (291) (39) (365)
At 30 June 2012 and R-ZE—=
1 July 2012 ~NA=ZTHEK
+H—H 7,757 68,482 9,088 85,327
Acquisition of a subsidiary U B& — & B B A &)

(note 37) (I 5E37) — 17,943 — 17,943
Exchange realignment BE X © (11) @ (14)
At 30 June 2013 RZF—=4%F

~NAZ=TH 7,756 86,414 9,086 103,256
Accumulated amortisation: g 3T
At 1 July 2011 R-_TE——4F
+HA—H = = = =
Provided during the year B — — 911 911
Exchange realignment & 5 5 2 = = @) @)
At 30 June 2012 and R-ZE——F
1 July 2012 NA=ZTHER
—F—_F
+HA—H = = 909 909
Provided during the year F R — — 908 908
At 30 June 2013 RZFT—=
NA=+H — — 1,817 1,817
Net carrying value: BREDEE :
At 30 June 2013 RZFT—=4F
~NAZ=+AH 7,756 86,414 7,269 101,439
At 30 June 2012 RZT—=F
NA=+H 7,757 68,482 8,179 84,418
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18. Intangible Assets (Continued)

As at 30 June 20183, the carrying values of intangible assets
represented winery permit, trademarks and customer list of a
vineyard in US of HK$83,496,000 (2012: HK$84,418,000) and
trademarks of vineyards in France of HK$17,943,000 (2012: nil).
For the purpose of annual impairment testing, intangible assets
have been allocated to two cash-generating units, being the US
winery cash-generating unit and French winery cash-generating
unit. The carrying amounts of intangible assets as at 30 June
2013 and 2012 allocated to these units are as follows:

18.

B/IE E (#&)

R-ZE—Z=ZFNA=Z+tH EFEEDN
BF M 1B $583,496,000/8 ;L (= T — — 4 :
84,418,000/ 7t) 2 B M Al & - MR R E
BEE R P & K% 17,943,000 T (Z & —
—EE) ZEBERAEE - BETERER
BAR EFEECHIEEZMERSE
EEN REBRARBReELEEMRER
EmBCELEEN - BE-_T—ZFK =
T——FXRA=Z+tH HsEZLFEMZ

US winery cash-generating unit
French winery cash-generating unit

XEEMmREELE BN
EBEmREEE BN

EEEERABNT :
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——4F
HK$°000 HK$’000
F#E T FHT
84,418

17,943 =

84,418

Impairment Test

The carrying amount of the US winery cash-generating unit was
determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projection based on a financial budget covering a 5-year period
at a growth rate approved by senior management and cash flows
beyond the 5-year period extrapolated using a growth rate of 3%.
The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections was 11%.

The carrying amount of the French winery cash-generating unit
was determined based on a value in use calculation using cash
flow projection based on a financial budget covering a 5-year
period at a growth rate approved by senior management and
cash flows beyond the 5-year period extrapolated using a growth
rate of 2%. The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections
was 10%.

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the US
and French winery cash-generating units. The following describes
each key assumption on which management has based its cash
flow projections to undertake impairment testing of the intangible
assets.

Goldin Financial Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2012-13

B R =

EBRERBeEL BN ZEAENIRER
EEEEEFr FABEENRSREERE
HERERFHEC Y REZERB SR
SREXREAFE ’tﬁ£¢%ﬁ2ﬁ$
= IR g K K3% cEARRERE
ﬁﬂZﬁﬁfﬁﬁ%
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18.

19.

Intangible Assets (Continued)

Impairment Test (Continued)

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and reflects
specific risks relating to the winery cash-generating units.

Raw material price inflation — The basis used to determine the
value assigned to raw material inflation is the forecast inflation
indices during the budget year from where the raw material is
sourced.

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine the
value assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the average
gross margins achieved in the year immediately before the
budget year, increased for expected efficiency improvement and
expected market development.

. B EE @

VREREAT ¥

MEE—NMBEERDHGREFE IR
HRGRECELASNUABZFERR -

BHEKXER-RAREERNEERKZ
HEETDEMRBHERNMBRFEFERNZERNR
ARFE 2K o

BEENFE-—RARBEEREEMNXEERLZ

EE DREERMBFEZN —FHERF
ZEFHENE  REHANBEREAREBR
B T 35 3% R T S AN o

Vines 19. 5§
Group
AEHE
2013 2012
—E—=fF —ET——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAT
At beginning of the year, at fair value REF  EBAFE 8,703 8,742
Exchange realignment E X A (2 (39)
Decrease due to harvest W A% i sk 2> (6,373) (4,140)
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 37) U BE — R BT /B & A1 (BfY 3£ 37) 1,613 =
Additions during the year FERE 4,491 4,094
Gains arising from changes in fair value HELZZ8s<AFELR
attributable to physical changes FEETEAZ W 1,956 46
At end of the year, at fair value RER BEAFE 8,703

During the year ended 30 June 2013, the Group harvested
approximately 36,000 kilograms (2012: 25,000 kilograms) of
grapes, which had a fair value less estimated point-of-sale costs
of HK$6,373,000 (2012: HK$4,140,000).

RBE-_ZTE—=ZFXAZ1+HLEE"
RNEBAHEHE KK H36,0002 T (=ZF —
Z & : 25,000 fT) - B R ARG H
£ Bk K 56,373,000 T (Z B — — 4 :
4,140,000 7T ) °

FH2012-18 =R E (EE) R A A
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20. Investments in Subsidiaries

20. B ARIKRE

Company
¥ NN

2013 2012

—E—=F —E——%F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FExT FAT

Unlisted shares, at cost EEWMRKD  RRE 939
Less: Impairment R E (939)

Loan to a subsidiary EF—RHBARIZER 2,044,321 2,044,321
Due from subsidiaries e Ukt BfY /B A Al FRIB 4,038,195 2,179,139
Due to a subsidiary JFE AF BfY /B A B FRIB (2,614) (11,383)
Less: Impairment * R E " (539,100) (440,807)
5,540,802 3,771,270

Loan to a subsidiary is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed
terms of repayment. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the loan balance is considered as quasi-capital. The
carrying amount of the loan to a subsidiary approximates its fair
value.

The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-
free and have no fixed terms of repayment except for an amount
due from a subsidiary of HK$111,850,000 (2012:
HK$111,850,000) which bears interest at a rate of 8% per
annum and is repayable on demand. The carrying amounts of
the amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries approximate their fair
values.

# Impairment losses were recognised during the years ended 30

June 2013 and 2012 due to the sustained loss making conditions
of these subsidiaries.
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20. B AR KRE @

R EARRBZREREBEESHWT

20. Investments in Subsidiaries (continued)

Movements in the provision for impairment of amounts due from
subsidiaries are as follows:

Company
b N

2013 2012

—E—=F —E——4F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT FET

At beginning of the year F 4 440,807 439,080

Impairment loss recognised B ERREEE 196,068 1,727

Write-off 85 2 K18 (97,775) —
At end of the year FR M

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 30 June 2013 are as follows: R_T—Z=ZF~A=1+H8  WBARFHE
m
Place of Nominal value of Percentage of
incorporation/ issued ordinary/ equity
registration and registered share attributable
Name operations capital to the Company Principal activities
HEMRYL EMER EBERTEERS QDR FEAL IR
=B R R R NN Bak FEXW
Direct Indirect
HiE =
Matsunichi Goldbase British Virgin Islands  United States dollar 100 — Investment holding
Global Administration Limited (“BVI) (“US$”) 1 Ordinary & R
MESERKTRERLDA HBEXHS 1= (Tl
(EBEREE]) TBER
Matsunichi Goldbase Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Ordinary — 100  Provision of
MASETHERER AR &AB 178 e X i A% administrative
services
TR
Matsunichi Goldbase BVI US$1 Ordinary — 100  Financial investment
Management Limited RBRELHS 135 7T AR SRIRE
M2 EBBEERAA
Matsunichi Goldbase BVI US$1 Ordinary 100 = Investment holding
Global (Management) Limited 2 & & X Bt & 135 7T & i AR &R

MBEERR(EB)AERAA

F$2012-13

SR (EER)BERAR
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20. it B AR KRE @

20. Investments in Subsidiaries (continued)

Place of Nominal value of Percentage of
incorporation/ issued ordinary/ equity
registration and registered share attributable
Name operations capital to the Company Principal activities
MR EME EBERTEZERS DR FEAL IR RE
£ R 1 B =f IR S E B Ao FEEWR
Direct Indirect
Hiz 8 4
Goldin Factoring Holdings Limited BVI US$1 Ordinary 100 — Investment holding
SIRRIE(RE)ER QA EERLHES 1€ T E R REER
Goldin Factoring Limited Hong Kong HK$500,000,000 — 100  Provision of
SReRREZRER AR BB Ordinary factoring services
500,000,000 7% 7T AR IE RS
Goldin Factoring Financing Hong Kong HK$1 Ordinary = 100  Money lending
Limited BB 178 7T & AR service
= IRRIE(RE)BER A A W& BR 75
Goldin Financial Plan Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Ordinary — 100  Inactive
SR (MBER)BRA A BA 178 7T & AR o5 B
Goldin Fund Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Ordinary — 100  Investment holding
RIRECEEFRAA BB 178 7T & AR wEERK
Smart Edge Limited Hong Kong HK$100 Ordinary — 60 Property
BEERAA BB 10078 7T & 38 A% development and
investment
MEZERIKE
Dynasty Select Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Ordinary — 100  Trading of wines
CRBEmBEEGRAA BB 178 I & i AR HmE 5
Goldin Factoring (China) BVI US$1 Ordinary = 100  Investment holding
Development Limited RBRZHS 13E @A TEER
BIRRIB (R EDERBRAA
Goldin Factoring (Shenzhen) Hong Kong HK$1 Ordinary — 100  Inactive
Limited BB 178 7T & @k R BB
= IRR I ORYI G BR AR A
Goldin Factoring, Inc.* United States US$1 Ordinary — 100  Provision of
of America 135 T & i A% factoring services
EFIER & R E T2 1 R 22 AR 75

Goldin Financial Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2012-13



20. Investments in Subsidiaries (continued)

Place of
incorporation/
registration and

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/
registered share

Percentage of
equity
attributable

20. i B 2~ AR E @

Name operations capital to the Company Principal activities
MR EME EBERTEERS DR FEAL IR RE
=g R i B = IR S E B B FTEEWR
Direct Indirect
Hiz k3
Cheng Mei Holdings Limited BVI US$1 Ordinary 100 — Investment holding
B IR B R 2 Al REELES 1€ T E R KEER
SHRFEIB(HE)ERER AT People’s Republic of  US$299,670,000** - 100  Provision of
China (“PRC”) 299,670,000 T ** factoring services
R AR HAE RAERE RS
(THr B )
Goldin Investment |, Inc.* United States of US$0.01 Ordinary — 100  Property investment

Goldin Investment Il, Inc.*

Country Lofty Limited
Bl AR A A

Gold Podium Limited”
e BRAA"

Mighty Prosper Limited”
hBEEBERAE

Gold Depot Holdings Limited”
CEERERAAT

Goldcourt International Limited*

SHERERA R

Gold Treasury Holdings Limited”
CEBEERARA A

America
EFEREREH

United States of
America
EHRERE

BVI
RBREARS

BVI
RERZES

BVI
KBRELRHS

BVI
RERZES

BVI
KBRELRHS

Hong Kong
B8

0.01 XL E B

US$0.01 Ordinary — 100
0.01 & L& @

US$1 Ordinary — 100
1357t AR

US$1 Ordinary 100 —
135 7T AR

US$1 Ordinary - 100
1€ E AR

US$1 Ordinary — 100
132 7T AR

US$1 Ordinary - 100
1€ E AR

HK$1 Ordinary — 100

1787 & @A

MERE

Operation of
a vineyard

Investment holding

BEEK

Investment holding

BEEK

Inactive

I

Investment holding

BREEK

Investment holding
BREZER

Investment holding

BREEK

F3£2012-13

SReR(EE)BRAA
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20. Investments in Subsidiaries (continued)

Place of
incorporation/
registration and

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/
registered share

20. it B AR KRE @

Percentage of
equity
attributable

Name operations capital to the Company Principal activities
EMRYL MR EBERTEZERS DR FEAL IR RE
Z5B 7 b B = i iR S T B Aok FTEXK
Direct Indirect
HE 4=
Eagle Dynasty Investments Hong Kong HK$1 Ordinary = 100  Investment holding
Limited” BB 178 7T & AR REZRK
B ER RN A"
SCEA Fermiere Des France Euro€12,176 — 96.68 Operation of
Domaines Rolland ? A Ordinary vineyards
12,176 B 7T ¥ 3@ X rEREE

Hox

The statutory/separate financial statements of these subsidiaries
are not audited by Emnst & Young, Hong Kong or another member
firm of the Ernst & Young global network.

The amount stated represents the paid-up capital.

These subsidiaries were incorporated/registered during the year
ended 30 June 2013.

SIRRIE(PE)ZEEABR AT is registered as a wholly-foreign-
owned enterprise under the law of PRC.

On 30 May 2013, the Group completed the acquisition of a 95%
equity interest in SCEA Fermiere Des Domaines Rolland (the
“SCEA”). An additional 1.68% was acquired during June 2013,
resulting in an aggregate interest of 96.68% at 30 June 2013.
Further details of the acquisition are included in note 37 to the
financial statements.

As at 30 June 2013, the entire issued share capital of Smart
Edge Limited was pledged to secure banking facilities granted to
the Group (note 30).

Goldin Financial Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2012-13
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ZEM B DA ZETE B BRI
HAEBLZKEAMEBAXEMLKE
RBEKBRAIRZ -

i3l & BRI R -

ZEMBRARARBE-_T—=F-A=
+ B IEFE R AL A -

RIRRIE(FE)ERBR AR DIREFH
EREMBIIEBEERE -

RZZE—=FRA=1+H ' AEEZTKK
8% SCEA Fermiere Des Domanies Rolland
(TSCEA) 2 95% % 7= 1 2= © % HMN1.68% 1Y
ZE-=FRNARKE RZZE—=F7~
A=+Bz##=4£%96.68% A BUE
ZiE— S BHN M HRERNEITA -

Z—=—FXA=1TH BEERAA
MEOBTRASERRTAEEZR
8 & K (Y RES0) -



21. Convertible Bond

1. T AR E S

Unlisted convertible bond: REMAIRBKRES :
— Loan portion —EREH
— Conversion option derivative —HIMmERESTAET A

Group

rEE
2013 2012
—E—=5F T
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FBT
83,342
7,126

89,951 90,468

During the year ended 30 June 2011, the Group acquired a
convertible bond with a principal amount of HK$90,000,000 (the
“Convertible Bond”) from Goldin Group (Investment) Limited, a
related company beneficially controlled by a substantial
shareholder of the Company, for a cash consideration of
HK$90,000,000. The Convertible Bond was issued by Goldin
Properties Holdings Limited, a related company of the Company
whose shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and is principally engaged in property development and
property investment. The Convertible Bond is interest-bearing at
a rate of 8% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears,
unsecured and matures on 21 January 2014. The effective
interest rate was 16.94%.

The Convertible Bond is convertible into ordinary shares of Goldin
Properties Holdings Limited at HK$6 per share (the “Conversion
Price”), subject to adjustment, at any time up to the maturity
date. On maturity, the Group is entitled to full repayment of the
outstanding principal amount of the Convertible Bond at a face
value of HK$90,000,000 together with accrued interest. The
Conversion Price was adjusted to HK$4.8 per share with effect
from 20 July 2011.

As at 30 June 2013 and 2012, the Convertible Bond is neither
past due nor impaired. The directors of the Company are of the
opinion that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
the balance as there has not been a significant change in the
credit rating of Goldin Properties Holdings Limited, and the
balance is considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements over the Convertible
Bond.

RBEE-_ZT——F~A=1tHILFE" K
SEREREEGERE)ERATKELAS:
%8 490,000,000/ 7T 2 7] #2 i% & & ([ 7] 32
BEH] ZARARRAIEFERRE=
T 2 B E R A B & & A&90,000,000
Bme AIRBRESHRRDELERERA
RIEIT ZAABARARZHBERR  H
BROREBHERSAAERAA LM EE
BREMEREMYERE - AIRKRES
TR E R RGE B - AR B EFE XN
AEEBRYN -_Z-NME-—F=-+—H3
B o B FIE £16.94% ©

ARRESAREEA B EMER B
fReBFT(MRED (T TFTHAB)EBRAES
IREZERBERAR LB - REHAH -
7 £ B A # 2 sk I% [ (890,000,000 7T &
HEEEITRRESFHAREREZ AN CREE
REAFNBE R-_TE——F+HA=-+8"
BREEFAREERLI8B T -

RZBE—=FR_ZB—Z-FX-A=+H"
AR EF S EA SR E - AR R
EEBRARARZEBEAFRLE LR
EAEHAZEHRDRERT2EUE -
AUARREER B ARG BRIELRE
BE - AEEYERTRRESTEER
ERmREMCEERAER-

F{2012-13 HESH(EBERAA
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21.

22.

Convertible Bond (continued)

As at 30 June 2013, the fair value of the loan portion of the
Convertible Bond is HK$95,618,000 (2012: HK$90,951,000).

The conversion option embedded in the Convertible Bond as at
30 June 20183 and 2012 was measured at fair value using the
Monte Carlo Simulation with Ordinary Least Squares by Longstaff
& Schwartz, with the change in fair value recognised in profit or
loss.

Loan Receivable

21.

22.

AR ES @

RZZE—=FEXA=+H AR ESL2
BRI D 2R FEAE95,618,000/8 T (= F
— — 4 : 90,951,000 7T) °

RZE—=FR=ZF—Z=ZF~A=+H"
AR E S NS 2 K # 5 # 5% B Longstaff
& Schwartz A I 8 & 2 X 75 12 i B Monte
CarlofB Bzt EAFE  MIBSKRERZA
FEEME-

Loan receivable & W E 3R

B E K
Group
rEEHE
2013 2012
—E—=5F — T4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTERT FET
21,850

Loan receivable represents a loan of HK$21,850,000 granted by
the Group to an independent third party (the “Borrower”). The
loan is interest-bearing at 8% per annum, payable semi-annually
and is repayable on demand. The balance is secured by (i) all the
bank accounts of the Borrower, and (i) an equity charge over a
100% of the share capital of the Borrower provided by the sole
owner of the Borrower. The loan balance is neither past due nor
impaired for which there was no recent history of default. The
loan was fully settled subsequent to 30 June 2013.

The carrying amount of the loan receivable approximates its fair
value.

Goldin Financial Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2012-13

BURERDAEERT —UBIYIE=H
([fERAL) 2 B 321,850,000/ Tt ° Z B K
BIEGENEEFE YAEBFFEXN
—R U RBERERKERE - BRLHRTEH
OWVEFRAZFBRITERS  R()B #1E K
AME—EHB AFTIR B R A100% 0 248 2
A& R AC (R I 1R o B B4 B R B HA U8 ROR
B BREHEERTE - ERXR =% —
SERNAZTRERSRLES -

EWERZREEEEAFERS -



23. Inventories 23. 8

Group

%
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT FHT

Work in progress g e 47,554 40,992
Finished goods 2 5K M 212,981 35,259

260,535 76,251

24. Prepayments, Deposits and Other 24 ERARIE - -ZERHEMEK
. =]
Receivables BRX
Group Company
& AT
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—=F —_F—= —E—=F —_F—=
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Tl T Tl T
Prepayments TR B 2,313 294
Prepayments for HRR 2 T8 318
en primeur 136,522 —
Deposits and other ~ #2 & [ H fh & U B 3%
receivables 25,267 15,067 5,504
164,102 15,633 5,798
The carrying amounts of the Group’s deposits and other AEFIKS L EMEIWES ZEEmEEE
receivables approximate their fair values. ANEEMEE
None of the above assets is either past due or impaired and the titEEMEHESORE - 5F A it
financial assets included in the above balances related to 2B ETBNEHY EAE KRR JE
receivables for which there was no recent history of default. WBR 2K o

F£iR2012-13 =RE/M(EBAR27 129
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25. BN E 5 IR

25. Trade Receivables

Trade receivables JEURE 5 AR 3Kk

Group

rEE
2013 2012
—E—=F —EF——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET T T
1,290,865 1,173,877

The Group’s trade receivables arose from factoring services to
companies in Mainland China and wine trading. The credit period
granted to each customer is generally for a period of 120 to 150
days for factoring services and 14 days to 60 days for wine
trading. Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group
seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables.
Overdue balances are regularly reviewed by senior management.
There is a significant concentration of credit risk as approximately
58% (2012: 63%) of the Group’s trade receivables is due from
two debtors. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing, except
for trade receivables of HK$1,045,000,000 (2012:
HK$985,232,000) which bear interest at rates ranging from 5.6%
to 7.10% per annum (2012: 7.07% to 7.10% per annum). The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancement
over its trade receivables. The carrying amounts of trade
receivables approximate their fair values.

An aged analysis of the Group’s trade receivables as at the end
of the reporting periods, based on the date of the sales invoices
is as follows:

REBZEKEZERRKRBRRAF E
Rt AR RHERERBEALERE S -
MBMNEPREZRERBERERE S
ZIEEH—KH A A120k 2150k &
14REOKR - BUREFPHUEERSEE
tﬁoﬁ%@%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁwﬁﬁ

M BRI - EEES TSR
B BR ’wwx_ff_i

%%2$EIEW%%$ﬂHXEﬁ
NEBKA WMEFEEAGEERREFM
7 o $1,045,000,0008 ;T (= T — = & :
985,282,000/ 70) 2 & W B 5 B 3k 1% & F
E56BEETI0E(ZE—ZF : RFEH X
7TO7TEE7TI0E) T BN BWE SRR
AR B - AEETERERKE S IRK
HECRNKFERIEMEERABE-
KRB SERZEAEEZEQAFERE -

ENHERZRHAZAEERKE Z KK
REBEHRZERRITAT :

Group

rEE
2013 2012
—E—=fF —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT

0 to 120 days 0& 120K
121 to 150 days 121 £150K
151 to 180 days 151 E180K

614,278 355,392
341,887 482,217
334,700 336,268

1,290,865

1,173,877

Goldin Financial Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2012-13



25. Trade Receivables (continued)

An aged analysis of the Group’s trade receivables that are not
considered to be impaired is as follows:

25. EIRE 3 KRR @

AERADREZAEEEWE 5KRNE
BRANTIT :

Neither past due nor impaired 7K 488 5 R Rk (B
Less than 30 days past due #H N R 30K
30 to 60 days past due # B30 E 60K

Group

xE
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT T
957,953 783,374
332,912 218,592
- 171,911

1,290,865 1,173,877

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to
customers for whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired related to
independent customers that had a good track record with the
Group. The directors of the Company are of the opinion that no
provision for impairment was necessary in respect of these
balances as there had not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances were still considered fully recoverable.

Included in the Group’s trade receivables are amounts due from
the Group’s related companies of HK$4,190,000 (2012:
HK$1,323,000) which are repayable on similar credit terms to
those offered to the major customers of the Group. The related
companies are beneficially owned by a substantial shareholder of
the Company.

S 380 50 R L 1AL 2 1 MBS 7 B 4 O 8 4
REHZES -

Ba AR E 2 AR R AR B %
BRUGHEZBIUEFARB ARRES
RRBARARERELRERSE B
EEERIEEAREHEABERDIR
AT BN M -

REBERKE SRR BIERKASEEREE
N A Z FHKIE4,190,0008 T (Z B — = 4 :
1,323,000 L) ' BEREAREBLATFTEE
BEEZHEEENRESRZ ZSHEQT
AR —BEBRRERSES -

FH2012-18 =R E (EE) R A A
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26. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Group
xE
2013
—E—=
HK$’000
FTET
Cash and Re RBRITET
bank balances 1,703,012
Time deposits TE HA 17 3K 780,860
Cash and RekReEE

2,483,872

cash equivalents

At the end of the reporting period, cash and bank balances of
the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to
approximately HK$7,303,000 (2012: HK$42,754,000). RMB is
not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying
periods of between one day and three months depending on the
immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at
the respective short term time deposit rates. The bank balances
and deposits are placed with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default. The carrying amounts of cash and cash
equivalents approximate their fair values.

Goldin Financial Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2012-13

26. e RBEESEE

Company
b NN

2012 2013 2012
—E——%F —E—= —E—_4F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
F&T THET T T
108,751 16,885
780,860 —
889,611 16,885

RBEHKR AEBAARETARE])
FHEZE € RIR1TATT © B 497,303,000
BT (=T — 4 : 42,754,000 7T) - AR
BEIAEEEmEBRAHMER - A BIE
R A 2 CONE B IR IO RCKETE - S
MENEEERE) AEEREFRER
BEEIINEEB ZRITBARBLIRAH
fih & o

RITASERRREARTHERZER T
P BEREUA B o 58 B TE HA A7 SR e F HR
A= NF—BE=@EH BORRAEE
ZEEREFR ARBEEEHE DR
TR F R ERER A B o SRITAEF RIRITEK
FAGEERFAOHMER R ZRT -
RekRTEFZEEEEE A FER

o+

Eo



27. Trade Payables 27. BEHE SRR

An aged analysis of the Group’s trade payables at the end of the ENBEZRH 2 AEBRNESERNE
respective reporting periods, based on the invoice date, is as MEARZIRBROTAT ¢
follows:
Group
rE
2013 2012
—E—-—=5F —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FAT
0 to 120 days 0E 120K 51,623
121 to 150 days 121 2150k 72,311
151 to 180 days 151 2180k 50,440
194,587 174,374
Trade payables are non-interest-bearing and have credit periods ENESERFZAECREREAENF120KkE
ranging from 120 days to 150 days. The carrying amounts of 150RZIZEEH ENESZERRZEEE
trade payables approximate their fair values. BHEANFERE -
Included in trade payables are trade payables of HK$49,927,000 ENESERFIEEENAEEBE AR Z
(2012: Nil) due to the Group’s related company, in which a WIEA9,927,0008 L (ZE——F : &) » K
substantial shareholder of the Company has controlling beneficial NE—ZBEFTERFENZBEEN T EEER
interests. The related balances are repayable within 120 days, BERER - ZMHESHRENI20BNEE -
which represents similar credit terms to the Group’s major EAREFBTFBERAZEERHRES -
creditors.
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Group
rEH

28. Accruals, Other Payables and Receipts
in Advance
2013
—EB-=fF
HK$’000
FTET
Accruals [EEtRE
Other payables H R 3R IE
Receipts in advance B U218

A

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average
term of three months. The carrying amounts of the Group’s and
the Company’s other payables and accruals approximate their
fair values.

Balances with the Immediate Holding
Company

On 16 August 2011, the Company obtained an unsecured facility
of USD300,000,000 (equivalent to HK$2,337,000,000) from the
immediate holding company. Pursuant to a supplemental
agreement to the facility entered on 30 August 2012, certain
terms of the facility were amended, and the repayment date of
the facility was amended to 31 December 2015.

During the year ended 30 June 2012, the Company drew down
a loan of HK$1,034,855,000 and repaid HK$62,521,000.
Amount due to the immediate holding company of
HK$28,091,000 represented the accrued interest as at 30 June
2012.

Loan from the immediate holding company as at 30 June 2012
was unsecured, bore interest at a rate of 8.5% per annum,
payable semi-annually and was not repayable within one year.
The carrying amounts of the balances with the immediate holding
company approximated their fair values.
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.Eﬁ%%~ﬁ@@ﬁ%ﬁ&

=35
L&
Company
¥ NN

2012 2013 2012
—E——fF —_E—=5F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FE T FHT
1,721
11,168
12,889

20.

HiENRBARTFE  FHORMAS=@
H oo NEBE MR F AN R K ES
BEZEEEREQAFERE -

HEEERAAZER

RZF——FNA+ B AREREE
7 (% A &) 7 B {E {8.300,000,000% T (#8 &
72,337,000,0007 70) 2 EE B ERE - 1R
BR - ZE——FNA=+HEHRZEERET
NHERHE ZEERIE TIKRREE
HEN WikZEERZERBRERAE
ZE—RAF+ZA=+—H-

HE_Z——FAZTBLEE AR
7) 4% B11,034,855,000 T 2 E X M B 8
62,521,000 T- N=—ZTE—=—F A=+
H - B EEER A E 2 5K 1828,091,000
BT KRERFE -

RZZE——FEXA=+H AEEEZEBEA
AR 2 BN AEE IR - 128.5% K F | X
AR CBEFENERTER—FANERE-
HEEERAGNESNEREEELQAT
BESE -



29. Balances with the Immediate Holding 20 HEEEZERATZEF@
Company (Continued)

During the year ended 30 June 2013, the Company drew down HE-_Z—=F~"A=+tHLEFE &
a loan of approximately HK$36,465,000. The aggregate amount N A DR EA36,4650008 T 2 E R 1
of the loan principal and the accrued interest up to 4 December —E——EFE+ R BEREARSELE
2012 of approximately HK$1,035,956,000 was used to satisfy E-TE-——E+ - ANBZEFAMEY
the subscription consideration for the rights shares by the 1,035,956,000/8 L E AEX N EEZER A
immediate holding company in December 2012. Bl Z AR (D REB KB -
The above transaction was a connected party transaction as NERXRSGBETHRUNFEVAZERTE 2
defined in chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. BHRS
30. Interest-Bearing Bank Borrowings 30. 5T ERITHEE
Group RE
Non-current ERD
2013 2012
—E-=F —ET—_fF
Effective Effective
contractual contractual
interest rate Maturity HK$’000 interest rate Maturity ~ HK$’000
BREWN EREH
Fl & ZH A FTHER e FIH A T T
Secured bank BHEHERT 1 month 272,323 — — —
loan (note a) B3 HIBOR +
(Mf5Ea) 3.4%
—@BREE —F—REF
RAT R ¥R
Eins4E
Unsecured bank IR T 4.75% 2019 — — —
loan (note b) = 475E —ZE—hF
(MisEb)
272,949 -
Analysed into D BRIT
bank loans: B
repayable in the ANE=
third to fifth years FERF
Bz 272,949 =
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30. Interest-Bearing Bank Borrowings

31

(Continued)

Group (Continued)

Notes:

(@) The bank facility in the amount of HK$3,000,000,000 was granted
by a bank to a 60% owned subsidiary, Smart Edge Limited (“Smart
Edge”), which holds an investment property under development.
Mr. Pan Sutong (“Mr. Pan”), a controlling shareholder of the
Company, is beneficially interested in the remaining 40% of the
issued share capital of Smart Edge.

The banking facility, is secured by, among others, the following:

i) mortgage over the entire share capital of Smart Edge
(note 20);

(i) mortgage over the investment property under development
with an aggregate carrying value of HK$5,700,000,000 at
30 June 2013 (note 17);

(iii) a corporate guarantee given by the Company for an amount
up to 60% of the outstanding bank borrowings; and

(iv) a personal guarantee given by Mr. Pan for an amount up to
40% of the outstanding bank borrowings.

(b) The bank facility is guaranteed by one of the beneficial
shareholders of the non-controlling interests. The carrying amount
of bank borrowing as at 30 June 2013 is denominated in Euros.

Derivative Financial Instrument

The derivative financial instrument at 30 June 2013 represents an
option (the “Option”) granted on 25 August 2011 to a non-
controlling shareholder of Smart Edge to purchase up to an
additional 10% equity interest in Smart Edge under certain
conditions.

The Option is exercisable at a price in accordance with a
specified formula at any time within six months after the issuance
of the relevant occupation permit by the Hong Kong Government
on the investment property. Details of the Option are set out in
the circular of the Company dated 26 August 2011.
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31. Derivative Financial Instrument (continued)

Upon inception, the Group recognised a derivative financial
liability of HK$34,400,000 in respect of the Option. The fair value
of the Option as at 30 June 2013 was HK$10,700,000 (2012:
HK$11,500,000) resulting in a fair value gain of HK$800,000
being recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year ended 30 June 2013 (2012: HK$22,900,000).

The fair values of the Option at the inception date, at 30 June
2012 and 30 June 2013 were determined with reference to the
valuations performed by Savills Valuation and Professional
Services Limited, an independent firm of professionally qualified
valuers. The valuations were determined by using a binomial
model with key inputs including the estimated valuation of the fair
value of Smart Edge, volatility and prevailing market interest
rates.

32. Deferred Tax

Movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year are as
follows:

31.

32.

TTES/ I Awm

AEEEVRBRERERTECREE
34,400,000 T- R—ZZE—=F XA =+
B B2 AFEA10,700,0007% T (=
T — — % : 11,500,000/ 7T) * MR E = =
T—ZFNAZTHLEFERGEEA2EK
AR 3 B8R 78 58 A F (B Y 2800,0007% It (=
T — — £ : 22,900,000 7T) °

RBBH  —E——FNA=+tHKRZ
E—ZFNAZtTHZEREAFEDLZ
EBUHEAEREEME KN FaE&
FEERSEBERERARMIEZHERE
F-ZHEEEREETEZHARE(BE
Smart Edge A ¥ B 2 FBEH A E - KB RE
TMBHR)Z —_BEAEREFE -

i 5E B TH

FRAZELEHABEEBHOT :

Deferred Tax Liabilities RIEFRIBEE
Group
rE
Depreciation Fair value
allowance in adjustments
excess of arising from
related acquisition of
depreciation a subsidiary Total
BHAE BB
MEZIFER YNECIE X §vd
wEE DN EFE #at
Note HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
B 52 FHET FET FHET
At 1 July 2011, R—ZE——F+tHA—H-
30 June 2012 and —E——H%XA=+H
1 July 2012 E—ZE——®#+F—H 369 - 369
Acquisition of a subsidiary 1§ % — & & 2 =] 37 - 22,890 22,890
At 30 June 2013 RZE—=%-HA=+AH 369 22,890 23,259
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32. Deferred Tax (continued)

Deferred Tax Liabilities (continued)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
HK$491,980,000 (2012: HK$481,114,000) that are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. Tax losses as at 30 June
2018 and 30 June 2012 are subject to approval of the Inland
Revenue Department. Deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of these losses as they have arisen in
subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time and it is
not considered probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the tax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in
Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 10%. The Group
is therefore liable to withholding taxes on dividends distributed by
the subsidiary established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

At 30 June 2013 and 2012, no deferred tax has been recognised
for withholding taxes payable on the unremitted earnings of the
Group’s subsidiary established in Mainland China that are subject
to withholding taxes. In the opinion of the directors, it is not
probable that the subsidiary will distribute such earnings in the
foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with investment in a subsidiary in Mainland
China for which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised
totaled approximately HK$165,605,000 as at 30 June 2013 (2012:
HK$120,376,000).
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33. Share Capital

Ordinary Shares

B
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT FET

Authorised: ETE -
11,000,000,000 11,000,000,000 f%
(2012: 5,500,000,000) ordinary —E 4
shares of HK$0.10 each 5,500,000,000 %)
(2012: HK$0.10 each) BREE0I0E T
—E——F R
ME0.108 L) Z
B A% 1,100,000 550,000
Issued and fully paid: BETREBRBR
6,974,991,992 6,974,991,992 fi%
(2012: 3,321,329,520) ordinary —E——fF:
shares of HK$0.10 each 3,321,329,520 /%)
(2012: HK$0.10 each) FREME0.10% T
—E-_F 8K
HE{E0.10/% L)
2 &R 697,499 332,133

FH2012-18 =R E (EE) R A A
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33. Share Capital (continued) 33. IR A )
Ordinary Shares (Continued) =R e )
Movements in the Company’s issued share capital are as follows: RNATE BT ZEANEB T :
Number of Share premium
shares in issue  Issued capital account Total
=5 &
RO E ERTRE B2 12 0% & BR st
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt 5 F&ET FHET FH&T
At 1 July 2011 R-ZZT——F+tH—H 3,321,209,520 332,121 2,837,876 3,169,997
Issue of shares upon 1716 B AR B B B AT AR 1D
exercise of share options (@) 120,000 12 66 78
Release of reserve upon 17 {i B8 % 4 B 15 o 178 48 5%
exercise of share options (@) - — 30 30
Share issue expenses A& 1D B 4T 2 (a) — = (1) (1)
At 30 June 2012 and R-ZE——FXA
1 July 2012 =+BR-ZE—=F
+tHA—H 3,321,329,520 332,133 2,837,971 3,170,104
Rights issues 3l (b) 3,653,462,472 365,346 3,543,859 3,909,205
Share issue expenses B 15 817X (b) — = (37,524) (37,524)
Issue of shares upon TERERER TR
exercise of share options () 200,000 20 110 130
Release of reserve upon 17 8% B A B B fah i 88
exercise of share options (@) — — 49 49
At 30 June 2013 R=ZE—=F~A=+H 6,974,991,992 697,499 6,344,465 7,041,964
Notes: B =E

(@) During the year ended 30 June 2013, the subscription rights
attaching to 200,000 share options (2012: 120,000) were
exercised at the subscription price of HK$0.652 (2012: HK$0.652)
per share, resulting in the issue of 200,000 (2012: 120,000) shares
of HK$0.1 each for a total cash consideration, before expenses, of
approximately HK$130,000 (2012: HK$78,000). A share option
reserve of HK$49,000 (2012: HK$30,000) was released to the

share premium account.
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33. Share Capital (continued)

Ordinary shares (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(0)

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 7 November 2012,
the authorised share capital of the Company was increased from
HK$550,000,000 to HK$1,100,000,000 by the creation of
5,500,000,000 additional shares of HK$0.1 each, ranking pari
passu in all respects with the existing shares of the Company.

In December 2012, the Company issued and allotted 3,653,462,472
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each to the qualifying shareholders
pursuant to the rights issue on the basis of eleven rights shares for
every ten shares held by members on the register as at 15
November 2012 at a subscription price of HK$1.07 per share for a
total consideration, before expenses, of HK$3,909,205,000. The
net cash proceeds of approximately HK$2,835,725,000 after
offsetting a loan from the immediate holding company of
approximately HK$1,035,956,000 and the share issue expenses of
approximately HK$37,524,000, is to be used as to
HK$1,550,000,000 for capital injection to = #R/FIE(F H) &R AR
/x| for the factoring businesses and the remaining amount to
expand the wine business as needed.

Share Options

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the share
options issued under the scheme are included in note 34 to the
financial statements.

33. B A (@)

A iR (#@)

A 3
= &8

T : ()

)
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TR % = 0 B B 7 #5,500,000,000 %
BREEOABITZEINKRGDG  ARQ A
Z & F B AN $1550,000,00058 7T 18 0 &=
1,100,000,000%8 7T * R & 5 EH E AR 7]
BERMNZEERFHUNL o

RZZFE—ZF+F  AREREZRRZ
T-——F+—A+HEAEZMARRSE
BETRRBROERSE - —REBRBROZ
HlRrEE HEERREE1.07BT R
A & 1% IR 3R 3% 1T & B %% 3,653,462,472 %
EREECIB T2 EBR - BNRE IR
7 X A1) /43,909,205,000 7T ° 38 & Fr 15
X IEF 58 4 52,835,725,0007% T (K #5 &
B A% A 7 & 3 #91,085,956,000 7% 7T K ik
19 2 17 B X 49387,524,0008 £ &) * H &
1,550,000,0007 7T i FAERL R IBE T A =
BRE(PFE)BEEBRAGES - MR
EHRETRZAERTEMER -
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34. Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants thereunder for their contribution to the Group and/or
enabling the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre employees
and attract human resources that are valuable to the Group and
any entity in which the Group holds an equity interest (“Invested
Entity”). Eligible participants of the Scheme include the
Company’s directors, employees, suppliers of goods or services,
customers, shareholders, business partners and professional
advisers of the Company or any Invested Entity. The Scheme
became effective on 29 January 2004 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that
date.

The maximum number of shares which could be issued upon
exercise of all share options to be granted under the Scheme
was 332,090,952, being an amount equivalent, upon their
exercise, to 10% of the shares in issue of the Company at 27
October 2010, the date on which the shareholders of the
Company approving the refreshment of the limit in respect of the
granting of share options under the Scheme. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting. The maximum number of shares
issuable under the share options to each eligible participant
under the Scheme within any 12-month period, is limited to 1%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any time.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive
directors. In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate
value (based on the price of the Company’s share at the date of
the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting. The offer of a grant of share option may be accepted
within 28 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a
nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee.
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34. Share Option Scheme (continued)

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
the offer of the share options; (i) the average Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of the offer; and (i) the nominal
value of a share of the Company.

Share options do not confer the rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The following share options were outstanding during the year:

4. BERETE @

BREZOTEEVRESET EFED
ROAARBROREREZZADRZH R
PR E (VAR RIROREEZZEB B
A AR S A 2B P U B ¢ (i)
ARBABMZABE=EFPZIERE °

BEREYER THAEARDBRERERR
HLREZER -

DA B B TR 4F IR i AR AT 82

2013 2012
—E-—=F —E—=F
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise price Number of exercise price Number of
per share options per share options
R mE TR I
FIgTEE BREHE FIITEE BREZE
HK$ ’000 HK$ '000
BT T BT T4
At beginning of the year 4 4] 0.653 41,050
Exercised during RERTTE
the year 0.652 (120)
Lapsed during the year* 7 4 & sk 2" 0.652 (1,110)
Forfeited during R E AR Y
the year™ 0.652 (80)
At end of the year RER 0.653 39,740

FH2012-18 =R E (EE) R A A
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34. Share Option Scheme (Continued) 34. BRESE @
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options NEEE RN K THE 2 EBREZTFEE L
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: THEENT -
30 June 2013
Number of options Exercise price per share* Exercise period
—E—=%XA=1H
BREZA BRITEE" TEH
’000 HK$
Skl BT
3,000 0.654 22/07/2009-21/07/2019
4,000 0.654 22/01/2010-21/07/2019
7,040 0.652 23/01/2010-22/07/2019
4,000 0.654 22/01/2011-21/07/2019
7,500 0.652 23/01/2011-22/07/2019
4,000 0.654 22/01/2012-21/07/2019
10,000 0.652 23/01/2012-22/07/2019
39,540
30 June 2012
Number of options Exercise price per share* Exercise period
—E—=—F,~A=+H
ERESE GRATERE 1T HA
‘000 HK$
T BT
3,000 0.654 22/07/2009-21/07/2019
4,000 0.654 22/01/2010-21/07/2019
7,100 0.652 23/01/2010-22/07/2019
4,000 0.654 22/01/2011-21/07/2019
7,560 0.652 23/01/2011-22/07/2019
4,000 0.654 22/01/2012-21/07/2019
10,080 0.652 23/01/2012-22/07/2019
39,740
The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant ZEBRE GBI ARE B BREEITE
until the commencement of the exercise period. EARAIR B ©
* The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in * AR A #E T AR SAT A B AT S A RR
case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the HIRE MBS BRETEEEAETH
Company’s share capital. o
# During the year ended 30 June 2012, 1,110,000 share options * HE-_ZT——XA=+tBLEFEA"
lapsed upon cessation of employment of participants in 1,110,00017 & A% 1 AR & 5% =T B IE AR 4&
accordance with terms of the Scheme. IHERASEABRKK -
# During the year ended 30 June 2012, 80,000 share options were ” HE-Z——F~A=1+THLFE"
forfeited as the vesting conditions were not fulfilled. 80,0000 EERR RN KM E F B 1§

- BEHRORM -
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34. Share Option Scheme (continued)

The fair value of the equity-settled share options granted during
the period from 1 January 2009 to 30 June 2010 was estimated
by Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited, an independent firm of
professionally qualified valuers, using the binomial option pricing
model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. The fair value of the equity-settled
share options granted was HK$22,145,000 of which the Group
has no share option expense recognised for the year ended 30
June 2013 (30 June 2012: HK$882,000). The following table lists
the inputs to the model used:

4. BERETE @

RZBEZNF-—A—BE_ZE-—ZTFAX
A= ‘?’EIE@FEJ?HjIELX*E)\ii%ZE%HQ
#ERNTEDRBILEXSBRGER
V|gers Appra|sal & Consulting Limited 18 #& FfT
EEREZGERXERGHEEB B ER
BEBEIAMGE AEEUNEREEBR
2 AF{E /22,145,000 T« R ALK

Bz —=F~A=ZtHILER®

RERELH(ZE—=—F<A=+1H:
882,000/%75)0 TR A PTER A RE
2R

Grant date 22 July 2009 23 July 2009
—EEAEF —EEAF
el =R +tBA=+=H +tA=+=H
Dividend yield (%) % Bk 75 (%) N/ATEE N/ATEE
Expected volatility (%) ?E §+ M (%) 43.7 43.7
Risk-free interest rate (%) % T 2 (%) 2.328 2.35
Expected life of options (year) ,5% Hx HETE BRAF HR () 3 3
Weighted average share price mEFHRE (ERET)
(HK$ per share) HK$0.657% 7T HK$0.647%8 7T

The expected life of the options is based on the historical data
over the past three years and is not necessarily indicative of the
exercise patterns that may occur.

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical
volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not
necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the
measurement of fair value.

During the year ended 30 June 2013, 200,000 (2012: 120,000)
share options were exercised which resulted in the issue of
200,000 (2012: 120,000) ordinary shares of the Company and
new share capital of approximately HK$20,000 (2012:
HK$12,000) and share premium of HK$110,000 (2012:
HK$66,000) (before issue expenses), as further detailed in note
35 to the financial statements.

BRERPFHIRBEBE=ZF2ELE
BHE R ARBRARAEHBEZITER
e

i‘ﬁi%ﬁ)ﬂ%&Hﬂiﬁi‘}ﬁflﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁgﬂz{ﬁi
CARBRERER

SFERAFERLARMNAMKRBEREZZM
R o

REE-_Z—=F"A=Z1+BLFEEHE
200,0001p (= & — = 4 : 120,00017 ) & A%
BT &riﬂiﬂﬂiﬁf"zoooooﬂﬁ(:
T — 4 : 120,0000% ) Z @ - I E A FH
B& 7K #720,0007 7T (= ZF — = 4 : 12,0004
JT) K B A7 3% B 110,000 7T (— T — — 4 ¢
66,0007 7T) (CRBREITZ L) - #— 25
EENE R el R

F352012-13 HEEE(EB)ERAA
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34. Share Option Scheme (Continued) 34. BRESE @

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 39,540,000 WEBHR XA BREZTEHEAE
share options outstanding under the Scheme. The exercise in full 39,540,00017 & K 17 {5 2 B8 AR 4 - B IR A
of the remaining share options would, under the present capital ANEERB ZERERE S TEREERY
structure of the Company, result in the issue of 39,540,000 17 #8 B B A 2 7] 58 50 3 1739,540,000 A%
additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional share T @mA% - I E A E8 IMA% 483,954,000 JT &
capital of HK$3,954,000 and share premium of HK$21,856,000 f% 1 4 1B 21,856,000 7T (& #0 B 3 17 XX
(oefore issue expenses). m) e

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the R ENSEHBHRREE KQAARBE
Company had 39,540,000 share options outstanding under the #Z 5t 2| # 5 39,540,00013 1 & 17 2 B
Scheme, which represented approximately 0.6% of the - (EARRANZBZE TR AL
Company’s shares in issue as at that date. 0.6% °
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35. Reserves

(@)

(b)

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Company (b) &2
Share
premium Share option Accumulated
account reserve losses Total
BROEEER BRERE ZitER st
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
B & THT FHIT FHT THT
At 1 July 2011 N_TE——F
+HA—H 2,837,876 9,239 (334,991) 2,512,124
Loss for the year and FEEERFEZE
total comprehensive BB E
loss for the year 14 — - (64,564) (64,564)
Equity-settled share ARER A E 2 B
option expenses S H 34 - 882 - 882
Issue of shares upon TR 21T
exercise of share XD (A0 X H)
options, net
of expenses 95 (30) — 65
Lapsed share options o 34 B AR — (259) 259 —
At 30 June 2012 and RZE——F
1 July 2012 NA=ZTHEK
—E——F
+H—H 2,837,971 9,832 (399,296) 2,448,507
Loss for the year and FEEBEERFEEEA
total comprehensive BEEE
loss for the year 14 — - (230,208) (230,208)
Rights issues A 33(0b) 3,543,859 — — 3,543,859
Share issue expenses R 1A BT H 33(b) (37,524) — — (37,524)
Issue of shares upon TEBRRER T
exercise of share BRD (F0B = H)
options, net
of expenses 159 (49) — 110
At 30 June 2013 R_E—=F
~NA=1H 6,344,465 9,783 (629,504) 5,724,744

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share

options granted which have not yet been exercised, as
further explained in the accounting policy for share-based
payment transactions in note 3 to the financial statements.

The amount will either be transferred to the share premium

account when the related options are exercised, or to

accumulated losses should the related options expire or be

forfeited.
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36.

37.

Non-Controlling Interests

As at 30 June 2013, the non-controlling interests include a loan
of HK$1,388,881,000 (2012: HK$1,388,881,000) from a non-
controlling shareholder. The loan balance is unsecured, interest-
free and has no fixed terms of repayment. In the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the loan balance is considered as
quasi-capital. The non-controlling shareholder is an entity wholly-
owned by a substantial shareholder of the Company.

Business Combination

On 30 May 2013, the Group acquired a 95% equity interest in
the SCEA (the “Acquisition”). SCEA is engaged in the operation
of three vineyards and wine production and trading. The
Acquisition was made as part of the Group’s strategy to expand
its wine production base to different regions. The purchase
consideration for the Acquisition was in the form of cash.

The purchase consideration is contingent the final measurement
of the net asset value of SCEA on the acquisition date agreed by
the Group and the vendor.

Goldin Financial Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2012-13

36.

37.

FERER

M-BE—=FEXA=18 FERERSH
&R B — % JF = ik R 3R 2 1,388,881,000
BT ER(Z T — = £ :1,388,881,000%
TL) c ZEREHRAEER 2R ERERE
BEH ANRAEERE ZEREHE
BEBEER - ZEEBRBREEBBEEARF —
ZEERRE2EHREEZER-

EBEH

M-TBE—=FRA=+H ~A&EEKE
SCEAZ 95% & 78 # z= ([ 5%z W & 1) ° SCEA
NE-FEEEENEE BREERE
S ZWBEBNEAASEERRE LA R EE
EMETRAREENER 2 —BMEL - %
KE2BEREBEAREI M-

BERELKARARET HE RSCEAR
WEAZEEFEZRRIAEME



37. Business Combination (continued) 37. ¥ 8 6t

A summary of the fair values of the identifiable assets and SCEARZWEBBH 2 AI#AEE R AR
liabilities of SCEA as at the date of Acquisition is as follows: ZAFEBRIT :
Fair value
recognised
on acquisition
MU BRI Z
AFE
Notes HK$’'000
B 5 T T
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENMEKE 16 118,097
Intangible assets mEE 18 17,943
Vines B & 151 19 1,613
Inventories EE 41,985
Trade receivables FEUE 5 BR 3K 4,055
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 815 718 « &2 & & H b fE Yg 3k 18 688
Cash and bank balances R RRITHETT 1,721
Trade payables BT E 5 BR K (1,842)
Other payables and accruals HihENZIBRENFRE (6,887)
Loan from a shareholder H—E2REREZER (22,379)
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FEBRITEE (85,635)
Deferred tax liabilities RERIAEE 32 (22,890)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BAFEREZA#HANEE
FEAERE 46,473
Non-controlling interest R = (2,305)
Provisional consideration, satisfied by cash BREARE URE X 44,168
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37. Business Combination (continued) 37.

The transaction costs incurred for the acquisition amounted to
HK$1,200,000, and have been included in administrative
expenses for the year.

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the Acquisition is as

¥¥E6tmwm

It W B BT E A 2 R B K A A1,200,0007%
T BRFAFARZITERAIA -

BRAZBBZRSRIMBET :

follows:
HK$’000
FAT
Provisional cash consideration paid EffREESKE (44,168)
Acquisition of a loan from WHERARERECER
the former shareholders (22,375)
Settlement of interest-bearing bank borrowing SFERBRITEEEE (85,001)
Cash and bank balances acquired Frii MR & RIRTTHETT 1,721
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents EHZRBEZRe A SEERL FE
in respect of the Acquisition (149,823)
Transaction costs of the Acquisition FTARBKEEXB 2RERELZ
included in cash flows from operating activities Z W BE X 5 AR (1,200)
(151,023)

Since the Acquisition, SCEA contributed HK$6,312,000 to the
Group’s turnover and a profit of HK$265,000 to the consolidated
profit for the year.

Had the acquisition taken place at the beginning of the year, the
revenue of the Group and the profit to the Group for the year
would have been HK$252,519,000 and HK$1,520,451,000,
respectively.
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B 5% W B 12 - SCEA & /K &= B & [§£ 6,312,000
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38. Note to the Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows

Major Non-cash Transactions

(@)

During the year ended 30 June 2013, interest on loan from
the immediate holding company of HK$42,127,000 (2012:
HK$41,960,000) was satisfied by a loan drawdown of the
same amount from the immediate holding company.

During the year ended 30 June 2013, the subscription
consideration for the rights shares by the immediate
holding company was satisfied by offsetting the
outstanding loan from the immediate holding company and
the related accrued interest of approximately
HK$1,035,956,000.

During the year ended 30 June 2012, the loan of
HK$16,000,000 from a non-controlling shareholder of a
subsidiary was satisfied by the repayment of
HK$16,000,000 of loan from the immediate holding
company of the same amount.

During the year ended 30 June 2012, the Group disposed
of an available-for-sale investment and financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss at a consideration of
HK$193,306,000 and HK$504,342,000, respectively. The
proceeds from the sale consideration were used to settle
the other borrowing.

3. mERERERMET

EXRFREXRS
@ RBE-ZE—=FA=ZTHLHF

E HEEERARREZERZ
F 842,127,000 T (= F — = F:
41,960,000/ L) BB B A HEEIER
ARIEMEBEERMEE -

RBE_ZT—=9~A=Z1+HL%F
E HEEZRARRBEBRRNG
ZREEZBEHERBEEZRA
RIZAEBEERKIEERFEL
1,035,956,000% 7T i /5 (& °

RBEE-_Z——F~A=1tHLHF
B RkE— KB AR FFIERBRR
2 B 716,000,000 /& T E & B E &
HEEERARIERHZSHEER
16,000,000 7T M /5 & o

RBEE_Z——F~A=1tHLHF
- A& E 5 5z A B 193,306,000
7 7T} 504,342,000 7T & A 4t H
ERERRBEZRRATEREZ
CREE HERBRESRERER
EHAEE -

FH2012-18 =R E (EE) R A A
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39. Operating Lease Commitments

As Lessee

The Group leases certain of its office properties under operating
lease arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for
terms ranging from one to three years (2012: one to three years).

At 30 June 2013, the Group had total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as
follows:

30. MEMWAIRE

EREBA

AEERBLEMOLZFEAETREFE
ME - RRENFEHOER2FHLS—=
=F(ZE—ZF: —FE=F)-

RZE—Z=F"A=Z1+H A&ERED
AREEEENZIAREEESLED B

—FR

Within one year
In the second to fifth years, inclusive

E_EZFLF(BREEMF)

BT :
Group
rEH
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FAT
12,800
2,253
15,053

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had no
significant operating lease commitment (2012: Nil).
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40. Commitments 40. & IE

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note BRI E M sE 395 it 7 4% & R 4 A FE ] -
39 above, the Group had the following capital commitments at REEBNRREH KRB A TNEANRIE :

the end of the reporting period:

Group
K&
2013 2012
—E—-—=5F —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FAT
Contracted, but not provided for: BRI 4B KRR

Investment property &Y 78,444
Authorised, but not contracted for: EHLEBERETL :

Investment property KEYE 2,235,643 2,362,146
At the end of reporting period, the Company had no significant RBEAR ARATEEREE(ZT
commitment (2012: Nil). ——F )

41. Contingent Liabilities 4. FAREE
As at the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not RBEAR ARRMBERRBEZXASE
provided for in the financial statements are as follows: BT :
Company
AT
2013 2012
=B—=£ —E—_4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FER FA& T
Guarantees given to banks in connection  FiR ¥ —EH B A & Z @& m

with facilities granted to a subsidiary mIRIT R 2 R 1,800,000 =
As at 30 June 2013, the banking facility granted to a subsidiary, RZE—=F~A=+H BEF—@EW
which is subject to guarantees given to the bank by the Company BRAAZRITBEAXRAARESAS
for up to 60% of the utilised amount, was utilised to the extent of B2 & %60%MIRITIREER)EESA
HK$163,394,000 (2012: Nil). 163,394,000 L (Z T — =4 : T) o

F£R2012-13 =REm(EB)ARAT 153



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 285 A Mk

30June2013 —E—=FA=1H

42. Related Party Transactions

(@ In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these
financial statements, the Group had the following
transactions with related parties during the year:

42. BEATRS

@)

BUtEMBERREMEHFLZR
S REBERFAERBEALET
ATR5 :

Group
rE
2013 2012
- =% —T——4F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FHET FAT
Transactions with related companies B2 78 2 &) 3 2 A% 5 4%
in which a substantial shareholder & & &5 15 I #E 25 2
of the Company has controlling FAERRIZR G :
beneficial interests:
Sales of wines* TR (i) 1,330
Commission paid for underwriting &t & #4748 22 &1 A% 1

the Company’s shares* 2B Ee* (0] -
Brokerage commission paid* B e () 46
Financial advisory fees paid* BB AR & R (i) 30
Project management fee paid* BEfNEEERER" (i 3,120
Interest income on the Convertible ] # i% f& %5 > F1| &

Bond* I A~ (iii) 7,200
Reimbursement of expenses REER (iv) 3,641
Handling fee income and interest REBRIEFTISZ

income from factoring services* FEEBRAK

2 A i) —
Sales of wines to a substantial MARFEERR
shareholder of the Company* HEBM® (0] 925
Interest expense on a loan from HEEZEERARREMR
the immediate holding company* Y &% H &% * v) 70,154
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42. Related Party Transactions (continued)

(@)

(Conti
Notes:

nued)

The transactions are conducted in accordance with
respective contractual terms.

The project management fee on services provided by the
related party to the Group on the investment property under
development is charged in accordance with the contractual
terms. The agreement may be terminated by either party by
giving not less than two months’ written notice to the other
party. As at 30 June 2013, the committed project
management fee was approximately HK$390,000 (2012:
HK$390,000).

Interest income is calculated at a coupon rate of 8% per
annum on the principal amount.

The amount was charged on a cost basis.

Interest expense is charged on a loan from the immediate
holding company, further details of which are included in
note 29 to the financial statements, and is calculated at a
rate of 8.5% per annum on the principal amount.

These transactions constituted connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions as defined in chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

Outstanding balances with related parties

M

(i)

(i)

(v)

Details of the Group’s loan from the immediate
holding company as at 30 June 2012 are set out in
note 29 to the financial statements.

Details of the Convertible Bond receivables from a
related company are set out in note 21 to the
financial statements.

The carrying amount of trade receivables as at 30
June 2013 included an amount of HK$4,190,000
(2012: HK$1,330,000) due from related companies
in which the substantial shareholder of the Company
has beneficial interests.

The carrying amount of trade payables as at 30 June
2013 included an amount of HK$49,927,000 (2012:
Nil) due to a related company in which the
substantial shareholder of the Company has
beneficial interests.

42. BE AN TR Z @)

@ (&)
B RE -
[0) RGP IRBE G LMEFKHEST ©

(i) BEATHASEBEIRHBREZERF
REMEZRY  ZSRB2EE
EIRE B TIIRIE A O EFURE o 1
FE—FABBEHTORMEA
ZEEBMNT S —FAKIERE -
R_ZE—=F~A=+H  B&#%
Z I8 B EE B R A390,000% T
(=2 — =4 : 390,000/ 7T) °

i) FEMANEASHEARLREGE
BEE & -

(v) SRR EEYE -

v MNERXNDER-—FHEEERAR
RUZEHRE  HE—TSHBR
PR BA 75 3R 3% M 5120 - W3R AN & FH LA
FFEBSEZFKRFH o

*

ZER B LR A14AE BT 7
EXBEZRGRFEMERS °

T

ABEANLT 2 RBEEH

) HRZTE—Z=—ZF~A=+tH =K
SERERERARREHRZE
TR B R B SRR T RE29 e

) £

(i) EH—FHREEARZARKE
FHBHR P ERKME21 -

iy RZZE—=FA=+H" E
WE ZEREREES R EER—
MEAEQAA(ARREERRE
REFHEEERER) ZSHE
4,190,000 (=& — = F :
1,330,000/ L) °

vy R=ZFE—=F~A=+8 '
NESEFEET RERER—
MAEQARI(ARAAEEREK
RETFHAEEZED) 228
49,927,000 7L (=& — =4 :
) o

FaRey

F{2012-13 RS (EBER AT
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42. Related Party Transactions (continued) 2. BEALTRZ mw
(o)  Outstanding balances with related parties (Continued) () HEEALTZREESES®E)
(v Non-controlling interests as at 30 June 2013 include vy RZZE—=%XA=Z+8"
a 40% equity interest in a subsidiary held by an entity R ETBIER — HEKB
beneficially owned by the substantial shareholder of AR (AARRAETERREE 2
the Company and a loan therefrom in the amount of BERNEEMEFA) 240%M
HK$1,388,881,000. s ARARELEZER

1,388,881,000 % 7T ©

(c) Compensation of key management personnel of the © AEEFTEZEEEASHHN:
Group:
Group
&
2013 2012
—E—=fF —_F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Short term employee benefits REHEBSREA 5,658
Equity-settled share option expenses NEREE 2 BRES H 204
Total compensation paid to TRHEEETEAEZ
key management personnel i 4 sE 5,862
Key management personnel of the Group are its directors. AEBZFEEEABAHES &
Further details of director’'s emoluments are included in EMEcE—THFBENTBRE
note 11 to the financial statements. MaE1 o
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43. Financial Instruments by Category

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the respective reporting periods are

as follows:

Group—30 June 2013

Financial Assets

Convertible bond — loan portion

Convertible bond — conversion
option derivative

Loan receivable

Trade receivables

Financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

A # R A5 55
—BERED
] R 7
— Rk
TTHETA
& U & 3%
U & 5 Bk 3K
T ATAN FRIA -
ma REAM
FEW R IR Z
RekfeEE

—

TEMEE

Financial assets
at fair value
through profit
or loss — held
for trading
RIB R R
RAFEEE
ZEMEE
—-REEE
HK$’000
TET

Loans and
receivables

BEREK
A&
HK$’000
THET

21,850
1,290,865

16,986
2,483,872

3,902,993

FH2012-18 =R E (EE) R A A

ok
|
[l
_|_

Total

At
HK$’000
F 5

531
21,850
1,290,865

16,986
2,483,872

3,903,524
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43. BRI E D 2w T & @

43. Financial Instruments by Category
(Continued)

158

Group—30 June 2013 KEB——-—ZFT—=xXA=1+
H
Financial Liabilities TRas
Financial
liabilities at fair
value through Financial
profit or loss liabilities at
— held for amortised
trading cost Total
REBEZR
RAFLERE R
z2emasE DN
- BEEE Z2emeE &5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FEx TE T FExT
Trade payables BT E SRR 194,587 194,587
Financial liabilities included in accruals, STAESEGE
other payables and receipts in advance  H ] J& <t 208 2
TEUFRIE 2
TRBE 74,606 74,606
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTERITEE 272,949 272,949
Derivative financial instrument THELmI A - 10,700

10,700

Goldin Financial Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2012-13
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43. Financial Instruments by Category 43. ZERE 72 €®M T A

(Continued)

Group—30 June 2012 AEB—-—SE——-—FXxB8=+
H
Financial Assets THMEE
Financial assets
at fair value
through profit
or loss — held Loans and
for trading receivables Total
MBI
BRANFERRE
ZEeRMEE Bk
—REEE FE W FR A A
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FAT
Convertible bond — loan portion ARk ES
—ERE D — 83,342 83,342
Convertible bond — conversion A R & 5
option derivative —H i
PTETA 7,126 — 7,126
Loan receivable B E = — 21,850 21,850
Trade receivables FEUE 5 BR 3k = 1,173,877 1,173,877
Financial assets included in prepayments, T ATEFKIA
deposits and other receivables BEREM
FEWFRIE 2
TREE — 15,067 15,067
Cash and cash equivalents BekReFEE = 84,754 84,754
7,126 1,378,890 1,386,016
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43. Financial Instruments by Category 43. ZERE P2 €@ I Aw
(Continued)
Group—30 June 2012 AEB——-—SE——-—FX8=+
H
Financial Liabilities eMERE
Financial
liabilities at fair
value through Financial
profit or loss liabilities at
— held for amortised
trading cost Total
18 7 BR
BT ERE g
ZEmBE PR 7S R 28
—REEE et = R =)
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FAT
Trade payables FERTE 5 AR = 174,374 174,374
Financial liabilities included in accruals, STAEEE
other payables and receipts in advance  H ] & <t 308 2
TEU R IE 2
TRAasE — 22,850 22,850
Due to the immediate holding company e BRI
NGIE ] — 28,091 28,091
Loan from the immediate holding company i & % 1% i% A 7]
Rtz EX — 972,334 972,334
Derivative financial instrument MESBIEA 11,500 - 11,500
11,500 1,197,649 1,209,149
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43.

44.

Financial Instruments by Category
(Continued)

Company

All the Company’s financial assets as at 30 June 2013 and 2012,
including amounts due from subsidiaries, other receivables and
cash and cash equivalents are categorised as loans and
receivables.

All the Company’s financial liabilities as at 30 June 2013 and
2012, which include accruals and other payables, due to
subsidiaries and balances with the immediate holding company
are categorised as financial liabilities at amortised cost.

Fair Value Hierarchy

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and
disclosing the fair values of financial instruments:

Level 1: fair values measured based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

43.

44.

BENE s 2E€/m T Au)

KR F]

RZBE—=FR_B—Z-FX-A=+H"
ARRFECREE(RIEREHE QA
2B EMERRBEARRERRESE
B)ARBRERKERFHIEA -

RZBE—Z=FR_FB—Z-F-A=+H"
AomfiEcRABE(BREFAERA
A RIE - BRI B QR FIR R A EE
ZIRA BB 2 RIBER) IR A RRE
HKARBEZ CRBE-

DFRERRB

ARERATHRBEERABLBIA
ZAFE:

FAR: AFERERMS EBRUEESN
BEZHBECREAR)GE

Level 2: fair values measured based on valuation techniques for B NFEREEFE(EHARAF
which all inputs which have a significant effect on the BEKEATZEZAEGADE
recorded fair value are observable, either directly or EoMErR)TE
indirectly

Level 3: fair values measured based on valuation techniques for FEBI3IR: NFEREEFE(EHARAF
which any inputs which have a significant effect on the BEKENTE 7 F @& AW IE
recorded fair value are not based on observable market WBIER ATISEEEL (BN A B
data (unobservable inputs) AT E

Assets Measured at Fair Value RAFVEFEZEE

Group RE

As at 30 June 2013: R-ZE—=F,A=+H:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E1HR E28R B3R &5t
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET THET THET FET
Convertible bond eI
— conversion option derivative —HBHETETA
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44. Fair Value Hierarchy (continued) 44. A FEZEE @)
Assets Measured at Fair Value (Continued) BEATEFEZEE @
Group (Continued) REE (@|)
As at 30 June 2012: R-ZZFE——FNA=+H:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F14 F2M% F34 A&t

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
TR THETT THET TR

Convertible bond Al % (& 5
— conversion option derivative —HImERETET A = 7,126 = 7,126
— 7,126 — 7,126
Liabilities Measured at Fair Value BEAFYEFEZERS
Group rE
As at 30 June 2013: R=ZF—=FNA=1+H:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F14K H24 3 &5t
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T TH&T FE T FExT
Derivative financial instrument TTEERIA - 10,700 10,700
— 10,700 10,700
As at 30 June 2012: RZFE——FNHA=+H:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B B FE 34 A&t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT T FHT T
Derivative financial instrument PTESRBTA — - 11,500 11,500

= = 11,500 11,500
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44.

45.

Fair Value Hierarchy (continued)

Liabilities Measured at Fair Value (continued)

Group (Continued)
The movements in fair value measurements in Level 3 during the
year are as follows:

44.

AFEEE@

BEATEFTEZERE®@

7 82 8 ()
£ BIMATEHBRBOT :

2013 2012
—E—=F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FH& T

Derivative financial instrument: PTESBTA:
At beginning of the year REA —
Initial recognition of fair value on inception date AR5 B EA 9 F R

ANEE 34,400
Fair value gain recognised in profit or loss REZENERZ A TE

W25 (22,900)
At end of the year RER - 11,500

Company
The Company did not have any financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value as at 30 June 2013 (2012: Nil).

Financial Risk Management Objectives
and Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise financial
funds of interest-bearing bank borrowings, loan from the
immediate holding company and operating funds of trade
receivables. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to
raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as loan receivables,
convertible bond, cash and cash equivalents and trade and other
payables which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

45.

PN

R-ZZE—=FA=+H '  AQRILET
MZAFEFEZ2MEERABR(ZE
——F:E) o

MHEREEBEERBE

AEEZT2eRTAREHFERTE
E BHEERERQRRRZEFRERE
SPERCEEETHAR I BEES - %
EFeRMIAZIZEANREEAEHEHKLE
REE AKETAZEEMEREE
hafE flmElkER ATRKES &R
SRR EFERENE SRR R E M EN
R DHEKEEFEERE

AEEERMTAMELEZEZRR AN E
R SNERR  FEERBREADHE SR
R - EFZEREERLASHERRBS LD
ERE HABTHARNT -

FH2012-18 =R E (EE) R A A
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45. Financial Risk Management Objectives

and Policies (Continued)

Interest Rate Risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to its long term borrowing at floating
interest rate. The Group has not used any interest rate swaps to
hedge its interest rate risk.

At present, the Group does not intend to seek to hedge its
exposure to interest rate fluctuations. However, the Group will
constantly review the economic situation and its interest rate risk
profile, and will consider appropriate hedging measures in the
future as may be necessary.

At as 30 June 2013, if interest rates had been 50 basis points
higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s operating results before tax for the year would decrease/
increase by approximately HK$1,365,000. This is mainly
attributed to the Group’s exposure to the interest rates on its
variable-rate bank borrowings. As at 30 June 2012, the Group
did not have any significant exposure to risk of changes in market
interest rates in relation to its borrowings, as the borrowings were
at fixed rates.

The Group does not have any significant exposure to risk of
changes in market interest rates in relation to bank balances as
these mainly represent demand deposits in banks or short term
time deposits.

Foreign Currency Risk

The Group’s balances with the immediate holding company and
certain sales and purchases transactions are denominated in
United States dollar (“US dollar”), certain of its trade receivables
and cash and cash equivalents are denominated in RMB and US
dollar, and certain of its trade payables are denominated in
Euros. These being currency other than the functional currency
of the relevant group entities, exposes the Group to foreign
currency risk. The Group has not used any financial instruments
to hedge against currency risk. However, management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the
reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the US dollar,
RMB and Euros exchange rate, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit/(loss) before tax (due to changes
in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities).
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45. Financial Risk Management Objectives

45. B EREE B R RBX

and Policies (continued) ()
Foreign Currency Risk (Continued) Hh 3L B ()
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease) Increase/
in foreign in profit (decrease)
currency rate before tax in equity*
IAUSEE =R R B¢ Al 0% Fl REFE M
EHACREE) % Cr2) OGR4 )*
% HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
30 June 2013 —ZE—=
~NA=1+H
If Hong Kong dollar weakens ik 785 7T 4, 2 70 #8555
against US dollar
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens s 7 7T 4, 55 JT 82 58
against US dollar
If Hong Kong dollar weakens fish 75 70 5, A R 5 82 55
against RMB 1,701
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens MBI H AR ER
against RMB (1,701)
If Hong Kong dollar weakens i 75 7T 5 BT 88 55
against Euro (40)
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens find 7 7T 5 BT B 58
against Euro 40
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45. Financial Risk Management Objectives 45 IR E MR EEBEERBKE

and Policies (continued) (%)
Foreign Currency Risk (Continued) S = B ()
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease) Increase/
in foreign in profit (decrease)
currency rate before tax in equity*
SN [ 2 B 35 B & A Rz E
EFAACTER) i Crid) Rk )
% HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
30 June 2012 —E—_fF
~NA=+H
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against fisd 7 7T 5, = 7T
US dollar 8255 0.5% (5,010) —
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against i B 7T H =TT
US dollar B oy 0.5% 5,010 =
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB BT R AR
=55 0.5% 234 -
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB i 78 7t 3, A R #
oy 0.5% (234) —
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against Euro fi# 78 7T H B T
=55 0.5% — _
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against Euro {7 7t %, BX 7T
LK 0.5% - _
*  Excluding retained profits * TEFEREB R
The Group constantly reviews the economic situation and its 2N 5 B 4% 4B T B A AR R e H NS R B iR
foreign currency risk profile, and considers implementing N ERRBMER  BEEBHEEES
appropriate hedging measures in future if the need arises. pazke= i
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45. Financial Risk Management Objectives

and Policies (continued)

Credit Risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.
The Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
trade debtor at the end of the reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise convertible bond, loan receivable and cash and cash
equivalents, arises from default of the counterparty, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 25
to the financial statements.

5. BRAKBEEEEREEK

(%)

ERER

AEBRERKRATBERRTIZE=SR
Ry WMBAEEZHE THHEHEL
RAGATARSGZEFETERZE -
N BRBEBRZBEARFTEES  BR
AEBZBEERBRIN - AEEEREE
HARBRNERESERZATHESHE - U
FEGR BN AT e O & RR IR R SR (E 85 1R
1o

AEEEMEREE(BRIRKES
EUREFARRERASEFE) 2FER
REEXZETEYN  RARRKOFR
EETAZIRMEE -

MR AEEEALRTAEERFZE=
ARG HERERS -
ERASERERESRRMEHZEE

Bz -T2 HEEER SRR
= MizE2s o

FH2012-18 =R E (EE) R A A

167



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 285 A Mk

30June2013 —E—=FA=1H

45. Financial Risk Management Objectives 45. B B E M EEEE R K E

and Policies (continued) ()

Liquidity risk REBESER

The Group’s objective is to ensure adequate funds to meet AEBZEEZAERINGENESMES
commitments associated with its financial liabilities. Cash flows BESRABBEZAE -BEREZ2ERR
are closely monitored on an ongoing basis. The Group will raise BRETYER NMEETE AEEEEB
funds either through the financial markets or from the realisation TRMBNEREEEEES -

of its assets if required.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between AREB 7 EEAEBRERANEERB 27 BE
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of the Group’s SCHEESHEHEBEEHE 2 HERTE-

available cash.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end RNEREH KR BIESHRBERMNR &K
of the respective reporting periods, based on the contractual EHEzSREaERHAARMT

undiscounted payments, was as follows:

30 June 2013 —E2-=5xXA=TH
On Less than 3to12 1to5
demand 3 months months years Total
EER 2HA3MEA 3Z12M@A 1254 Bt

HK$'000  HK$’000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FTHEx FEx TERT FTHER FHEx

Group rE
Trade payables FEE B EER 50,195 52,245 92,147 194,587
Financial liabilities included &t A fEFT & & « H At

in accruals, other JES B R

payables and receipts TE U R IE 2

in advance THRAE 16,918 74,606
Interest-bearing bank SFEETEE

borrowings 303,253 303,593

67,113 109,986 303,253

Company FNNE]

Financial liabilities included =t A fEst B & & E fib
in accruals and other ERFEZzZE/mEE
payables 11,160
Amount due to subsidiaries F& <t i & A & ZIE =
Guarantees given to bank #1% ¥ — KB AT 2
in connection with BEmRRITIREZ
facilities granted to R
a subsidiary 163,394 163,394

174,554 4,568 - 179,122
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45. Financial Risk Management Objectives 45 iR E R EEEERKE

and Policies (continued) (%)
Liquidity Risk (continued) REE SRR @
30 June 2012 —E-—C—HFXB=1H
Less than 3to12 1tob
Ondemand 3 months months years Total
EZxR LRIEH 3E121E A 1255 HEt

HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TR TR THET TR

Group &
Trade payables JEE 5 R 58,575 75,058 40,741 — 174,374
Financial liabilities included =t A Bt B 1& - H b

in accruals, other FE ST RUE R

payables and receipts YA R IE 2

in advance eRasE 11,160 11,690 — — 22,850
Due to the immediate JERTEHEER A G HRIE

holding company — 28,091 — — 28,091
Loan from the immediate B Z A a2t 2

holding company I=F — — — 972,334 972,334

69,735 114,839 40,741 972,334 1,197,649

Company KA
Financial liabilities included &t A &5t & & & H b

in accruals and other ERREZ@EE

payables 11,160 1,729 — — 12,889
Amount due to subsidiaries f& 1 i B 2 &) 3 1E = 11,383 = = 11,383
Due to the immediate EREBEER A G FRIE

holding company = 28,091 = = 28,091
Loan from the immediate /i B £ # /% A ARt 2

holding company =& = = — 972,334 972,334

11,160 41,203 — 972,334 1,024,697

F£iR2012-13 =RE/(EBAR27 169



170

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 285 A Mk

30June2013 —E—=FA=1H

45.

46.

Financial Risk Management Objectives
and Policies (continued)

Capital Management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business
and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it, in light of changes in the economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes
during the years ended 30 June 2013 and 30 June 2012.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-equity
ratio which is calculated as total borrowings divided by total
equity of the Group. The debt-to-equity ratio as at the end of the
respective reporting periods were as follows:

45.

BEERREEEERBEK
()
EeER

AEBEEES T ERERERASE
FEREZHENIRERBRZBEAN L X
N BEEHRERREBRAL-

ARBRBEERRRIEBEEZBRE
BEBREARBRELBE - BRE
BEAAEE AEEREHELTRE

ZIRE - ERARERR S FTEHRMG -
RBEZZTE—=F~A=+HBR=ZZ—=
i/\ﬂ—‘f’ﬁﬂzif;‘%%ﬁ%*ﬂﬁﬁ
BFIZA MR o

AEERBEERAZESE X (BAEEZ
EERERAAEEHE)ERELA R
ERERRZEREERLRNT

Group 2013 2012
RE —E—=£ —E 4
HK$°000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTRIRITEE 272,949 =
Due to the immediate holding company R EZERKRARFIE - 28,091
Loan from the immediate holding company HEERERAGIREZER - 972,334
Total debt BEIEAEE 272,949 1,000,425
Equity attributable to owners of the Company N2 Bl A A JEAE #E 25 7,767,879 2,968,293
Debt-to-equity ratio & T8 B 25 bE K 33.7%
Approval of the Financial Statements 46. B Hm TR Z#t &
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue MHBRRER=-E—=ZFNAT+LtAHES

by the board of directors on 17 September 2013.
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SUMMARY OF INVESTMENT PROPERTY

BE PR

Details of the Group’s investment property under development as at 30

June 2013 are as follows:

R-FB-—=ZFR"A=THAKEZERKEY
EHRBWOT

Floor area

Location Purpose sq.ft. Group’s Interest
BEER

b B A% FHER AEEzER

A site at junction of Commercial/Office 71,042 sq.ft. 60%
Kai Cheung Road and B/ BT 71,042F 5 R

Wang Kwong Road,

Kowloon Bay, Kowloon

known as New Kowloon Inland
Lot No. 6314.

L 7 188 L BE

B e 8 B
RHBERFIE 2 T b
(BRI N BE A M ER
£563145%)

FH2012-18 =R E (EE) R A A
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
TAE B R

Period from
1 January 2009 Year ended
Year ended 30 June to 30 June 2010 31 December
BZ —ETNE BETZH
AA=THLEE —A—BZ =1+—HBLFE
2013 2012 2011 -5 2008
—E-=F —T——F —E—% SA=+HHE —ETN\F
(Restated)
(Z71)
RESULTS HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
¥E THERT FAT THET THET TAT
TURNOVER EXH
Continuing operations B AR 250,468 153,176 252,713 73,348 14,487
Discontinued operations & 4% |FAR & 75 - — 13,614 22,030 68,185
153,176 266,327 95,378 82,672
Profit/(Loss)
attributable to equity KAREEFBA
holders ofthe company ~ FEfR ) A,/ (E518) 928,053 79,221 (312,653) 127,013 (147,510)
Non-controlling interest ~ JEHERRHERS 596,530 173,472 = = =
Profit/(Loss) fortheyear A% & i@ 71,/ (B 18) 252,693 (312,659) 127,013 (147,510)
As at
As at 30 June 31 December
RANA=1H R+=A=+—8H
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND 2013 2012 2011 2010 2008
MINORITY INTERESTS —E-=fF —T——F —E——%F —T-TF ZETN\F
BE  BfEH HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
DR R EE THET TAT FAT FAT TAT
Total assets BEBE 10,524,782 5,756,683 3,591,369 3,613,128 98,571
Total liabilities BfEeE (595,799) (1,226,037) (666,832) (367,284) (12,770)
Non-controlling interest FlauiigriTay (2,161,104) (1,562,353) - - -
2,968,293 2,924,537 3,245,844 85,801
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